






. .
, ' I ' 

PAGE 4 OF 4 
CLTC Administrative Director's Report 

September 19, 2019 

a. Involve CLTC and Ad. Dir. in the full process

b. Okay to leave Oka Point out but must get Vigo property in the 

determination.

c. 1. Lower Tumon Tracks across PROA, 2. Behind East West Rental, 

3. Vigo gym other Vigo property across Vigo church T10123, 

L7128REM

d. Need approval from CL TC for Determination of Need
Motion made by A. Duenas, Seconded by A. Santos. Motion 
passed. APPROVED. 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT
1. Lisa Marie Tajalle: request for UT authorization; currently resides on property

CL TC applicant Joseph C. Tajalle. Requirements: needs POA from father or

father needs to come in see LA view the file. PL22-157 can be granted under

Joseph C. Tajalle; no board approval needed.

2. Pedro Taitano: applied in '95 for CL TC, claims bona fide farmer, requesting

for lease for agriculture. AG Application date 2014 and Res Application in

'95.

Motion to change 1304 from Residential to Agriculture. Motion

terminate 2014 Agriculture 7830 application. Motioned by A. Duenas, 2nd 

by A. Santos. APPROVED.

3. Mae Quenga

Request for a lease under the mom's LUP within T9210. Per JG, need to be

revisited due to a prior issuance on that property. "A" needs to come in and

sit down with one of the land agents to process her request

4. Joseph Nededog Salas

Intent to issue a lease; given a survey authorization but expired in 2017 with

disability; need to verify if the lot that was issued based on the S.A. is still

available

VIII. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS
► Pika - final 6 months on the commission; expiration in March 2020
► SOP in place

► Policies in place

► We need to speed up the process of issuing out to applicants
► Lots of follow ups from Chairwoman to the Director
► Next meeting October 17, 2019 at 1 pm

► Joseph I. Cruz has been re-nominated to come back on as CL TC Board

Member

► Arlene Bordallo pending confirmation from Legislature

Villi. ADJOURNMENT 

This report does not constitute meeting minutes and is intended only as an administrative 
reference document. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero 

Governor 
 

 

Joshua F. Tenorio 

Lieutenant Governor 

 
 

 

 
Commission Members 

 

 

G. Pika Fejeran 

Chairwoman 

 
 

Vacant 

Vice-Chairperson 
 

 

Amanda L.G. Santos 

Commissioner 

 

 
Austin J. Duenas 

Commissioner 

 
 

Vacant 

Commissioner 
 

 

Jack E. Hattig, III 

Administrative Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rev. 02/4/2019 

 

 

 

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru 
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission) 

 
P.O. Box 2950 Hagåtña, Guåhan 96932                 Phone: 649-5263 Ext. 400   Fax: 649-5383  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER      1:00PM 

 

II. ROLL CALL      1:05PM 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES     1:10PM 

1. May 2, 2019 – Regular Meeting 

2. May 18, 2019 – Regular Meeting 

3. June 6, 2019 – Regular Meeting 

4. July 18, 2019 – Regular Meeting 

 

IV. OLD BUSINESS      1:30PM 

1. Commercial Leasing 

a. Global Recycling 

b. UOG Hatchery 

c. Guam Rugby Club 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS      2:30PM    

1. Constituent Matters 

2. Commercial Leasing 

a. GEDA – Determination of Need 

b. ReMax request for easement – Lot 472 

c. Kwikspace Guam, Inc. 

 

VI. FINANCIAL REPORT     4:15PM 

1. Report on Current Commercial Leases 

 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT     4:30PM 

 

VIII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS    4:45PM 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT      5:00PM 

Next Meeting – Thursday, October 17, 2019 at 1:00PM 

 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Department of Land Management Conference Room 

3rd Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 
Thursday, September 19, 2019 

Regular Meeting - 1:00PM 
 

Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on September 12, 2019 and September 17, 2019 

 

















C H A M O R U  L A N D  T R U S T  C O M M I S S I O N

APPROVAL
OF MINUTES

MAY 2,  2019 -  REGULAR MEETING

MAY 16,  2019 -  REGULAR MEETING



Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru 
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission) 

    P.O. Box 2950 Hagåtña, Guåhan 96932 Phone: 649-5263 Ext. 400   Fax: 649-5383 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero 
Governor  

Joshua F. Tenorio 
Lieutenant Governor  

Commission Members 

G. Pika Fejeran 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran 

Joseph I. Cruz 
Vice-Chairman 

Amanda L.G. Santos 
Commissioner 

Austin J. Duenas 
 Commissioner 

Shawntel L. Techaira 
 Commissioner 

Jack E. Hattig III 
Administrative Administrative 

Director 

Rev. 02/4/2019 

05/02/2019 
COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Department of Land Management Conference Room 
3rd. Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning 

Thursday, May 2, 2019 from 1:02pm – 4:15pm 
Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on April 25, 2019 and April 30, 2019 

I. CALL TO ORDER
Chairwoman P. Fejeran called the Chamorro Land Trust Meeting to
order at 1:02pm

II. ROLL CALL
Notation of Attendance
Present were: Chairwoman P. Fejeran, Commissioner Santos,
Commissioner Techaira, Legal Counsel Nicolas Toft, Administrative
Administrative Director Jack Hattig

Absent: Vice Chairman Joe Cruz and Commissioner Austin Duenas

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Let’s move onto the next item on the agenda. We’re 
looking at March 21st, 2019 meeting minutes. So, I do see, as I was going 
through this, I saw a few notes in here as we were, I guess as staff and legal 
counsel were going over the minutes. I do see a few issues with motions that 
were made so I just wanted to go over those to see what we can do to rectify 
this. So, the first one I found, if you all can turn to page 10. This is in regards to 
an SBA loan guaranty for Erica Jean Benavente. There was a motion made by 
Commissioner Techaira that the recorded survey map number that was stated 
in the motion was incorrect. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Wait, I’m sorry. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Sorry, page 10. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: What was the motion? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, so if you look down please note motion made by 
Commissioner Techaira stated recorded survey map number 198-208 should 
have stated recorded survey map FY198-2018, instrument number 932595. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: I read the survey map. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It might have been a typo on what we were looking at? 



Page 2 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
T. Jocson: Here’s an exhibit I attached a copy of the map to your file. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible response)  
 
T. Jocson: So, on the recorded map you should have the number on there. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Administrative Director: It’s at the end; so, she attached the exhibit which is at 
the end of the minutes and it’s marked Erica Jean Benavente. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, it’s 198FY2018. 
 
Administrative Director: Yeah. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, do we need to do a new motion? 
 
L.C. Toft: I would yeah, just to be clear. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, yeah, okay, so if the commission sees the 
attachment.  
 
S. Techaira: I don’t see that.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think you were looking at a staff report or something. 
It was a 1 missing. 
 
L.C. Toft: It could be a simple motion to correct the survey map number. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, motion to correct the survey map number for 
a motion that was made for the meeting of March 21 for SBA to approve SBA 
loan guaranty of $85,000.00 for Erica Jean Benavente, survey map should be 
reflected and amended to read as 198-2018; 198FY2018. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, motion made. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Seconded by Tan Amanda. Further discussion? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: None. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, all those in favor? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All those in favor? 



Page 3 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ayes have it. Thank you for that correction. Thank you 
for catching that in the minutes. Okay, moving down to minutes, there was 
another note added to the meeting minutes on page 13. I guess when we 
listened back to the audio there was no actual motion although I thought I heard 
a motion there was no actual motion. So, I guess Vice Chairman said the 
commission will approve the loan and I said okay motion’s been made. But I 
guess he would have had to say specifically, I; 

L.C. Toft: There was an intervened…(inaudible).

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, I see. There was an intervening motion, so, I see 
our legal counsel has advised us that the motion needs to be restated as a first 
motion. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. Okay, so motion to approve the SBA loan 
guaranty in the amount of $188,400.00 for Priscilla Catalina Garrido Indalecio. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: A motion has been made. 

Commissioner A. Santos: And I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Seconded by Tan Amanda. Further discussion? 

Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: None. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All those in favor. 

Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, ayes have it. So, the motion made and passed. 
Let’s see there is one more. 

L.C. Toft: Page 19. It’s the last one.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, thank you, so page 19, there is a note from the 
staff and legal counsel that the motion that was made is in the wrong 
municipality. So, the motion, this is for, Paul Bernard Junior Pangelinan. So, 
the wrong municipality stated was Barrigada 

Commissioner S. Techaira: And it should’ve been Mangilao? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And it should’ve been Mangilao. 



Page 4 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Alright, motion to approve the request for Paul 
Bernard Junior Pangelinan as a beneficiary, an applicant on Tract 18113, Block 
8, Lot 6 Mangilao.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, motion’s been made.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Seconded by Tan Amanda. Further discussion? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: None. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All those in favor?  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Aye.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All those in favor?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, ayes have it. Motion made and passed. Again, 
thank you to the land trust staff and legal counsel for going through this with a 
fine-tooth comb to make sure we’re doing all the right things. I did have a 
correction also on page 19, halfway down, I guess subject number three, one, 
Joseph San Nicolas. It says in response “not yes but he is asking”. If you look 
here, I think it should be “not yet”.  
 
T. Jocson: Not Yet. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It should say “not yet”. Then the sentence in 
conversation makes more sense. And then my last comment about the minutes, 
is almost on the last page, page 33. Okay, I think where it says seven new 
business and then one, two, A, B; A - Administrative Matters; 1, 2, that’s 
referring to when I asked for the items to be tabled? 
 
T. Jocson: Correct. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so maybe we can move; so, we can move that 
section to right up to that statement 
 
T. Jocson: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Because then there’s that other sentence that talks 
about the working session. So, move the working session sentence after the list 
of items tabled. So, I guess what’s the protocol for this? Do the notes stay in 
there or were those just more for commission review?  
 
L.C. Toft: Those are just for Commission review; you can remove the notes 
once the minutes are approved.  



Page 5 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, got it. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But since the motions were made today, do we just 
leave it as is? 
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: As directive of what happened. 
 
L.C. Toft: Yes. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And then in this meeting minutes it will show the 
motions to correct them? 
 
L.C. Toft: Right, right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Okay, thank you. So, pending those corrections. 
Does the commission wanna...(interrupted). 
 
Administrative Director. I just had one, page 14 in references to the Guam 
Housing Corporation. It should be Acting President Alice Tyrone not Vice 
President. So, just for the record, to reflect the proper title. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so everywhere that her name is. 
 
Administrative Director: Right, to all references.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, are there any other comments from the meeting 
minutes?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: No. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: How does the Commission; does the Commission 
want to move forward to approve or do you want to see the corrective version? I 
think before we’ve been able to make a motion. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah, we should review. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Review again? Okay, please make corrections and 
represent to the commission.  
 
Administrative Director: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All right, thank you. Alright, moving on to down the 
agenda under four (IV), Old Business, Administrative Matters, first that we’ll be 
looking at is, Guam Legislature request for property for Department of Rev and 
Tax, for Lot 5412-R11 in Fadian. So, in our packets we have a letter from 
Senator Joe S. San Augustin’s. 



Page 6 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Administrative Director: And, also Madame Chair, we provided you with the 
minutes from the meeting went this was the last discussed. So, as to give you a 
reference to the commission’s position when it was previously presented to 
them. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, this looks like the UOG minutes? 
 
Administrative Director: It should be, sorry. I’m sorry, ma’am. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I think we did have someone present to the 
commission with the same request. 
 
(Inaudible discussion in background) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I’ll just read, I’ll just read and then we’ll get 
copies. Unless you can make it here.  
 
M. Borja: Yeah, we’ll print here. Jess? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, as we gathering the minutes to review from the 
last time, let’s keep going down to the UOG boundary proposal. 
 
Administrative Director: Yeah, that’s what this is for. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, Bill Number 76-35 is also looking at Lot 5412-R11.  
 
M. Borja: Same area. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, as it was just passed out, over two years ago that 
would be March 16th, 2017, the 34th Guam Legislature had proposed a Bill 
Number 18-34 to transfer a portion of Lot 5412-R11 to the University of Guam 
for the Fadian Hatchery. Okay, let’s see, and we have the minutes from the last 
meeting with former Director Mike Borja discussing, discussing this. (long 
pause) Yeah, okay, so what we looked at before there was not specific 
boundary lines that UOG had provided, they just said that they wanted to get 
the property. So, essentially it happened and I think the University of Guam; we 
have a letter from the dean of college of natural applied science to Director 
Hattig. So, the university is seeking the commission’s approval to resolve a 
long-standing boundary issue that would involve one and a half acres of 
CHamoru Land Trust property which has been in use as part of the Guam 
Aquaculture Development and Training Center operations since the mid-1980’s. 
So, I guess the history is in 1985, the fish hatchery located on lot number 2517-
17 in Fadian Mangilao was transferred to the Department of Commerce. The 
Department of Commerce constructed permanent structures on and across the 
boundary line of the lot that they received into CHamoru Land Trust property. 
And then in 2001 Public Law 26- 35 transferred the Guam Aquaculture 
Development and Training Center to the University of Guam including all 



Page 7 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
property and structures, inclusive of those structures encroaching on one point 
five acres of CHamoru Land Trust property.  
 
Administrative Director: Ma’am? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes? 
 
Administrative Director: I had a questing with regards to the lot numbers and I 
was talking to the land administrator on this. In their letter they referenced 25-17 
but in all of our maps, Fabian is 54-12. So that was the first question that I had, 
the map that they had submitted is a map that they had their surveyors do. And 
that is being verified by land management right now, so I didn’t want for the 
sake of preventing confusion they, reference it but is not an official map.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, I see.  
 
Administrative Director: See, so we’re going to reference that as the official map 
5412-R11. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I’ll reference to 25-17 is actually 5412-R11. 
 
Administrative Director: Which was the; when we went back historically, we 
looked at the minutes, this was the reference for this particular lot that borders 
the hatchery. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And we have a map of that over here. 
 
M. Borja: Can I just make a quick reference? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes. 
 
M. Borja: 2517-17 is the hatchery and that’s the private property. 2517NEW, 
what they’re showing on the request, that new portion is supposed to read 
5412-R11. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, okay, okay. That’s just map…(inaudible). 
 
M. Borja: It’s a map that wasn’t; it’s a map going through the process and it was 
an error.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. 
 
Administrative Director: Could you and large the area in question, the one point 
five acre. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira. We went over this before, right? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 
 



Page 8 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Alright, cool. It’s like a… (inaudible). 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So that’s the boundary line that they crossed over to 
land trust property when they build the structure? Okay, and is that one and a 
half acres that additional blue cut out there, yeah? Is that what they’re asking 
for? So, those lot lines referred to their coordinates that listed? 
 
M. Javier: Based on their maps.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that’s one and a half acres?  
 
M. Javier. Yes. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Why so big?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: It looks enormous! 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Is that really one and a half acres? 
 
M. Borja: No, this one. Show him the boundary line. From this boundary line, 
this way. That’s the small rectangular portion. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
M. Borja: That’s the one-point-five (1.5) acres. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that’s one-point-five (1.5) acres? 
 
Melvin: Just this portion right here. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. 
 
Administrative Director: Most of that isn’t even usable; to most of it to the south 
where the coastline is, yeah, so they would only be utilizing the area that they 
built on a sensually. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, looking back at the history of the last time we 
looked at this in 2017, the commission decided and I believe a resolution was 
prepared. I’m referencing CLTC Resolution 2017-03, when we did provide 
support for the Bill Number 18-34 which would transfer land to UOG in an effort 
to correct the encroachment of Fadian Hatchery facilities and then the board 
further concurred that the costs associated with the land transfer, this includes 
survey, appraisal and payment of the land be the responsibility of the University 
of Guam. So basically the land trust will incur no expenses for this but also 
appraisals will be required to value the land and I think that, in the Bill Number 
18-34 that we looked at, yeah, it said that UOG extension, yeah, would; either 
UOG would, UOG would pay for the value of the land or provide some in-kind 
services to the trust. 
 



Page 9 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Administrative Director: And that’s consistent with their proposal in the letter 
from Doctor Eudene. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, the new proposal before us today has the same?  
 
Administrative Director: Right, in essence, it’s the University through its 
cooperative extension will provide a series of training workshops for clients on 
the CHamoru Land Trust to assist in the instruction of best methods use in 
cultivating the land for agricultural uses. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
Administrative Director: For a period of time negotiated by UOG and the 
Commission. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, I mean that doesn’t; I don’t see anything in the 
letter that they will get this property appraised, to get the, what is it, the mean 
market value, median; fair market value. 
 
Administrative Director: When we respond to the; because we haven’t 
responded obviously, subsequent to your discussions and we can respond with 
our terms and such consistent with what we’ve responded in the past in terms 
of this particular land. Also, I am gonna be attending a meeting with the 
governor on this, with representatives of the university at which time I’ll present 
the trust position if we reach one on this which, that way you know, we can be 
on this in line with what the governor wants; it’s initiative with the aquaculture 
task force that she initiated. This is supposed to be, the hatchery supposed is 
supposed to be the impetus for this but this, but I will put together a response 
subject to the commission’s position.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, what does the commission feel? I mean, before 
we said you know we had knowledge that your property, your buildings are 
encroaching but we also acknowledge the value that the facility provides the 
island and the industry but again this is CHamoru Land Trust property that will 
be transferred outside of the trust. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: What in-kind services are they planning to offer, 
would they offer? I think it might be beneficial for them to incur the cost of the 
appraisal; of that size light it’s not going to be cheap, right, it might be; depends 
on the terrain…(inaudible) I mean we don’t have that kind of money. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, because if they want the property, they should 
incur all cost to get this property transferred through including appraisals and 
whatever land management fees there are.  
 
Administrative Director: If I may, Madame Director, commissioners, we did 
suggest, or I did suggest an MOU and working agreement you know to operate 
you know, in consistency with this rather than a land transfer, but what I 
understand through the University they’re going to enter into a public/private 



Page 10 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
partnership and they need possession of the land or control of the land in order 
for them to enter into that agreement so that’s why the MOU was I guess not a 
feasible method of approaching this but I do agree too that any and all costs 
associated with any land transfer should be bared, borne by the university. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so, I think we could have that as our first 
condition. Can we list that as a first condition, which is consistent with our 
previous resolution, right? So any and all cost borne by the University of Guam 
and then, you know, I really believe that the University of Guam has a lot of 
great services and resources that the land trust can really benefit from, not only 
just the staff and the team here but also the beneficiaries and this can really be 
a way that we can get that support from UOG and resources without expending 
our own limited funding, but my concern is that, is that we have the correct 
value for this property that’s being transferred out, so, I think, I would 
recommend to the commission that we require the appraisal to get the fair 
market value to determine the value of the property.  
 
L.C. Toft: I think you already did that. In the resolution 2017-03…(inaudible); 
university bare all cost associated with the land transfer and pay the fair market 
value for the land and also the recipient bare all costs associated with the land 
transfer and appraisals and to pay the fair market value for the land, so I think 
we covered that.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Yeah, with this older resolution, I mean we can’t 
use this for this new bill, right? Maybe we could just draft another one?  
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah, I guess update it for the new bill would be the simplest.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Simplest?  
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah, because there’s nothing new that’s happened or altered 
anything as far as the position stated in the 2017 one from the commission. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I actually don’t have a copy of the proposed new 
bill. 
 
Administrative Director: Yeah, that’s currently not in the packet, I apologize.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, my only concern is that we look at the language 
from the old bill and the new bill just to make sure that nothing else is kinda 
added in that the commission didn’t have a chance to review at the last one. 
 
Administrative Director: I did too have a concern ma'am about the university’s 
ability to therefore sell the land and that was kind of a discussion a week ago. 
We did receive assurances from the University that it wasn’t their intent to sell 
the land, it was the intent to keep the land but to enter into a public/private 
partnership with an investor or with an operator for the hatchery. 
 



Page 11 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so, I guess I would be interested to see the 
proposed bill, actually they don’t even mention it in their letter to us, the 
proposed bill.  

Administrative Director: Yeah, see it didn’t come together that time. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, I see.  

Administrative Director: The university's proposal that came in the subsequent 
meeting was not connected initially to the bill. And now that the bill has been 
introduced so they’re connecting their proposal together in the hopes that one 
will get the approval of the trust first for the land transfer and then the bill would 
be the correction, the boundary correction; it will set the lines in the sand so to 
speak, to have the new map reflect the boundary but I think that was the intent 
as I look at the abstract of the bill, it’s to correct a boundary. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, it’s not to be a transfer. 

Administrative Director: Right, it’s not a transfer. See, so the transfer, so the 
transfer would occur at core level to the boards resolution and have that effect 
and then the bill would correct the boundaries so that its, I think that’s what’s 
going to be discussed on Tuesday’s meeting so I share your concern about the 
review of that legislation. It was introduced rather quickly; I didn’t even get a 
chance to review it yet. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean, is that, legal council is that how transfers; 

L.C. Toft: I’m pulling it up right now to see if there’s a red flag.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean, I prefer to have all of the conditions that the 
commission is requiring in the bill and not a secondary agreement on the side. 

Administrative Director: Right, and I think that’s going to be our attempt to clarify 
that at the meeting.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Administrative Director: Because the meeting is actually through the governor’s 
legislative review committee, so that committee reviews the legislation and kind 
of provides positions and we get a chance to afford our position here.  

L.C. Toft: It may be best and; I can review this while we move on to a separate
subject.

Administrative Director: Right. 

L.C. Toft: And come back to this decision later.



Page 12 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. So, we’ll read it as if this as the legal 
counsel looks at the actual; goes thru. Let’s go back up to the request for 
property for Department of Rev and Tax.  
 
Administrative Director: You should have the correct; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, so, we were also handed meeting minutes from 
May 3rd of 2018. I think it was a representative from Senator San Agustin, who 
joined our meeting. Basically, Senator San Augustin is coming back to the 
commission in this new legislative here, requesting property for Rev and Tax on 
the same lot, it’s a pretty big lot, 5412. Okay, so we have a letter from Senator 
San Augustin to the director requesting the transfer of 12 acres of property in 
Fadian, that’s Lot 5412-R11U0. So, this is the same property, everybody wants 
a piece of it. 
 
Administrative Director: Yeah. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah, I mean, we’re already used it to. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, so can you show us where’s the; this is the lot 
that GPA was carved out of? 
 
M. Javier: Yeah, that’s the GPA area. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Wait, okay so that’s the whole remaining Portion of 
5412-R11?  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And he’s asking for 12 acres?  
 
M. Borja: 12 acres. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: How many acres does GPA sit on?  
 
M. Borja: It’s probably about like 10 or 15.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean at least UOG is saying that they’ll work with us 
for the property  
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But this letter has nothing about paying for the 
property, I mean kind of an enumeration for the trust saying that they’re going to 
pay for the property. I also believe that;  
 
M. Javier: 60,000 square meters, I mean 60,700 square meters. 
 



Page 13 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
M. Borja: About 14, 15 acres; so, the same size. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, that’s a lot of land. So, yeah, so they’re asking 
for a sizable chunk. Can we look into how GPA got that property? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah, I’m kind of curious about that. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s kind of been brought up to the commission before 
that there was something that the land trust was supposed to receiving 
something from GPA that I don’t think we’re receiving. Was that a bill; it must’ve 
been legislation?  
 
M. Borja: It was Legislation. Back in 1993 the government agencies had to 
come in and make reservation to certain properties that they needed for future 
use. GPA did come in and requested for that and its Public Law 22–18.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
M. Borja: So, their next step was to have to just go to the legislature, because 
they’re an autonomous agency. They needed a deed, so they went and did that; 
they got legislation and put that together and it was transferred to them.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh. 
 
L.C. Toft: But Rev and Tax is not part of that list. 
 
M. Borja: No, and that’s the reason why Revenue and Tax is coming before the 
trust because they did not make reservation.  
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
M. Borja: For future use, for their building. So, now they’re coming here. So, all 
agencies that did not utilize that back in ’93 to come in and just reserve, 
Government of Guam properties before all properties got transferred back, so 
there’s a lot of agencies that didn’t, so that's the reason why they’re coming 
through the trust to request for; 
 
L.C. Toft: And last time they came through, we asked for  
 
Administrative Director: Plans and we asked for construction.  
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah, because it’s such a huge amount and were saying, why don’t 
you build multiple stories to reduce the footprint; they said they didn’t have 
plans yet so we said to come back when they had plans but they came back 
with a letter asking. 
 
Administrative Director: Yeah, exactly! 
 



Page 14 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible)…I think, they already cleared a lot of it, 
access point. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: How about that whole front portion of green space?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: If Rev and Tax wants it, that’s really a valuable 
piece of property. It could be used for;  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean, GPA isn’t even using half of it. Is that right?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: They’re not using it? Why don’t we refer them to GPA? 
Yeah, GPA has the property, you know, public use, they can share their 
parking, expand the parking; 
 
Administrative Director: They can use GPA’s parking space for a driver’s test, 
parallel parking. I think that’s; in conversation when I conducted a courtesy visit 
with Senator San Agustin, this is before the letter he indicated that to me and I 
said we received your letter and the commission will discuss it, but he did ask 
for the 12 acres then and to include like a drivers course; you know, not just the 
building but to conduct DMV driving test. I could see maybe 5 acres but not 12 
acres. Even 5 acres is usable. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, I mean, as this is the second time, we’re looking 
at the same request, from the same office, it did not provide us anything more 
for what we’re asking for. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible response) 
 
L.C. Toft: I mean the letter is saying, similar to the last time, we need more 
information from them to;  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, and we suggest that they talk to their friends at 
GPA that have this large piece of property; half of it from the looks of it unused.  
 
L.C. Toft: About 5 acres worth.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, about 5 acres worth.  
 
Administrative Director: That’s why I’m suggesting 5 acres. That front part can 
be utilized.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so director you got that?  
 
Administrative Director: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you.  
 



Page 15 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
L.C. Toft: If I go back to the hatchery issue; so, the bill itself is just fairly bare 
bones and it doesn’t include any mention of CLTC whatsoever, it just says to 
extend the boundaries. So, if anything I think we need an even stronger 
declaration position as far as the resolution, and it echoes what we said back in 
2017 but emphasizes the fact that they are taking CLTC land; it’s not just a 
simple re-drawing on the border. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes, agreed. Thank you, legal counsel. So, does the 
Commission want to direct our Director to create a new resolution? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Yes, please. 
 
Administrative Director: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And just to recap, we would ask that the proposed bill 
be amended to include the land would be transferred from CLTC to UOG, that 
UOG will incur any and all costs for the transfer, the appraisals will be ordered 
to determine the fair market value and that the trust will be paid back for the fair 
market value of the, whatever, one and a half acres that they’re asking for. 
However, even previously based on the other resolution, the trust is open to, 
not just receiving a dollar amount but the in-kind services to really use UOG’s 
resources.  
 
Administrative Director: Right. I wanted to quantify that it would be in perpetuity, 
I mean it will be continuing existing cooperation not just a one time, a couple of 
years and that’s it. I mean, if they’re going to keep the land in perpetuity, then 
we should have the services in-kind in perpetuity and I would think that the 
trust; because we have lessees, we have agricultural lessees that are 
expanding, that are moving and that are actually farming. See this would be 
something that could be viable for them moving forward.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I mean, let’s ask for it and see where it gets 
us.Thank you very much. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: That’s a large property. 
 
Administrative Director: Okay.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, when your draft that resolution, can you send it 
to the commission and legal counsel for final review? 
 
Administrative Director: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you. Alright, moving on down under Old 
Business, we have Administrative Matters, Guam housing Corporation MOU. I 
think this has been in our Old Business, we had, the Commission had some 
questions about the use agreement and how that would affect the land trust; 
this is between Guam Housing and I guess, their contractor.  
 



Page 16 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Administrative Director: Right, with Wada Company. That should be next to the 
line after; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, did legal counsel have a chance to look over this 
MOU and the attached use agreement? 
 
L.C. Toft: I have over the MOU but I have to go over the lease agreement.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so, the purpose of this Guam Housing 
Corporation and CHamoru Land Trust MOU and then subsequent use 
agreements is to really increase the opportunity of our residential lease 
applicants to build affordable homes. So, Guam Housing Corporation would 
develop I believe it’s 9 of the lots. They’ve already developed 1, so they have 9 
more that they would enter into the agreement with a contractor to build 
affordable homes and have the building plans prepared so that our Residential 
Lessees can go and see the type of home that can be built based on their 
budget. So, I think this is a great; you know, I think this is a really good example 
of the trust working cooperatively with Guam Housing to improve the condition 
of our Residential Lessees.  
 
(long pause in between) 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira. So, I see that here, number 2…(inaudible); it says 
that it will allow a sub leases but it doesn’t give details, it just says for homes 
and licenses…(inaudible). 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I think that’s with the use agreement, the sub 
license would be to the contractor?  
 
L.C. Toft: (inaudible response to the Chairwoman)  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that was our concern, what are these sub 
licenses, right, because then the attachment says use agreement not sub 
license. Maybe just change the verbiage on the MOU that we’re going to be 
signing? 
 
L.C. Toft: No, sub license is okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Sub license is okay?  
 
L.C. Toft: The only thing that strikes me is in the MOU, there’s an 
indemnification that’s; between the developer and GHC but not to CLTC. That’s 
not necessarily a huge issue on this but it’s something where we do issue a 
lease to anybody for any of those particular properties that we would need an 
indemnification clause for the lessee to CLTC. Does that make sense? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, yes. Right, cause it wasn’t us that built it so we 
shouldn’t be held liable.  
 



Page 17 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
L.C. Toft: Correct. Just something we need to keep in the back of our mind. 
 
Administrative Director: When we issue leases to individuals on this  
 
L.C. Toft: Yes.  
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, like Miss Linda Hernandez, we approved her 
transfer into the one model home that was built there. Has that lease already 
been prepared and signed?  
 
Administrative Director: Yes.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can we do an addendum with an indemnification 
clause? 
 
Administrative Director: Yes.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And have that be the boiler plate for these other tracks 
of land?  
 
Administrative Director: Sure.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah? 
 
Administrative Director: Sure, absolutely, yes.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Administrative Director: Can we do an addendum to the lease? An 
indemnification?  
 
L.C. Toft: If it’s not there already. 
 
M. Borja: It’s not.  
 
Administrative Director: Then it’s an addendum? 
 
L.C. Toft: Then it be an addendum. Yeah. 
 
Administrative Director: Okay, you want us to put together a board of approval 
for that?  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: For the addendum?  
 
L.C. Toft: Do we need authorization to; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Only certain addendums. 
 
L.C. Toft: Oh, okay, so that would; 
 



Page 18 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Administrative Director: And only certain situations. 
 
L.C. Toft: Okay, so that one we don’t need board approval on it.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, can we just do a motion to right now?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: So, can we do a motion right now? 
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah!   
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, this is in regards to an addendum to the lease held 
by Lisa Hernandez 
 
Administrative Director: Linda, Linda.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Linda, Linda, thanks. Linda Hernandez, the Addendum 
to; I guess content would be an indemnification clause for CLTC.  
 
L.C. Toft: Yes.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Motion for the Director to prepare an addendum 
attached to the lease of Miss Linda Hernandez to include an indemnification 
clause for the CLTC.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Motion made.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Seconded by Tan Amanda. Further discussion?  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: None. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, all those in favor? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, motion’s been made and passed. So, this 
motion was made to prepare or can he execute it or do we need a; 
 
L.C. Toft: If you authorize him to execute it, he can. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, do we need a motion for that?  
 
L.C. Toft: I would just to be on the safe side it.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: What is the wording of my motion to prepare the 
addendum lease for; to execute… (inaudible); 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: You said that he’d prepare the addendum lease. 



Page 19 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: So…(inaudible); 
 
L.C. Toft: Motion to allow the Administrative Director to execute…(inaudible). 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, motion to allow the administrative director to 
execute the addendum for the lease of Linda Hernandez to include an 
indemnification clause for the CLTC. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Motion made and seconded. Okay, all those in favor? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, ayes have it, thank you. So, I would just like to 
have the director keep that in mind so that if we do end up leasing any of the 
model homes, we use the same verbiage to the lease.  
 
Administrative Director: Will it include an indemnification subsequent to a 
lease? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes. Okay, so I guess back to the Guam housing 
Corporation MOU, our legal counsel looked over it; I have had no more 
comment on this. Does the commission want to move forward and approve this 
MOU? I believe you would need a motion.  
 
(inaudible discussion on the table) 
 
L.C. Toft: (inaudible)…. yeah, between the CHamoru Land Trust and the Guam 
Housing Corporation. 
 
Administrative Director: Change that.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh yeah because it’s been lease out? Is that within 
here already?  
 
L.C. Toft: Yeah.   
 
Commissioner S. Techaira. Okay, so motion to approve the CLTC, GHC MOA 
to take possession of the lots for fixed terms for the purpose of having built 
upon affordable model homes.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, motions been made and seconded. I would like 
to ask if the commission would like to keep in Lot 1, it’s under number 1a, here. 
This is the one that Miss Linda Hernandez has the lease for, you probably just 
want to transfer that to them.  



Page 20 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Administrative Director: It’s this lot right here? Number A, Letter A…(inaudible) 
 
Administrative Director and L.C. Toft: (inaudible discussion between the two)  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, the motion has been amended to strike out Track 
113, Block Number 12, Lot Number 1 in the municipality of Dededo. (54:35) 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: So, motion to strike out Track 113, Block Number 
12, Lot Number 1 municipality of Dededo from this MOA.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, another motions been made.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: I second it.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can I have all those in favor of the striking out of Lot 
Number 1 motion. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay that motion passed. Now for the approval of the 
CHamoru Land Trust and Guam Housing Corporation MOA as amended. All 
those in favor. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira and Commissioner A. Santos: Aye. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, ayes have it. Thank you. Alright! Okay, so next 
on our agenda is cannabis cultivation. So, I know we looked at this a few years 
ago when the medicinal marijuana bill passed. I didn’t see anything in our 
packet.  
 
L.C. Toft: No. (inaudible) So, we have reviewed this issue back and we have 
requested a memorandum from the Attorney General’s Office and they had 
begun to prepare one but then the recreational bill passed and the results of the 
election happening, there’s the transfers of attorney generals, so, it didn’t get 
formally signed, and also the issues had changed because of that secondary 
passing of recreational 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
L.C. Toft: So, portions of it are no longer applicable but there is the one major 
portion of it is lack able; because there is still a federal prohibition on it and 
because the parliament does have the power to, it’s still a schedule one 
substance on the federal controlled substances list. That The federal 
government does have the power to prosecute and seize assets related to 
production and cultivation of cannabis and also to prosecute not only those who 
are growing but also associated with the decision use of it as well so such as 
the board could be held liable for allowing cannabis cultivation on those lands 
under federal law, not under Guam law. 



Page 21 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right. 
 
L.C. Toft: So, there’s this whole jurisdictional issue but at this time I would 
strongly advise the board not allow cannabis cultivation on CHamoru Land 
Trust lands. And it has also been brought up, I know there’s a side comment 
from the audience from the last time this came up about hemp. And, so what 
happened with hemp was with the farm bill of 2018, hemp was removed off the 
schedules as far as it being a controlled substance but in that same bill there 
was the provision in there that required each state or territory to come up for 
their Department of Agriculture to come up with a development plan as far as 
hemp farming to submit through the USDA. It had to be approved by the 
governor and the AG of the state or territory that basically show that they were 
monitoring the production to make sure that it was below the .3% of THC 
content like a random sampling of farmers and that if the state and territory did 
not have this type of program then the federal government program would 
control and the problem is the federal government has not set up their program 
to, to analyze it either yet, so we’re kind of in this weird gray area where Guam 
is not set up a program to that would bring in any sort of issues relating to hemp 
outside of the federal prosecution issue and the feds haven’t set up the their 
program too as their fall back either, so we’re just kind of just wait and see as 
far as CLTC where it’s not fully legalized but not fully illegal either if that makes 
sense.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes. 
 
L.C. Toft: So, that’s kind of where we’re at right now. Short answer on both is no 
to cannabis while it remains a federally illegal; wait on hemp until we 
have either a territorial program or the Department of Agriculture or until the 
feds implement their program as far as licensing and such.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. I thank you for that presentation. So in regards 
to the cannabis cultivation, I’ve asked the director to prepare a letter of request 
for official legal opinion on the cultivation of cannabis on CHamoru Land Trust 
property, so he’s provided us a draft of the letter.  
 
Administrative Director: There’s just two typos, sorry about that.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Administrative Director: Sitting, sitting in the 3rd, 2nd paragraph, “The CHamoru 
Land Trust” in the last paragraph.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Thank you. 
 
Administrative Director: Essentially what I did was I cited the laws that were 
passed including the medicinal law and as well as its subsequent amendments 
and then I also provided in the past the commission did allow for the cultivation 
of medicinal purposes only. I did reference the February 24th 2017 memo that 



Page 22 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

was issued by Land Management at that time; we were all combined, we were 
all one entity so that the regarding cannabis cultivation on public lands. As it 
pertains to 33-220 and of course 34-125 permitting it under certain conditions 
and then the most recent passage on April 4th of The Guam Cannabis Act of 
2019. So, referencing all of those specific laws as per the commission to please 
officially request an official legal opinion of the Attorney General on cannabis 
use. Do you want me to add hemp to that?  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I think maybe for hemp we can ask Department of 
Agriculture to stand that program up, right? Because it would be the attorney 
general, the Department of Agriculture. 

L.C. Toft: I mean, it’s under the farm bill, it’s kind of clear that agriculture has to
make the move on that. I mean we could as the AG but they’re going to come
back with that same thing; agriculture has two...(inaudible).

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so let me just review this letter. So, the; Sorry; 
February 24th 2017, a memorandum was issued in the Department of Land 
Management prohibiting cannabis cultivation; 

Administrative Director: On public lands; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: On public lands following verbal instructions by the 
sitting AG. So, you just placed the “regarding” with prohibiting.  

Administrative Director: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But again, that was based on the verbal conversation 
with Land Management and The Attorney General.  

L.C. Toft: Yes.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that memorandum and that conversation was 
never presented to the commission until recently when we brought it up again. 

Administrative Director: I included it in our packet last and we discussed it.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: What are the benefits in pursuing the cultivation? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Cannabis cultivation?  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah. Only because it just seems like it’s a lot of 
work too; because Federally it’s not on the list so it seems like a lot of legwork 
to dig into it. I’m just wondering what is exerting energy into it. How’s that 
beneficial? I mean, what regard? (inaudible). 



Page 23 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: My opinion is the; especially with this recent passage 
the cannabis industry will be a new market on our island and seeing as we have 
a large number of agricultural lessees in agricultural properties, I would like our 
agricultural lessees to be able to participate in this new market.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And previous to that, the Joaquin Casey Concepcion 
Compassionate Use Act was for the patients that needed the medicine.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Like at this point, there’s no cannabis cultivation that’s 
been approved or authorized on land trust properties to be clear, and maybe 
just ask the Attorney General to provide an opinion based on this new, the new 
law.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Got it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, does the commission want to request the director 
to prepare a letter to Department of Agriculture requesting the hemp program 
that our lessees can adhere to? Hemp is a very, you know; You can make so 
many things with hemp; you can make hemp cream with it, you can make 
clothing, animal food, CBD, right?  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah, yeah. 

Administrative Director: Yeah.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It has healing property, that’s all. Ok, thank you. So, I 
guess with those corrections Director, you can go ahead and forward this to the 
attorney general.  

Administrative Director: Yes ma’am.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, moving on to the agenda, financial report. 

Administrative Director: It’s right here on a separate insert. The long, the really 
long; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Håfa Adai sir. Please state your name for the record. 

Joey Cruz: My name is Joey Cruz and I’m the Program Coordinator III for the 
Commission.  

T. Jocson: Can’t hear you.

Commissioner S. Techaira: Thank you. 



Page 24 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you Mr. Cruz.  
 
Joey Cruz: Aside from the normal financial report we submit monthly, Director 
Hattig had request that we give a brief summary of the types of funds 
associated with the trust. So, the trust has a total of eight funds. Unfortunately, 
five out of the eight are dormant. And that’s due to, they have no identified 
funding resource. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
Joey Cruz: Those funds that are dormant and inactive are known as The 
CHamoru Home Loan Fund, The CHamoru Commercial Loan Fund, The 
CHamoru Home Repair Loan Fund, The CHamoru Development Fund and The 
CHamoru Educational Assistance Fund. The three active funds are the first 
active fund is known as The CHamoru Land Trust Operations Fund. This fund is 
restricted to fund the day-to-day operations of the Commission. The revenue 
source for this fund derive from application fees, interest earned from our bank 
account, commercial leases/licenses executed prior to October, 2015. And you 
can see what leases are related for; fund this on Exhibit A.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: That’s this one?  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, all of the commercial licenses and leases; 
 
Joey Cruz: Under column; Operation Fund. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: OK, I see it. Okay, got it. That goes into operations 
fund? 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: And then our collection to date, you can find on attachment B, first 
page. So, from October 1st 2018 to present or to March 31st 2019, the 
operations fund has collected a total of $619,255.50. Our concern is our 
projections for the operations fund which is attachment C. In our projection 
document for FY2018 we used the total cash and cash equivalence balance 
from our draft audit financial statements ending September 30, 2018 and will be 
less the due to the Government of Guam which came out to a balance of 
$2,175,187.13.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: What is it mean due to go to Guam? What is that?  
 
Joey Cruz: That's monies that wasn’t accredited to our account, yet and we owe 
the government; they use the general fund to pay our expenditures...(inaudible). 
So that was a high figure for 2018.  



Page 25 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Why? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah why? Did somebody not pay on time? 

Joey Cruz: Not that, sometimes our cash flow doesn’t meet our expenditures for 
the month, so, the general fund will pay upfront and then later, the trust will 
reimburse the fund, or the general funds. So, for 2019 we were appropriated; 
the trust was appropriated funds for $27,963.00. We project from our cash 
receipts from our active leases that relate to the operations fund and he will only 
collect $800,589.00 which you can see on the second page of Attachment C, in 
details how much we should collect for the year, if everybody pays.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Joey Cruz: So, we continue projections all the way to FY26; our expenditures, a 
2% increase annually which is very conservative and by the end of 2025 there 
will not be enough money in the bank to fund our operations into 2026.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that’s with our expenditures be increased by a 
certain percentage?  

Joey Cruz: 2% annual which is very conservative and just increments. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Joey Cruz: And any expenditure from this fund requires legislative 
appropriation.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, we can’t just spend without approval. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All right.  

Joey Cruz: The next active fund; the second active fund of the trust is the 
CHamoru Loan Guarantee Fund. The funding source for this fund is, comes 
from payment of taxes which comes from the real property taxes that are paid 
annually from our constituents and the interest earned from the bank account. 
We have a Bank of Guam and collection to date from October 1st 2018 to 
present is $68,238.63. This fund is restricted and the expenditures that relate to 
this fund are either to pay for defaulted loans, loan guarantees or to pay, 
repayment of loan where interest is due or pending loan reassignment.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you. I’m looking; sorry, Attachment B, I see the 
collection for the loan guaranty 3415, where can I find the balance? For all of 
these funds? 

Joey Cruz: We can provide that to you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: OK so it’s not this one here. 



Page 26 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Joey Cruz: No ma’am, this is just a collection from fiscal year 2019.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: What is the non-appropriated funds, the account 
balance as of March?  
 
Joey Cruz: This is the Bank of Guam Account 274? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 
 
Joey Cruz: That’s all associated with the loan guaranty fund. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: That’s loan guaranty? Oh, these are all loan guaranty? 
Okay, so that’s the current balance of that fund 500 or least in March 2019? 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And we’re required to have at least $500,000.00 in 
there? 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And how much was taken out of this fund? 
 
Joey Cruz: In FY2017?  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: In 2017?  
 
Joey Cruz: Three hundred, a little over three hundred some thousand dollars. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
Joey Cruz: I don’t have exact figure. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So then if the money hadn’t been taken eight hundred 
something dollars, eight hundred thousand? Okay, thank you, and I’m sorry;  
 
Joey Cruz: There’s one more, the third active fund is known as The CHamoru 
Land Trust Survey and Infrastructure Fund. The funding sources, the funding 
source from this fund comes from our commercial leases/licenses executed 
after October 2015, although in PL33-95, it sets a cap to year end September 
2020, so come September 30, 2020 or October 1st 2020, the funds that come 
from the commercial leases/licenses will be diverted to the CHamoru Home 
Loan Fund.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, I see. 
 
Administrative Director: One of the dormant ones.  
 



Page 27 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: One of the dormant ones. 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes, but also in addition to that, 25% of the amount of monies 
covered in the CHamoru Home Loan Fund annual shall be transferred to The 
CHamoru Home Development Fund.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: And then also 10% of the amount of monies covered into the 
CHamoru Home Loan Fund annual shall be transferred into the CHamoru 
Education Assistance Fund.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Administrative Director: So, from that pot, it spills over to the other government 
funds.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, let me see, so any funding for commercial 
leases and licenses executed after September 15 are currently deposited into 
CHamoru Land Trust Survey and Infrastructure Fund?  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And then, the year-end September 30th 2020 which is 
next year, right, they’re going to stop going into the Survey and Infrastructure 
Fund and they’re going to put be put in the home loan fund and then the other 
funds. 
 
Joey Cruz: They’ll be dumped in. Other revenue sources for the Survey and 
Infrastructure Fund or interests that is earned from our bank accounts are 
Agriculture and Residential lease payments, sale from government land 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And the collection from the leases/licenses executed 
after October 2015.  
 
Joey Cruz: The unique thing about this fund is that it doesn’t need Legislative 
appropriation. 
 
Administrative Director: It’s board resolution.  
 
Joey Cruz: In public law; in Chapter 75 expenditures from the fund shall be 
made pursuant to a resolution by the CLTC.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: But of course, we have to prepare a report for the legislature with 
details from the collection for the month. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 



Page 28 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Joey Cruz: And the collection to date from the Survey Infrastructure Fund is 
$53,027.22. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Joey Cruz: This one also, in 2017, there was about a little over $11,000.00 that 
was cancelled out to credit.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: This one is the one that also had money from 2017. 

Administrative Director: Right. 

Joey Cruz: Yes, ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Which we’d be seeing 353 or 300 something thousand 
dollars which the Commission did make a resolution today to go survey and put 
infrastructure if needed. Okay, so I also see on your notes here that the 
legislature’s intent of this fund was solely for the surveying of the unsurveyed 
land and for operational needs in support thereof. And then spending from this 
funding source is restricted to subdivision, surveying, mapping and registration 
of tracts of residential and agriculture land in the CLTC property inventory and 
for construction as infrastructure to include access roads, water and power 
utilities to service CHamoru Land Trust tracts of land.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible)...a lot of money in this account. Is there 
any progress on getting it back?  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I don’t know, we forwarded a letter, right?  

Administrative Director: We did forward a letter in March of this year. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: You know how much land we could survey with 
that, that amount of cash?  

Commissioner A. Santos: (inaudible discussion with Commission members) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I guess my question is since going to the 
CHamoru Land Trust Operations Fund, we, your projections show us running 
out of money by 2026. Right, so that’s like a nine year, seven years. What is our 
alternative to keeping this fund in our operation center? 

Joey Cruz: More Commercial licenses, but also the law needs to be quantified 
or changed. Public Law 33-95, it states that any commercial leases executed 
after October 2015 shall be deposited into the Survey Infrastructure Fund, after 
that it goes to the Home Loan Fund, so no new money from any new leases will 
be deposited into the Operations Fund, which is, that needs to be amended if 
possible. 



Page 29 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so we can look at that. What about for these, 
the leases that were executed prior to 2015 that are going into the Land Trust 
Operations Fund? What if we sign a new lease and extend the term for those 
that because; the reason why our balance is going down is because we’re not 
bringing in as many, is that because the leases are expiring?  

Joey Cruz: They’re starting to expire. Yes ma'am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, what if we, you know, when they're expiring, we 
want to renew with them?  

Joey Cruz: The commercial rules and regs doesn't. It's really straightforward, I 
mean, once the lease expires, the Commission will identify it as a commercial 
piece of property, send the resolution to the legislature; 60 days and all that 
other great stuff, so; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ok, okay. So, then it wouldn't, like we couldn’t still 
consider it one of these revenue sources because it has to go thru the 
commercial leasing and licensing process? 

Joey Cruz: Yes ma'am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Ah, I see and then it would be deposited to, what is 
that, The Land Trust Survey and Infrastructure Fund?  

Joey Cruz: Yes ma'am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Joey Cruz: Sorry about that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s okay. This is a really great report, thank you for 
putting it together Joey. This is the first time we’ve had a very thorough 
understanding of the funds that were created for the trust. I mean I see the 
dormant ones as they’re dormant but there is a time that money will be 
deposited, right?  

Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. That amount of money that we deposited is very 
minimal. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 

Joey Cruz: I mean also we start to get into the business of loaning money, you 
may want to consider to start planning for an MOU whether it be with Guam 
Housing, GCC and UOG. I mean it’s another task that would be added on to our 
whatever we’re doing now.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 



Page 30 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Joey Cruz: It’s just kind of overwhelming.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Well, it’s not till 2020 but that is next year. 

Administrative Director: Next year. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean yeah, we are in May.  

Joey Cruz: Also attached to my summary is a copy of the CLTC’s FY2020 
budget.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, before we move to the budget can we just look 
at this again. I wanted to look at the loan guaranty fund. This is where payment 
from Real Property taxes is deposited.  

Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s my understanding that all of the payments from 
real property taxes paid by our CHamoru Land Trust lease holders are not 
currently being deposited into this fund? They’re being paid but not handed 
over? 

Joey Cruz: It’s booked as a receivable.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s booked as a receivable? 

Joey Cruz: Due from the general fund. So, what happens is there is a 
government account standard report, standard number 34 that deals with the 
interfund loan. So, when the collection is made, paid to the Treasurer of Guam, 
let’s say we include it into the daily task for the Government of Guam, but 
sometimes that money, not sometimes; most of the time that money is used to 
pay for operations, so when they report any transactions on our books, they’ll 
record a revenue but then the receivable from the Government is Guam, from 
the general fund. So, if the money is not paid within a reasonable timeframe 
then we have to apply it as a 34…(inaudible).  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Just write it off as; 

Joey Cruz: A transfer 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Just like how we did the huge chunks of money, six 
hundred twenty something thousand. 

Joey Cruz: If we don’t acknowledge and comply with GASB 34, then CHamoru 
Land Trust’s financial audit will probably receive a qualified opinion, which is not 
a favorable opinion for the trust. So that's why we had to apply to GASB 34 in 
October 2017.  



Page 31 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: How do we, how do we prevent the general, prevent it 
becoming a receivable and instead have it being directly deposited? 

Joey Cruz: I’ve been tasked in previous years, so I also maintain the books for 
Ancestral and they have custody of all their accounts. So that’s the one given, 
but because it’s a tax collection you don’t have the authority or unless Rev and 
Tax sends us. So, if we maintain, if we gain custody of the account, that’s one 
thing and preventing any transpose in the future.  

Administrative Director: Can that be done through legislation? 

Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am, yes sir. We’re capable of maintaining her own accounts. 
And then we’ve done this with the Guam Ancestral Lands Commission, so 
there’s no reason why we couldn’t do it for the Commission. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Why wasn’t it ever, like, wouldn’t it make more 
sense to have custody of the account? I didn’t think it wasn’t possible. 

Joey Cruz: At one point in time the commission did have custody of the 
accounts but then it incurred and went to the custody of the Department of 
Administration.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, can we; 

Administrative Director: I had discussions already with the director. He pointed 
to DRT; that’s it’s DRT that has to identify where it’s going to go and then once 
it comes over to DOA, then it goes into where it’s supposed to go. And so my 
question was what are the identification is wrong, it’s not being identified 
correctly from DRT, so that’s my conversation with the DRT director is, how can 
we start to do that; but the question I got back is, was, well we don’t have a lot 
of our lessees aren’t being properly being taxed because we don’t have our 
parcel identification numbers and then we break into this issue with Land 
Management of how we get that.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 

Administrative Director: Once an addendum is done for a lot description 
correction and then they can begin being taxed on a correct lot or correctly, but 
if it’s a portion of they don’t get taxed on a portion of, they don’t get taxed on 
unless it’s properly identified, so it leads to another issue and so we’re trying to 
resolve that issue with Land Management right now.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible response) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. I mean, can we pursue control of the account 
with DOA?  

Joey Cruz: For the last six completed audits, we’ve received qualified clean 
audits. I mean, that should be sufficient.  



Page 32 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, Okay.  
 
Joey Cruz: To justify...(interrupted) 
 
Administrative Director. To justify regaining back our account. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. So, okay. Well, I see three main issues with our; 
that we learned from my financial report. The first is our operations needs an 
additional funding source or else we will be non-operational in 2026. Is that 
right? 
 
Joey Cruz: We become dependent on the general fund. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Which we cannot be, okay, so that’s the first glaring 
issue; the second is, again the transfer out of the approximately six hundred 
thousand dollars ($600,000.00), at the very least, I mean, at the very least the 
$300,000.00 transferred out of Land Trust Survey and Infrastructure because 
that is within the Commission’s priority use, so, we need that back. And then 
what was the third one, control of the account. It’s the home loan; the CHamoru 
Home Loan Guaranty Fund that would be the account that we would request 
control of the fund? 
 
Joey Cruz: All three would be. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, none of the three are in our control? Okay, so 
requesting control of all active funds.  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. And then also it looks like we might need to see 
how, maybe look at the previous public law you mentioned Public Law 33-95 
and allow the trust little more flexibility in where the funds get deposited and 
how we spend it, maybe. 
 
Administrative Director: Also, the adjusting of the dates of when we do 
commercial leasing. You know, all the commercial leasing that we’re about to 
do, that we’re about to embark on. We have to modify those dates sometimes, 
so that when those; I call that a faucet, so the faucet can be turned on into a 
fund and then when it turns off and put into another fund and we need to be 
able to adjust those dates.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, because I mean, maybe when they wrote this 
law, they thought we already have a lot of revenue coming in from the new 
leases? 
 
L.C. Toft: It’s possible. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Maybe. Okay. 



Page 33 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Administrative Director: I’d also like to focus ma’am on collections because it’s 
been a sore spot; I mean, I think that, that would be a; the reason why I had 
Joey put a sovereignty report together is to identify our weaknesses and I think 
one of our weaknesses is collections. So, I need to collect from our lessees, our 
commercial lessees, that is, in terms of payments that are being made on time; 
to make sure that these funds maintain their cash flow, because as it’s alluded; 
if we in a particular month if we don’t make our cash flow then the general fund 
has to take over and may be reimbursed by us, so to speak, so, in order to keep 
those levels up I would like to focus also on you doing that and marking on new 
leases is having our collections in place, for our method of collection.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And the report your referring to is attachment A, the 
sovereignty report?  
 
Administrative Director: This is in its entirety what it is, it’s a sovereignty report. 
It gives you our snapshot of where we’re at. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And then this Attachment C; 
 
Administrative Director: Right.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: This is how we go under the land? 
 
Administrative Director: Right.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can we go over the collections right now, that’s this 
one right?  
 
Joey Cruz: That’s our listing of leases. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And it shows the accounts receivable? 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Unpaid balances?  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes, so the first one for the Cushing Zoo, (inaudible)... to pay their 
$30.00 up front, so that’s why there’s a credit or a negative.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Pay it in advance, pay it in advance. Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: Evelyn store which has an accounts receivable balance of $806. 
That’s a communicative total for how many years already, they only pay $26 a 
month, that’s the store in Umatac, so we’ve done our inspections and we’ve 
reached out to Miss Lujan and we send her invoices and account statements. 
Now our, we’ve already prepared already some staff reports and we’ll forward it 
to the board before the next board meeting for commercial issuance. 
 



Page 34 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Okay. Great! So, we’re going to have a larger 
commercial lease, kinda; 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But yeah if you can go over this quickly.  
 
Joey Cruz: The Guam Broadcasting Partners/Sorensen Media Group has an 
Accounts Receivable balance of $21,766.43. The previous board in the past 
years had approved their payment plan that they have submitted, so they 
roughly only pay $193.00 towards their arrears which was approved by the past 
board, so we’re monitoring that.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Are they current except for the arrears?  
 
Joey Cruz: I think they’re a couple of months behind but we send them an 
invoice monthly for their account statement.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: How about receipts? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The accounts receivable? 
 
Joey Cruz: The last column.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The last column, but we’ll get a full staff report on this? 
Thanks. 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. The next commercial lease holder that has an Accounts 
Receivable is the Guam International Country Club. Their AR is $34,044.80. 
Mind you the accounts receivable balance is, as of April 24; I believe they came 
in the other day or today to make payment so that would be reduced a little but 
also, we do send GICC a letter and invoice monthly of accounts receivable 
reminding them of their past due. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: The next commercial lessee/licensee is the Guam Resource 
Recovery Partners. Their accounts receivable balance is greater than $30,800. 
The only reason why its reflects $30,800 is the recent in the past years we 
unclassified their AR’s...(inaudible); and 
only because the court had terminated their lease but they exercise their right 
for hearing, to be heard but with the recent news in the paper about Mr. Wagdy 
Guirguis’ indictment or convicted, it was unknown, but then recently Mr. Sablan 
has mentioned to the Post, that GRRP, whatever case is going on, that the 
GRRP will have to go through court, so it’s still unknown what their intentions 
are.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 



Page 35 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Joey Cruz:  But in the event that a hearing is given to GRRP, and its 
determined that they’re willing to pay them the arrears, we can always reverse 
that entry and it will record the total.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.   
 
Joey Cruz: The next Lessee with account receivable is I&TE, with $761.68. 
IT&E pays through EFT so it goes directly to the government of Guam and into 
the Government of Guam closes books for the month or for the quarter and 
posts it and then we go in to adjust it...(inaudible). 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: The next Lessee with an Accounts Receivable total is I-Connect, 
$8,312.64. We’ve been sending I-Connect also letters monthly, invoices 
monthly, account statements monthly; we will prepare a staff report and forward 
it for the board at the next commission meeting under commercial.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you.  
 
Joey Cruz: The next lessee is Johnny Cool Towing. They have a credit of 
$6,176.08. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
Joey Cruz: The next Lessee for the operations side with an accounts receivable 
balance is the United States Postal Service which is $3,648.16. We’re 
communicating with their contracts officer, I think, that’s her title, in the US so 
we’re preparing to forward her all the previous leases so they can do the 
reconciliation on their part. And then for the Survey Infrastructure Fund, the 
United States Postal Services again has an accounts receivable balance of 
$4,125.05. This lease is associated with the Dededo Post Office. The reason 
why it has a receivable amount is instead of us invoicing them $415.33 a 
month, the lease calls an annual rate of $55,000.00, I mean $5,500. And 
agricultural leases they have no... (inaudible).  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so as you’re putting so gather to staff reports for 
the next meeting, will it be focused solely on the ones that are in arrears? 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And then can you also; I circled a bunch of leases that 
are expiring or have or have expired, I see you one, the first DOCOMO one 
expired last year, 2018.  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: There is a; and then I also see a bunch of leases that 
are expiring this year 2019 and also 2020. So if you can also pull those leases 



Page 36 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
and give us a staff report on the property because if we have to go through the 
commercial rules and regs to get those commercially leased again, I think we 
should be ahead of the curve and have the whole process done before the 
lease expires.  
 
Administrative Director: I’ve asked Joey already to keep an eye on that and he’s 
providing me with reports on how we can do that and get ahead of the ball 
game especially for DOCOMO, IT&E overseas, and GTA TeleGuam.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean, I see Johnny Cool Towing has 3,783 square 
meters and they have pay $477 dollars. 
 
Joey Cruz: And eighty-eight ($0.88) cents a month. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: A month?  
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, so I’m glad that one’s expiring soon, I mean I 
think we need to; so if you can give us a report of was expiring and then we can 
identify on map and move forward to possibly engage or to go through the 
process; we have to have public hearings and go through that whole thing. 
Okay, thanks Joey. Awesome. 
 
Joey Cruz: So, the next documents.  
 
Administrative Director: Could ask him to just go over the land inventory just to 
conclude. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, yeah.  
 
Administrative Director: That’s just a very important point for me here.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, this last page, thank you. 
 
Administrative Director: Land inventory, commercial land inventory.  
 
Joey Cruz: So, PL33-95 was enacted on November 9, 2015 and authorized 
CLTC to declare and designate 9% of the total remaining unassigned CHamoru 
Land Trust Commission land inventory for commercial use. So what we did was 
we took the total land inventory as of year-end September 30, 2015 which was 
11,061.78 which also reflected in our year end audit 2015 and then we took the 
total assigned inventory which was 2,846 acres point 22 and we deducted it left 
us with an unassigned inventory amount of 8,215.56 acres, so 9% percent of 
that came up to 739.40 acres and then there was an increase in 2018 which 
would be reflected in our final audit report of 606.38 acres and then we took the 
difference between 17 and 18 which was more interest which is 23.49 acres so 
it left us with unassigned acres 582.89 acres, 9% of that came out to 52.46 
acres which came up with a total acres available for commercial lease license 



Page 37 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

791.86 acres. As of April 24, 2019, we’ve leased 603.76 acres, which leaves a 
balance of 188.1 acres left to be leased.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so sorry for the total acres lease license is four 
twenty-four nineteen, that includes everything we’re looking at here, so that 
would include the raceway.  

Joey Cruz: It’s already encumbered. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, it’s already encumbered. Okay, so we’re talking 
about newly designated commercial licenses that we send.  

Joey Cruz: Just keep in mind is that every time you convey property or 
inventory decreases; so, with our 9%, it would increase also.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so we have 188.10 acres left. 

Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can we just circle back to the public law because I’m 
wondering if the, this 9% is inclusive of existing commercial land inventory. 
Because right now we’re assuming it the existing licenses were inclusive of the 
9%? But they’ve already been designated so they’re not newly designated so I 
would just ask that we just clarify with what the public law will be in you to get it 
in and I understand the intent is to limit commercial leases because our real 
purpose here is to give land for homes and farms but so that’s just something 
we can look at. So that I mean just makes it even more clear that the 
commission should use the properties that are already leased that will be 
expiring soon to get new leases and revenue.  

Administrative Director: The unassigned, does that include the five properties 
that we set aside for commercial lease?  

Joey Cruz: It does not include the five properties that we set aside. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The unassigned?  

Joey Cruz: Well the unassigned, it includes all the seven. Our calculation of 
total acres lease/ license doesn’t include. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Does not include, right because they haven’t been 
leased in a while? Ok, thank you. 

Administrative Director: Thanks Joey. 

Joey Cruz: Last documents for FY2020 budget for CHamoru Land Trust. The 
Bureau of Budget Management and Research set a ceiling for the trust for one 
million, forty-seven thousand eight hundred thirty-two dollars which is detailed in 
the letter. 



Page 38 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Joey Cruz: There is a lot of cuts that had to be made for our operations in order 
to meet the budget ceiling considering our existing staff. So, if we flip to BBMR 
form 96A which is after the digest, one more page, one more, before that, we 
can just look at the digest, sorry. The budget digest; it details what we’re 
requesting for FY2020. So, salaries for FY 2020 we are requesting 
$593,013.00; benefits $203,721.00; contractual services $86,596.00; office 
space rental $124,391.00; supplies and materials $15,000.00; drug testing, $80 
dollars; miscellaneous $7,200.00 which brings the total to operations of two 
hundred, I’m sorry; telephone $17,831.00 which brings a total of probation 
request to $1,047,832.00. So, we’re within our ceiling but we had to sacrifice a 
lot of services, contractual services that we had this year. So, like our hearing 
officer we have no funding for 2020 to fund the hearing officer. That was one of 
the contractual services we had to sacrifice. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Did we ever pay a hearing officer? 
 
L.C. Toft: We never used it. (inaudible) 
 
Joey Cruz: We never even used it.  
 
L.C. Toft: (inaudible discussion with Chairwoman)  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh great. Okay, okay. 
 
Administrative Director: We also had to forgo the recruiting of the Private 
Secretary. At the beginning of February, we were slated to; we had to sacrifice 
that one too. Just factoring in our separation of agencies, too. The utilities or the 
communications is the big one the $17,000.00 for communication to maintain 
our own communications.  
 
Joey Cruz: For 2020 we also incurred cost for a copy machines which we never 
had in the past.  
 
Administrative Director: We’re working with the management right now to see if 
we can work out a deal for continued services, joint services for copies.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, for office space rental, when they do move this is 
our budget for the year. 
 
Joey Cruz: Yes ma’am, for the year. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.   
 
Joey Cruz: It’s a carryover, roll over from previous years. It hasn’t decreased.  
 



Page 39 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you. I look forward to reading more of this 
and I know you guys put a lot of work it. I see good stuff here. Thank you.  

Administrative Director: Thanks Joey. I appreciate it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thanks. I’d like to call a 10-minute recess. Thank you. 
We’ll reconvene at 3 o’clock. 

Administrative Director: We’re on time. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I’d like to call this CHamoru Land Trust Commission 
meeting back to order. Next up on the agenda is New Business, Number One, 
Administrative Matters, Former Land for the Landless properties ready for 
leasing. I think we had a misconception that had very strong comments at the 
last meeting that you know I went home and really reflected on it. Although she 
was commenting; her and her son are 1995 applicants and she still, they still 
don’t have a lease right and they’re one of many, however we did find out that 
she has been offered properties that she declined, so we were trying to service 
her but besides the point, you know, it’s in just about a year since we put a 
moratorium on all new leases  

Commissioner A. Santos: For Barrigada Heights; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: For newly assigned Leases, right, And I would like to 
go over the former land for the landless properties that are actually in our 
inventory now and ready for leasing and ask the commission, if the commission 
would like to instruct the director and staff to move forward to issue new leases. 
I know that we’ve been, you know that we’ve had a whole workshop about all 
the changes we would like made to the law but you know that is a very lengthy 
process to go through the legislature and all of that. While we will still be going 
forward to pursuing those changes, I think it is also important that the 
commission still moves forward in leases of properties to those people on our 
waiting list. Of course, adhering to the existing rules and regs, right? So, what 
we have in our packets are former Land for the Landless properties. What was 
provided were affidavits of administrative transfer by public law so basically just 
tells us, there’s; 

Commissioner A. Santos: How many lots? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: There’s five subdivisions with lots that have been 
added into the CHamoru Land Trust inventory.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Oh wow, I like it! 

Commissioner A. Santos: And they’re leased too? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: No, these are ready for leasing, they’re vacant. So, I 
actually wanted to ask because there was no like staff report or any analysis 
provided. 



Page 40 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Administrative Director: We actually just got these, actually last month, but 
we’ve been made aware of the Land Management. There’s a couple of issues 
in the Ija Subdivision; just a couple in, in Inarajan, and so I’d like Margarita 
Borja to kinda expound a little bit on what some of those issues might be in 
regards to that subdivision and then we can put together a whole staff report. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, actually, maybe we can get back to that later? 
But what I’d like to do is just; there were notes found. Whose notes are these?  
 
Administrative Director: That’s, um, Mr. Joe Borja. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, Joe Borja, okay. So that was kind of the start of 
my understanding. So, there’s five subdivisions. There’s Umatac, Talofofo, Ija, 
Pigua and FEMA. And these are all down south, right? I think Pigua I saw was 
in Merizo, Malesso; 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: FEMA is in Dededo.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, FEMA is the only northern one. So, just based on 
the notes from the Director of Land Management, it looks like there’s a lot of 
lots that were transferred but there’s only, there’s 16 lots in your Umatac; 16 
lots but only two I would consider leasing. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Available? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, available because there’s utilities and there’s 
access. Okay?  
For Talofofo there’s 12 lots that are in our inventory and all 12 are leasable. Ija, 
there’s 103 lots but there’s no numbers associated. 103 lots, it says sporadic 
utility, sporadic paving.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: So, how big is the land? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, these properties are a quarter acre lots. Is that 
right? So, these are a quarter acre lots. There’s only 103 lots but sporadic 
access and utilities so what I’d like to ask is the director and the staff to 
determine how many of those lots are leasable, which means there’s access 
and utilities. For Pigua, all 36 of the lots are leasable. For FEMA all 10 of the 
lots are leasable and there were also additional notes from Mr. Borja that the 
FEMA property has access to amazing facilities; there’s a playground, there’s 
schools walking distance, it’s across the street from a fire station, so I really see 
that those 10 FEMA lots in Dededo are very conducive for families with small 
children. 
 
Administrative Director: It’s right near Astumbo.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s in Astumbo? 
 



Page 41 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Administrative Director: It’s in Astumbo, Sagan Linahyan. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, Sagan Linahyan.  
 
Administrative Director: That’s what he’s referring to, that area; the two schools, 
Astumbo Middle and Astumbo Elementary and fire station that’s there in 
Astumbo.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, from my calculations leaving Ija out of it because 
you don’t know the exact number but you’ll get us the number. There’s at least 
sixty (60) properties that the commission can lease out to those on our waiting 
list.   
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible)…So that’s 12; you’re not including Ija?  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, Ija, we don’t know how many is leasable.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Oh, okay, so then; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: 2 in Umatac, 12 in Talofofo, 36 in Pigua, and 10 in 
FEMA. I think that’s 60? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: So only 2 lots out of 16 are good in Umatac?  
 
Administrative Director: Because of utilities and;  
 
L.C. Toft: Probably some geographic, topography as well; some of them are lots 
that are basically; (inaudible) 
 
Administrative Director: Mostly hills mostly on the deep end, cliffs and stuff 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So my question, my question for the commission is, do 
we want to direct the director and the staff to; I think before we get to the 
process it actually...(inaudible); what I’d like to see is a very simple, standard 
operating procedure for how we’re going to about the leasing, the leasing 
process, right? 
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that will come right out of PL23-38, right? 
 
Administrative Director: Yes. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira:  I think; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: With the waiting list; 
 



Page 42 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Commissioner A. Santos: First come, first serve. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I want to see the waiting list, first come first serve and 
then the priority ones. Okay? How you propose to do the noticing  
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And how many on our waiting list are you going to 
notice? 
 
Administrative Director: Right, right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Because say we have 100 properties available. Are we 
only going to notice the first hundred? Are you going to notice the, you know; 
how are you going to do this?  
 
Administrative Director: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I’d like to see a very simple standard operating 
procedure process, a process flow that the commission can review, and legal 
counsel can review, so that we can make sure we’re abiding by the Public Law 
23-38.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: And award those that really need it. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes, and then we’ll go; we’re going to start at the very 
top of the list and go down that. Basically, follow the law, right?  
 
Administrative Director: Right.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And as you’re going through in putting this process 
together, I’d also like you to put together; there’s going to be common questions 
that come up.  
 
Administrative Director: FYI. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: We’re going to notice somebody’s grandpa and they’re 
going to get the notice and their grandpa passed away, so we’re going to have 
to have answers to commonly asked questions, like what do I do, I saw my 
grandpa on the list? 
 
Administrative Director: Okay.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: We should have like a standard boiler plate if, if your 
relative was noticed and they passed away. This is what you have to do, like 
find out if there’s a beneficiary right; this is who you talk to at land trust, if 
there’s a death right? Also, I think for the noticing, one of the sticking points was 
that one of our adjustments to the public law was the noticing by registered mail 



Page 43 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

versus certified mail, we prefer certified mail but I believe that is only if we are 
only going to take somebody’s name off the list. We have to go to that process. 

Administrative Director: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I would ask the director and staff to consider 
maybe doing; not going to registered mail because it’s very cost prohibitive and 
instead doing another way of noticing and then the people that don’t respond 
within 90 days, we just move, we just keep their name on the list but Flag it as 
non-responsive, non-responsive, non-responsive. I’d also like for the director to 
present the boilerplate language to be used for the leases so that the 
commission can review. I’ve asked Shawntel, our real estate advisor here to 
take a look at the lease with a fine-tooth comb to see if that the lease terms are 
up-to-date.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: That’s Nick’s job. (laughter in background) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, Nick always has the final say but you know, you’ve 
been in the industry, you know the language and the terms that are very 
common in best practiced today, so if you could look at the lease the boilerplate 
lease that’s proposed and then also kinda propose your own, add it in and then 
of course we’ll have Nick look at everything. So, I’d like, maybe;  

Commissioner S. Techaira: If I can get that? You have a template for that? 

Administrative Director: Sure, sure. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Just to have a look thru it. 

Administrative Director: I’ll email you.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, what I’d like, okay and then, what I’m hoping right, 
is we don’t go through leasing on a person by person basis, it’s chunks of 
property by chunks of property and this will be her first chunk of property, right? 
So, we have at least 60 and what I’d like is to get at least those; to get the 60 or 
however many lots were gonna lease, bring all of those applicants that have 
accepted the award, bring them all thru the process at the same time, okay; to 
get to the actual awarding and I would also propose, I would also ask the 
Commission and the Director consider awarding on a lottery basis. 

Commissioner A. Santos: Lottery?  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, so rather than servicing each individual and; 

Commissioner A. Santos: That’s a good idea. 



Page 44 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Saying okay here’s a map; what property do you want 
it’s okay; I would ask the Director and the staff to look at the properties and if 
they think it makes sense to kind of allow applicants to decide, oh I wanna be in 
Umatac, then okay they can be in Umatac but then okay they’ll pull a lottery for 
what actual lot they’re going to get. So, it makes sense?  (2:00:57) 

Administrative Director: I’d have to go; I think I have to also talk also; look at the 
language of the current legislation as to what that allows, the declination 
process number one and the ability for them to choose, I just have to make sure 
that we’re going on the same statute and then once I do that, once we figure it 
out will provide a process for you; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, great! 

Administrative Director: That way you can look it over. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, awesome! It’ll be a process, right? For 
identifying; 

Commissioner A. Santos: Land for the landless;  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The applicants on the waiting list will be servicing. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Is there a way that you guys can tell what the land 
is like? Or you already know out of this whole batch there’s only “x” amount to 
work with?  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean, I was just going off of Department of Land 
Management Director’s notes. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Is that down the cliff or whatever, you know? 

Administrative Director: I’m going to be surveying; I’m going to be physically 
going out and looking at the properties anyway and I think that’s our goal is in 
the compilation of what you requested for Ija especially but for all the lots, I 
think that’s important for us to physically look at it and see if its viable and then 
report back and give you back that definitive list of properties and make a lottery 
out of.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Great, great let’s do that. And if you’re out there, can 
you take photographs  

Administrative Director: Of course 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And give us a slide show and see what it looks like. 
And then also, if you’re out there and there are lots that are definitely not 
developable, identify those as well and we can set those aside as conservation. 

Administrative Director: Right, okay. 



Page 45 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so that we’re not revisiting it five years from now 
just to realize again we can’t be leasing it. So along with the process what I’d 
also like to see is like at every step of the process common questions that our 
beneficiaries will have and like very direct and straightforward answers to those 
questions so that the staff is not constantly repeating themselves or sharing 
different kinds of information.  

Administrative Director: Right. Correct. Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And that’s a lot of work, I know that’s a lot of work but I 
know you guys can do it.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: You know what’s awesome about these though? He 
has these notes here I see.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: So how is he able to get like all this information, I 
see sporadic like utilities; I see, I’m sure, I’m sure;  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, yeah. 

Administrative Director: He has a lot of institutional knowledge because he was 
Land Management, Land Trust Director.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: I’m sure he has access to overlays and wouldn’t 
that be helpful if that was included? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. This is just a very initial, let’s get this going but 
I’m hoping; in a subsequent meeting, I’m hoping we’ll have all that information. 
So, I realize it’s going to be a lot of work. I would like to propose that in lieu of 
our first meeting of the month in June we cancel the first meeting of the month 
till the first Thursday; we cancel that so that the staff and director can really 
work to get us where to where need to be with this new leasing process for the 
third meeting of June.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Does that make sense? 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Because I know that you guys do a lot of work to get 
the agenda and all the public noticing out for the first meeting and then all the 
staff is here.  

Administrative Director: Yes. 



Page 46 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, so let’s cancel the first meeting of June, and 
what I’d; but maybe instead of the first meeting in June you send us a progress 
report or drafts of whatever you have so that the commission can review and 
respond prior to having a full presentation in June. Do you think that’s feasible? 

Administrative Director: So, June 6th? So, send it to you by June 6th and send a 
draft forward? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, draft, progress report. 

Administrative Director: And then by the 20th do you want the; is that when the 
actual presentation will be made? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: If yeah; I think you guys, I think you guys could do it! 
What do you think?  

Administrative Director: I think that’s feasible. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Feasible? Okay!  

Commissioner S. Techaira: You’re going on leave, right? 

Administrative Director: Pretty soon, pretty soon.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: So how does that work if he’s on leave? 

Administrative Director: Well I’m on leave but I come in, come in and work still; 
so they’ll be patches of time when I’ll be in, I won’t be completely gone, it’s not 
so I’m going to come in from time to time to make sure that I; you know I 
complete my reports and then I visit the staff and say deadlines, you know 
provide me with; I’m going to back plan 6th June to 20th June, and I’m going to 
back plan so I know exactly when and where, you know, these reports are 
going to be in and what stages. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay.  

Administrative Director: But I won’t leave the commission hanging. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, and you know the June 6th if you don’t have a 
draft, that’s okay, just give us a progress report a progress report. 

Administrative Director: Progress report? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I’d rather you guys take a little time to make it 
stronger than to rush through it but also know that the clocks are ticking. 

Administrative Director:  Oh yeah, yes ma’am. 



Page 47 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, awesome this makes me really excited and I 
think that the commission can move forward to start issuing new leases. We 
just have to set the process now so that there’s no question and I think that 
there’s going to be some policy questions, you know, like how we identified in 
the public law; there’s a lot of ambiguity, so as those ambiguities come up for 
you as you’re going through the process, if you could flag down and present 
them to the commission, so that the commission can make and state on record 
what our policy is for this ambiguity rather than waiting the lot to be amended. I 
think we can set policy at the commission level on how we handle that. Thank 
you. Okay, any other comments about the new, new way forward? Going onto 
New Business, Commercial Leases Status Updates.  

V. NEW BUSINESS
2. Commercial Leases - Status Updates

Administrative Director: KoKo Recycling. They just want; there’s nothing going 
to be in your packet.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Administrative Director: I’m just giving you a verbal updates, and they want to 
continue their tire recycling initiative and program there, so they’ve come in to 
re-initiate that. I met with a representative last week and I’ve advised them to 
give us a timeline and also we’ve advised them to clean up whatever’s already 
there because we took a look at the site, we went for a site visit and there is 
still stuff that needs to be cleaned before they begin any other operations. So, 
they’ve agreed in principle to submit a time line;  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Administrative Director: For their operations and I will give reports to the 
commission based on those time lines.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So is KoKo Recycling, oh yeah right here. So, they’re 
in Barrigada and they’re current? 

Administrative Director: Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, this is the one that went to the legislature; they 
are the ones asking for reimbursement, right; for the typhoon debris and 
recycling  

Administrative Director: Yes, yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But that’s not going anywhere? 

Administrative Director: No. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, but they are currently our Lessee? 

Administrative Director: Yes. 



Page 48 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Nick, would our working with them on this new 
endeavor, I don’t know have any impact on what they’re claiming what is owed 
to them? 

L.C. Toft: I mean, no not yet, it kinda depends on what we; how we do it.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. 

L.C. Toft: Not in it of itself, no.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Administrative Director: With regards to the raceway, actually right here on the; 
there is a separate staff report. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh yeah, okay. 

Administrative Director: So, the raceway is on it, so if you could take a look at 
the staff report for the raceway. So currently these are the facts right now. One 
of the complaints or issues were that they were noncompliant before. Event 
admissions was never being remitted and so that’s why we need to kind of get 
into that with the new lease, right?  In terms of the new lease and make sure 
there are safe guards so that we don’t, that we can prevent this noncompliance 
especially on the event admission of participation fee. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: I don’t understand. What does that mean? 

Administrative Director: That means they we’re holding events and they were 
supposed to give us a part, a portion of those fees, but they never have.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, like $2.00 per ticket that was sold was to come 
to the trust. And then didn’t they just have Smokin’ Wheels? 

Administrative Director: They did. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Do people pay to enter?  

Administrative Director: Absolutely! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Really? 

Administrative Director: Yeah! 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Can’t we just go get all that money? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, they’re still noncompliant?  

Administrative Director: That’s what the issue currently is and that’s why am 
moving into the new lease terms we’re; we’re not you know; I’m not entirely 



Page 49 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
sure how to proceed with their non-compliant, so of course we’re going to get 
the money, but in terms of renewing their lease because I believe it’s up before 
the actual June deadline. So, the commission has maybe like 14 days where 
they can; I don’t know, whether they want to continue the lease for 14 days from 
my understanding.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s not a month to month? I thought were in month to 
month? 
 
L.C. Toft: We were in a month to month but we said not to exceed a year. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, okay, okay, okay. I see, okay, just for the record 
I just want to reiterate here, they’re non-compliant with the existing month to 
month lease and we’re being asked to give them a new lease;  
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: When they’re noncompliant? 
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I suggest you reach out to Mr. Simpson and them and 
say where’s, why;  
 
Administrative Director: Yeah, under Item G, other details, no event admission 
has been paid since March of 2018 so that’s what we’re going to try and seek 
redress for.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 
 
Administrative Director: I did mention it to them in our first meeting, in our initial 
meeting to discuss the new lease was that we have noncompliance issues from 
a previous lease. So, I don’t know whether that precludes us from moving 
forward with any negotiation on a new lease but our thinking, Joey and I’s 
thinking was to prevent this noncompliance we need to put more, and Nick 
chimed in on this too, right, more in their lease that requires them to comply and 
then more that holds them accountable, language that holds them accountable.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, I mean how about what if we just say, “ok you’re 
really terrible at keeping track of your events, so we’re just going to assume you 
do, you would be paying us this much for your events so we’ll just tack it on to 
the rent”. Can we do that? That way we don’t have to check.  
 
Administrative Director: Yeah, and something we can consider, you know any 
arrears or anything that they owe.  
 
L.C. Toft: Well, I think we should make that part of the terms going forward.  
 
Administrative Director: Sure. 



Page 50 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

L.C. Toft: Is, I believe they hired Attorney Cunliff to work with them on this, so I’ll
make it clear that that’s a; it’s part of...(inaudible) before we get to the term’s
current proposal.

Administrative Director: Right! Is that like a written acknowledgment? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Payment for like; to become compliant? As comprised 
to? And you know what, if he doesn’t have numbers, we can put together 
numbers for him that he owes us, right? We could social media, backlog 
everything.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: They know, they know. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: They know! EIF; I’ve been to a concert there, paid fifty 
dollars ($50.00).  

Administrative Director: So that’s our current; we did provide a draft lease there 
for the board’s review. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Thank you. 

Administrative Director: So, the board can review those and see if you have any 
concerns that need to be addressed and again and any draft will go through the 
legal counsel and make sure he figures everything at the top.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, does the property need to be, have an appraisal 
to set the fair market value?  

Commissioner S. Techaira: I think so man, it’s 2019. It’s a different market. 

Administrative Director: I also question how often...(inaudible). 

Commissioner S. Techaira: It’s a beautiful place. That two dollars ($2.00) is a 
little bit low. You might wanna;  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: That was even public law. The public law said two 
dollars ($2.00). 

Administrative Director: I didn’t see any anything in the law. I mean if I’m wrong; 

Commissioner S. Techaira: No, not in the;  

Commissioner S. Techaira: I mean, the way this is working out, it is very one 
sided.  

Administrative Director:  I think in the modest market, they need to provide a fair 
market value. I think the only one was the environmental assessment was the 
one that was required.   



Page 51 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Commissioner S. Techaira: We’ve been working on this for a while. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can we request their audited financial statements 
covering the last three (3) years as we negotiate this lease? 

Commissioner S. Techaira: That’s a good one. 

Administrative Director: Sure. Can we put that down? 

L.C. Toft: Yeah. I think we should.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, let’s do that. 

Administrative Director: So audited financial statement for 2016, 17 and 18 or 
19? 2017 to 19? 2019? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: 2016, 2016. When did we tell them to stop quarrying? 
Do you have a number? 2016, right? Yeah, 16 or 17? I mean I wonder if they’re 
even going to pursue this because the public law says that they can’t do rock, 
what is it? No extractions.  

Administrative Director: No mineral extractions. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, when does the, when does the right of entry or 
month to month or when does the month to month end?  

L.C. Toft: (inaudible)

Joey Cruz: May 31.  

Administrative Director: May 31st. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Well, and then we’re supposed to have a lease 
negotiated by June 18.  

Administrative Director: Yes. 

L.C. Toft: Are we able to get an appraisal performance before then?

Commissioner S. Techaira: I mean, we can rush it. 

(Inaudible conversation amongst the round table)  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It has to be them.  

Administrative Director: It gotta be them. Well when we get a hold of them; we’ll 
signal that then, in my next meeting, you know, we’re gonna talk about the 



Page 52 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

appraisal and we’ll tell them to get their appraisal done because it’s really, you 
know, its dependent upon, the lease is dependent upon that.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, also, how about, shouldn’t we get our own 
appraisal? Is that how are done? Like one party gets their appraisal, we get 
another one?  

L.C. Toft: (inaudible response)

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible)...you get them to pay for theirs, they can 
fix it and vice versa.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Because they’ll just hire whoever...(inaudible) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, right. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: So, it would be better if they get theirs. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right, we would have to get ours too or we set, or we 
just set the rent ourselves. There’s nothing from preventing us to set the rent 
ourselves, right?  

L.C. Toft: Correct.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: I mean, that’s a long lease. They’ve only been in; 

Administrative Director: A monthly rental of $4,000.00. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: $4,000.00? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I mean I know! That’s why we set it ourselves.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah, it really needs to be look up very, very 
carefully. (inaudible)...happening fifty years from now. (inaudible)  

Administrative Director: Joey, are we able to get this appraised ourselves? 

Joey Cruz: We shouldn’t have. It should be the licensee.  

Administrative Director: It should be the licensee, right? To appraise this?  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: They would have to pay for it.  

Administrative Director: Yeah.  



Page 53 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But then also just so we are secured, get our own 
appraisal. 

Joey Cruz: In the past they would require...(inaudible)...by the licensee, then the 
government would choose...(inaudible). 

Administrative Director: But it’s paid for by the licensee, for both. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so both paid but we get to choose the appraiser 
for one of them? Okay, that sounds fair.  

Administrative Director: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Or we just set it ourselves arbitrarily? (long pause) 
Yeah, this is fifty (50) years. Okay, can we revisit this at the May 16th meeting? 

Administrative Director: Sure. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Hopefully by that time you’ve spoken with them, 
expressed our real concerns and then if I can task Commissioner Techaira to 
look at the proposed lease terms and provide comment.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. So that’s to this draft here? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: No, not that one, this one. The proposed CLTC lease 
terms 

Administrative Director: The bigger one. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible) 

Administrative Director: No, no we’re gonna to develop in this format but we just 
wanted to lay it out first.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, so these are together? 

Administrative Director: The draft was the one that they sent, the first one, was 
the one they sent us.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay, gotcha! 

Administrative Director: Then the second one. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: On both pages?  

Administrative Director: Yeah, very short.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible) 



Page 54 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s probably missing some of those, I just think we just 
have to be very, very clear and tough with what the payments are required; 
what recording they had to do. I understand they keep racers off our streets, 
which is so important to the safety of our island. But we also have to consider 
that we have thousands of our applicants waiting for property and; so okay, so 
will revisit Guam Raceway May 16th. 

Administrative Director: Okay, thank you. Okay, so, the commission...(inaudible) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes please. 

Administrative Director: We do have a representative here. The Hal’s Angels 
Football Association has requested through the director’s office to require the 
Guam Rugby Club maintain their access on the Lada Avenue through their 
property rather than through Santa Monica through the Hal’s Angels property. 
So, I spoke and I think with you about it and we’ve given the opportunity to 
sending a letter outlining exactly what the trust did in terms of making sure that, 
that was made hold instead of making it a public access and we’re going to 
send that letter out. We’re having trouble trying to locate the office. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Which one? 

Administrative Director: The Guam Rugby Club’s actual office; we attempted to 
serve. Did you? Okay.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I saw there too that they owe rent? 

Joey Cruz: Guam Rugby? 

Administrative Director: Actually, it’s zero.  

Joey Cruz: Their fee was waived. 

Administrative Director: Yeah, their fee was waived.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Their fee was waived? Oh, I see, it says here. Their 
rate is zero? They pay nothing? 

Joey Cruz: They don’t pay. 

Administrative Director: They don’t pay. Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: You’re kidding! How did that happen? 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah? 

Administrative Director: Yeah, I don’t know. When he put the star reports 
together, we can raise that issue but so I did speak with Mr. Shiroma who is in 



Page 55 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

attendance today and he’s satisfied with us trying to enforce, even myself trying 
to enforce the right of way, their entrance to their facility.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes. 

Administrative Director: We did take a look at the property and he made; Rugby 
Club was moving some of backfield that was in the area on Hal’s Angels 
property, so he told them to please stop, you know that’s not your property but 
they also put concrete poles down to kind of prevent access, you know, to the 
backside or to the vacant field adjacent to the rugby field, so that was a concern 
and then there was also trash in the area. That was not Hal’s responsibility, so 
we’re going to be addressing that to the Rugby Club. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, well, I’ll be honest, when we first spoke about 
this, I think it was last week, right, when I was looking at the agenda. I was 
kinda blown away that what we decided was not followed through and I 
apologize to you, Mr. Shiroma. My assumption was things were going great and 
our decision was followed.  

Administrative Director: Right! I’ve advised also Hal’s to continue to put their 
chain up because they do have a barrier there, but they were being told that 
Rugby comes every weekend and puts down the chain and just goes in. So, I 
might have to do a visit this weekend, you know an official visit this weekend 
while they’re there to make sure that I personally, you know, have seen it and 
tell them about it, you know, advise them about it.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, is it too soon to do a cease and desist and what, 
what, what bearing does their actions have on their lease, Guam Rugby.  

L.C. Toft: I have to see the lease to see what the terms are but yeah, we could
always do a cease and desist at any point.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I say we do a cease and desist because it’s 
been how long since we made the decision. The commission expected it was 
being adhere to, come to find out now it hasn’t been. I think more than we; I’d 
like to issue a cease and desist for the access and if legal counsel could look 
into their lease terms to see if what recourse if any. 

L.C. Toft: Okay.

Administrative Director: I’ll draft a cease and desist letter. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. I mean we made it very clear to them. Their 
access is to be on Lada Avenue. 

Ivan Shiroma: Ma’am.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes? Hi! 



Page 56 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Ivan Shiroma: (inaudible)...follow the order of the new license. Also, the 
waterline that they have is a service line, it’s like PUAG or waterwork’s line. We 
have that running through our property. It’s preventing me from doing any 
trenching for development on our side. So I don’t want to be wrecking their lines 
and be held liable for any issues and even that Mike Borja told me to give them 
almost a year to have them transfer their water line, service line, but they still 
haven’t done that so just wondering if I should call the waterworks and ask 
waterworks to remove their meter because it’s on my property also. I just wanna 
let you guys know that that’s one option that I am taking upon and I just wanna 
let you guys know, so that it shows that I’m not making a good faith effort in 
trying to resolve this issue. I can’t move if that waterline is still on our property. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right. What are his rights as the tenant, as the 
leaseholder?  

L.C. Toft: (inaudible)….as the leaseholder, so, it’s all based on the leases. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It’s all based on the leases? 

L.C. Toft: Yeah.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Administrative Director: Nick, can that; the water line and meter on the cease 
and desist.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Would, would you say we should wait till, we 
have to wait for everything before he can actually; 

L.C. Toft: Well, in the cease and desist, we would give them a time period to
respond.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Can we get the date of the last; that when we 
made the decisions about access?  

Administrative Director: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, we can find how much time has passed. I don’t 
want Hal’s Angels to be waiting another, even a month is too long, after all this 
time. Okay, so a cease and desist about the water meter and the access. 

Administrative Director: Right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right? Okay and then if we put a time limit on the 
cease and desist, what do at the end of the cease and desist? 

L.C. Toft: That’s why we have a check the lease to see what the terms are as
far it’s whole;



Page 57 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so, we’ll check the terms on the lease. Okay, so 
I would urge Hal’s Angels to; I’m sorry give us a little bit more time, we’ll go 
through proper channels and make sure everything is all okay. 

Ivan Shiroma: I’ve been waiting 30 years so we’re fine. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you sir, well I’m glad you came back again, like 
I said I expected things were fine and dandy down there. So, okay. 

Ivan Shiroma: Thank you.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Thank you.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Sorry can we just have your name for the record. My 
name is Ivan Shiroma. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I know you, Mr. Shiroma. Okay, thank you sir.  

Ivan Shiroma: Thank you. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Thank you.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, thank you, okay, yeah moving on. (2:29:00) 

Administrative Director: So, thank you for that email today at 11:30 today.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I know. 

Administrative Director: We had trouble finding out who is in charge of 
Inadahen. I mean we went there and we didn’t see anybody in charge, we 
actually went to the physical location. We saw a field trip going on with school 
students going through. So, we were trying to figure out because we needed to 
get a hold of them, but thank you for that; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Sure. 

Administrative Director: And will put together the draft lease so give us an 
opportunity to do that and make our recommendation with regards to this, but 
the right of entry does still exist, yeah, so that’s the current status right now. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay, yeah, great! I know I thought that was 
good timing too. They only sent it to me.  

Administrative Director: I know, that’s why I was like; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But I know those were the; one of these happen to be 
the one document we were waiting for, so we have that now. 



Page 58 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Administrative Director: Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, the lease; 

T. Jocson: This is for Inadahen, right?

Administrative Director: Right, Inadahen. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So again, the director and staff will develop the lease 
to propose to the Commission and negotiate it with Inadahen I Lina’la. Okay? 

Administrative Director: That’s all we have for New Business ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible discussion with Chairwoman) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I know; So, now let’s move to public comment. 
We’re a little bit early. Would anybody like to provide public comment today? 

Mike Gallo: Good afternoon ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Hi!  

Administrative Director: Please, please so we can get it for the record, sir. 
Thank you. (2:30:41) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, okay. Thank you. Thank you for your patience. 

Mike Gallo: Hi good afternoon ma’am, Board of Commissioners, Director, my 
name is Mike Gallo, this is my brother-in-law Ed. We actually are attending to 
get information; excuse me just before I; 

Administrative Director: Just making sure it’s on; just move it closer to him... 

Commissioner A. Santos: Miracles. 

Mike Gallo: Yes, before I begin to kind of discuss the issues that we were 
concerned about, I just wanted to express our appreciation for the board 
members; hard work it seems like you got a lot of work you gotta try and fix 
things that been done in the past; appreciate the problems that you’re having 
with the finances and budgets, you know, so, it definitely looks like things are 
moving forward which is good to know. We’re actually here because we came 
in to CHamoru Land Trust last week and we were told that there is still a 
continual moratorium on I guess leases with the program and so we were told 
that there is a board meeting that we could attend and possibly get information 
on how things are gonna be moving forward from here. Now it seems like 



Page 59 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

you’ve been given the directive to your director to put together some kind of 
plan. And one of the things and listening to how you’re putting together those 
procedures and I appreciate the fact that you want to be fair and impartial 
where things haven’t been done that way in the past. But one of the things we 
were wondering you might be considered as you make these procedures is 
consideration for siblings coming in that are batched together within that group 
of applicants that submitted in 1995 to get adjacent properties, I guess.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. 

Mike Gallo: I heard about the law which seems to be probably the first way to 
distribute property. And partially so that people don’t get to choose prime lots 
over others. There were also concerns with the way that the application were 
submitted and where those are currently being set because so much time has 
passed that people’s situations have changed with regards to property 
ownership and so I guess my understanding with correct rules are set with if a 
person would like to change the type of application from a residential to 
agriculture because now you own a home, you have to vacate that application 
then start from the beginning. So, if maybe some consideration could be for 
those have initially submitted applications but now because of your situation 
changing that they would not be put on the priority list based on those certain 
standards. So that’s the only concerns that we have; it looks like those things 
might be moving forward which I’m here. I’m not sure if my brother-in-law, this is 
my brother-in-law Ed. I’m not sure if he wanted to add in to that.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Can we get his folder? Edward Unpingco. 

Edward Unpingco: Yes, I was just wondering on the leases because we were 
given leases in the beginning but when we were I guess, when we went to go 
check on it, people were squatting on the borders, so all the borders were 
messed up so they were offering us different lots and I guess we decided to 
come down and check because we kept on going in. It’s just nothing was for 
sure, so we just decided to check how our leases were. As my brother-in-law 
said if you have consideration for just family putting us together, then we want 
that consideration. That’s it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you, thank you for your comments and your 
feedback.  

Commissioner A. Santos: Acres? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeren: Yeah, you know, definitely from switching from 
residential to agricultural, it’s kind of been, it’s been administrative practice that I 
don’t think the board or the commission had the chance to review and put a 
strict policy on how we will handle those but I understand your concern. 24 
years later, you were, you did well for yourself, you got property and now you’re 
gonna be at the bottom of the list, right? So that’s something that I think the 
commission should consider and I hope that would be one of the ambiguities 
that the director will present to us. The upcoming meeting when we talk start 



Page 60 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

talking about these new leases, so we can decide then but I think families sided 
together, if we’re going to use a lottery system how would that work, right? And 
if, I think, maybe it would work if the family that wants to be cited together sit in 
line together, stood in line together because then you would be right after each 
other. Is that the case?  

Mike Gallo: I think that’s the case. It’s sequentially together. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay then, I think in that case it can be a consideration 
that we can kind of work into how we go about awarding and assigning actual 
properties. Okay, if the siblings were not in line together then maybe the sibling, 
further down the list would be eligible for an award until later and so the person 
higher in the line would be given a property and all the adjacent properties 
given at the same time. So, if you guys are standing in line together then that’s 
a possibility. You know I love it with families wanna live adjacent to each other, 
often times we have families coming in here, family squabbles and they are just 
almost ready to kill each other and we have to like. 

Commissioner A. Santos: (inaudible) 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I like that you know you guys want to be cited 
together and you know it’s like family compound, that’s how, that’s how a lot of 
our families are raised you know you live in the same property with our nå’nan 
bi’ha, right. Okay.  

Mike Gallo: Thank you.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Thank you. 

Administrative Director: Thank you very much. 

Mike Gallo: One additional thing I’d; in inquiring last week with regards to the 
switching type of a lease, I know that they mentioned that there was a 
possibility under the current rules, I’m not sure if the rules are going to be 
rewritten but addition again, I’m going to be a senior citizen this year. If I don’t 
get to use a lot soon; (laughter on the table) but one of the things I’m looking at 
is retirement within the Government of Guam with the current retirement 
structure. It dawns on me that I may not be able to live comfortably on just the 
government retirement, I may have to farm and so I was looking at not 
residential but an agricultural where I can eventually also build on to reside. So 
that was the other question that I asked, if I could convert that application to an 
agricultural one so I could do those things? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. I think that definitely needs to be clarified. 
I think the commission needs to clear policy on allowing on allowing those types 
of application transfers.  

Mike Gallo: That’s all I had, thank you. 



Page 61 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you, thank you both for coming and sitting 
through the meeting. 

Mike Gallo: Thanks again.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you. 

Commissioner A. Santos: Thank you. 

Administrative Director: Thank you! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I also have a; I’m guessing Mr. Unpingco, your wife is 
Adelin? Adelin? 

Edward Unpingco: Yes.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, I have a Jennie G. Laguana. 

Edward Unpingco: Yes, that’s my sister. She had to leave to go get her son. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so that’s; you represented all of you? 

Mike Gallo: Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Alright. Thank you because last meeting we had; the 
names went all the way down the list. Oh my gosh! Okay. Okay. Oh, next item 
on the agenda, Commissioner Comments. Tan Amanda, I know you’ve had a 
lot of stuff to say but you’ve been holding back.  

VII. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS

Commissioner A. Santos: (inaudible) But it’s hard to hear. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: How about for the Commission, you can speak to us? 
No? 
Commissioner A. Santos: It’s too long. I wrote it in CHamoru. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, you wrote it in CHamoru? Okay. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Wait, what is it? I can’t wait till later. I think I’m 
important enough to hear this. You can tell us! 

Commissioner A. Santos: Wait, it’s in CHamoru.  

Commissioner S. Techaira: Let’s get a translator. 

T. Jocson: Jessica, she’s a CHamoru teacher.

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh yeah? 



Page 62 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

J. Dayday: No, I’m actually a Land Agent now. (laughter in the background)

Commissioner A. Santos: I’m one of the board members, Mrs. Amanda L.G. 
Santos. I am the mother of the late Angel Santos, the fighter for human rights. 
So, this is what I wrote last night, to get it out of my chest. It says here -- (Letter 
written in CHamoru, translated by Land Agent, Jessica Dayday) Hello, my 
brothers and sisters, on Monday I was reading the Pacific Daily News about 
Peter Rosario’s family.  This really touched me that he had no water on his 
Land Trust property. What are we going to do now about this problem?  This is 
a sad way of living. I am one of the board members and want to help all the 
CHamoru people who don’t have water yet because it is sad to have no water 
at home.  No one can live without water or what? On our Land Trust board 
meeting it was said that we have money from the income tax, but where did it 
go. Many times, it was mentioned that the money was for infrastructure but 
where? Heard the saying “easy to say but hard to do” am I wrong? Every 
meeting my heart cries for the CHamoru people who are trying to make a life for 
their families. I am a mother of nine children, one hundred grand and great 
grand, I have tried suffering. For twenty years I have made a place to stay for 
my family. I have rented a house for my children. What can we do but move 
forward and make a life for our families? One plan I have as a board member, I 
want us to go and wake up the senators and make them hear us.  We will ask 
the Land Trust Chairman to have a public hearing for our Land Trust recipients 
and lessees, they will have to hear all our problems. Once upon a time they 
testified them without confession in public when they voted them to help our 
land for our problems. Last week the boss of Waterworks was given a raise plus 
$10,000.00 bonus. For what? In the Pacific Daily News, they mentioned the 
CHamoru Land Trust Commission budget. There was money for infrastructure 
but then it was taken away and used for another problem. When will see it 
again?  Wake up CHamoru People and let’s see if we can wake up the 
governor too. You are the CHamoru people let's join and protest. May God 
bless the poor, landless, homeless, and helpless. Wake up my brothers and 
sisters. Twenty years people have waited so long. Let’s fix this and move 
forward for our beneficiaries. Without our homelands, we have no identity as 
CHamoru. Am I wrong my brothers and sisters, or am I right? Many CHamoru 
people have questioned me why they haven’t been called about their 
application that was since 1995. I tell them to please have patience because 
there are many problems. One time there was a governor who gave land to 
those who voted for them. I did not know a batch were given because they were 
family and helped with a surveyor. The late Angel L.G. Santos did a good job 
for his CHamoru people. He sacrificed by going on hunger strikes and camped 
out at Adelup every day and night. He sacrificed so much to help the CHamoru 
people who don’t have land at the time. There are some CHamoru’s who are 
tired of waiting for land and by passed on the list.  Some have been waiting 
twenty years back. Yes, this concern may be considered for those who were 
bypassed. I will encourage the Land Trust Board and Mr. Administrative 
Director Hattig to look for vacant land for those to put a roof over their heads 
and their families. So, let’s have patience and ask God to help us with this 
problem. Thank you all, Amanda Santos. It’s all in CHamoru, I’m just practicing.  



Page 63 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Si yu’os ma’ase, Tan Amanda. 

Commissioner A. Santos: I retired from CHamoru studies since 2011. 

Commissioner S. Techaira: Could we make copies of this? 

Administrative Director: May we make a copy so we can include it in the 
attachment? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yes, please! 

Administrative Director: Can you make a copy and bring it back to her? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, Tan Amanda, you brought up so many good 
points, and I’m so glad that you did. The meeting is not over yet, right, right? 
You know you started off because of that article. Mr. Rosario was here last 
month talking about his; he has to bring in the water for his grandbabies and I 
have the chance to read it. Infrastructure we know is one of the biggest 
impediments to allowing our beneficiaries and our lessees to actually live with 
dignity on our land.  

Administrative Director: Right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The last 23-24 years we’ve been giving land when 
there’s no infrastructure or even access. I wanted to ask; I’m going to put Joey 
on the spot again because I know there were some bills passed late last year 
for the sale of government land, so can you tell us how much money we can 
expect to put in our; and I think it goes into our survey and infrastructure fund? 

Joey Cruz: A little over two hundred some thousand. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so we’re looking at possibly over two hundred 
some thousand to add to our current balance, right? And our current balance is; 

Joey Cruz: That’s just our collection to date. It doesn’t include the carry-over 
from…(inaudible). 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, can we get a projected balance for that fund, 
next time. And what I’d like to do is, you know what, we have that money, we’re 
going to have that money now, let’s come with a plan to spend it. I know we talk 
a lot about surveys; I know surveys are great but we can work off of schemes, 
right? At least at this point? What I’d like is; I’m just thinking how we can go 
about identifying properties that need the infrastructure the most, whether it’s 
the staff going out and identifying people actually living on the properties like 
Mr. Rosario that don’t have the infrastructure; finding those properties that 
should invest to get the infrastructure off the greatest benefit for the most 
amount of people. I’d like the Director and staff to put together a proposal, a 
plan for how to use this money that’s coming in for the greatest benefit of our 
beneficiaries. 



Page 64 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Administrative Director: I’m glad you mentioned that Madam Chair. We had 
conversations with Land Admin on how we can best identify the priority for 
survey and infrastructure, so we can present to you, so we just; it’s a long 
process, we have to actually go out into these areas and we have to view. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Could we also ask our lessees to petition us?  
 
Administrative Director: Yes. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: That could be one way;  
 
Administrative Director: There are methods. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right: Yeah, like have them come to us and say, we 
need this, we need this and have everybody in their little neighborhood sign the 
petition and that way, it’s like these guys need it, they’re like coming and 
banging at our door; let’s give it to them because we have money. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Right, right. 
 
Administrative Director: We have some suggestions already in the pipeline, for 
instance identifying an area of a lot of lessees that don’t have access and that’s 
what we can do. We can also put out notices for them, for anyone that’s 
interested in surveying to come forward and request for that survey and actually 
have a line right; a separate line for survey. That you can improve and we can 
move;   
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: What I’d like to see is like lessees in an area to get 
together to petition us. I don’t know; so, it’s on an area basis? 
 
Administrative Director: Right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so can we get that on our radar? 
 
Administrative Director: Sure. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Maybe when we talk next about our Commercial 
Leasing; 
 
Administrative Director: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Let’s also talk about infrastructure and how we plan on 
using that money. You know the meeting’s not over, right? (speaking to PBS) 
 
PBS: I was only told till four. I was told to stay till four. 
 



Page 65 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Oh, okay. Okay, the meeting, okay; maybe just let 
them know or ask them if that, you’re cutting the meeting short or are you 
supposed to stay through the whole meeting? 
 
PBS: That’s what they told me today. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay.  
 
PBS: Four o’clock. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, okay. Thanks. 
 
PBS: Sorry. I just do what I’m instructed to do. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, yeah, yeah, okay. I know; I thought maybe you 
thought it was over. 
 
PBS: No, no, I know it’s not over. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Maybe cuz he stayed too long the last time; comp 
time, comp time. 
 
PBS: They’re flexing my time.  
 
Administrative Director: I think that’s what happens.  
 
PBS: See you guys on the next one. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Alright, thank you. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: (inaudible discussion) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Alright. Thank you. You’re going to have to put a 
disclaimer on the DVD, like; meeting;  
 
PBS: Was still going. (laughter among table) Still going, I just left. (laughter 
continues) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you, have a good day. 
 
Administrative Director: Thanks John. 
 
PBS: You’re welcome. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: (inaudible).... leaving early. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you Tan Amanda for bringing that up. Let’s 
make some real progress here! I feel like we’re, we can actually move forward 
and make progress. 



Page 66 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Just to help those people that are crying.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Right? We have to help. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Yeah. Those who have no access to their land trust.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And then I wonder if there’s some way, as we’re kinda 
putting this plan together, let’s start talking to GPA, GWA and see, like, hey if 
we’re gonna invest two hundred thousand dollars, maybe they’ll reduce their 
rates? 
 
Administrative Director: That was my next; as I mentioned in our comments; in 
the media; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, yeah. 
 
Administrative Director: We already have plans, we just gotta wait for the board 
to approve that and move forward.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, yeah, let’s engage. And I’d also like you to 
engage with the trash company; 
 
Administrative Director: Sure, sure. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Because I know that trash collection our properties is 
the very minimal but we all know people live and generate trash.  
 
Administrative Director: Right.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, if there’s some way we can build in to our leases, 
even for these new leases; build in our leases some kind of trash pick-up, 
service; 
 
Administrative Director: Service;  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: That they will be paying on top of the ninety-nine-year 
lease; ninety-nine dollars. 
 
Administrative Director: Sure. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Trash is expensive that’s why I’m not shocked that 
people are not disposing properly. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: It is expensive. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: You have to make tough choices; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah. 



Page 67 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: What goes on the plate. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: But maybe if we go to them and say hey, we have 
sixty properties; I don’t know; something like that. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Yeah nai, like arrangement.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, we can make an arrangement for trash. Okay, 
okay. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Cuz some cannot have their homes built because of 
trash. They need to be charged! 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, yeah. So, that’s just protecting our island 
environment, you know? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: True, true. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: You know, you’re doing something with the trash. 
Okay, any other comments from the Commissioners? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: I just wish I could fully understand the whole; 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The CHamoru? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Yeah.  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Tell her. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I can help you. We could go thru it after the meeting. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Okay. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, cuz she wrote it down. I did get a note from Vice 
Chair Cruz that he’s likely not going to be renewing his role as commissioner 
and I think his already lapsed within the ninety (90) days; okay, he mentioned 
he will be. So, I’d like us to start thinking if there’s any, anyone you might 
recommend. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Interested. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: We can discuss and forward name to the Governor. I 
think we could really use some financial prowess on the board. I know 
Shawntel, you’re my real estate prowess; he was actually our land 
administration prowess 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Who, si Duenas? 
 



Page 68 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: No, Cruz,  
 
Commissioner A. Santos: Ah, si Cruz.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: So, if there’s somebody else. I’m talking to everybody, 
you know, if there’s somebody out there you know, that will be willing to step up 
and serve as a commissioner that has that understanding of land 
administration, that would be great to replace him. 
 
Administrative Director: So, we could have somebody that’s had the opportunity 
to serve as a mayor. I mean really as a voice of the people, a voice of the 
lessee. Because we’ve come across a lot of lessees with regional issues in 
municipalities. So, maybe it would be beneficial for us to have a former mayor, 
a retired mayor, maybe somebody of the land that might be able to help us out 
in terms of the lessee.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, great ideas. Okay, so yeah, let’s start thinking 
because we don't wanna fall short. 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: (inaudible) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: The what? 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: The quorum, right. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Yeah, I don’t want that to be an issue. For a long time, 
we were two people short. So, okay. Any other comments. So, our next meeting 
is Thursday, May 16th at 1:00PM. That’s the one where we’re going to be 
looking at a lot of constituent matters.  
 
Administrative Director: Yeah.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: And how many more meetings before I’ll illegal to 
be attending? I just don’t want to be coming at the wrong time. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I know! Ninety days, so that’s three months. 
 
Administrative Director: Ninety days from April 4th. 
 
T. Jocson: April 9. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: April 9, so; 
 
Administrative Director: Ninety days from April 9th. 
 
Commissioner A. Santos: When is the next meeting? May 16? 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: May 16; so May, June, July 9th.  So June would be; are 
you not renewing? Are you not gonna;  



Page 69 of 69 
CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 

05.02.2019 

 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: I don’t believe I’ll be on island. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay 
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: I might be…(inaudible) 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay. Okay. Motion to adjourn.  
 
Commissioner S. Techaira: Motion to adjourn.  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: This meeting is adjourned.  
 
Administrative Director: Thank you very much everybody. 
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Thank you everybody. I can’t believe it! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ Chamoru 
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission) 

 

        P.O. Box 2950 Hagåtña, Guåhan 96932      Phone: 649-5263 Ext. 400   Fax: 649-5383 

 
 

 
 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero 

Governor  

 
 

Joshua F. Tenorio 

Lieutenant Governor  
 

 

 
 

Commission Members 
 
 

G. Pika Fejeran 

Chairwoman 
 
 

Joseph I. Cruz 

Vice-Chairman 
 
 

Amanda L.G. Santos 
Commissioner 

 
 

Austin J. Duenas 
 Commissioner 

 
 

Shawntel L. Techaira 
 Commissioner 

 
 

Jack E. Hattig III 

Administrative Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Rev. 02/4/2019 

 

 
 

05/16/2019 
COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Department of Land Management Conference Room 
3rd. Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning 

 

Thursday, May 16, 2019 from 1:06pm – 5:17pm 
Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on May 9, 2019 and May 14, 2019 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran called the Chamorro Land Trust Meeting to order at 
1:06pm 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Notation of Attendance 
Present were: Chairwoman P. Fejeran, Commissioner Santos, Commissioner 
Techaira, Legal Counsel Nicolas Toft 
 

Absent: Vice Chairman Joe Cruz and Commissioner Austin Duenas  
 
Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hafa adai everybody, I would like to call this CHamoru Land 
Trust Commission Meeting to order, the time is now 1:06 p.m.  This Commission 
meeting was, public notice was provided in the Guam Daily Post, on May 9, and on 
May 14.  Before we begin, I would like us to rise to state the Inifresi. 
 
All:  Reciting Inifresi (Guam Pledge). 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Biba CHamoru! 

All:  Biba! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Biba CHamoru! 

All:  Biba! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Biba ta! 

All:  Biba! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Si yu’os ma’ase.  So, we like to say the Inifresi before we 

begin every Commission meeting to remind ourselves as commissioners and 

everybody in the room with us of our mission to protect our properties.  I’d like to call 

roll; I have Commissioner Amanda Santos. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Here 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Legal Counsel Nicolas Toft 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Here 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Our Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz is out, as well as Austin 

Duenas, our other commissioner.  Shawntel Techaira is here but she had to step out 



 

 
Page 2 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

for a moment, she will be right back.  So, umm…I just received word that Director 

Hattig is not joining us today, umm…yes, he ah, he just had a new addition to the 

family.  So, he is taking time with wife and his new baby, so.  Congratulations to them.  

Umm…I do have the staff here with me today and they will be able to speak on many 

of the matters the director otherwise would have spoken on.  Umm…and I also have 

been assured that ah, extensive notes will be taken and shared with the director upon 

his return.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Jhoana? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Yes ma’am.    

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you.  Okay, going down the agenda, the next item is 

approval of minutes, and we had presented in our packets, the March 21 meeting 

minutes.  This is the second time we’ve reviewed this.  Umm…the last time, we 

requested several, umm…revision and it looks like the revisions were added in.  

Umm…I did find some typos in like umm…just formatting issues.  Those are pretty 

minor, nothing substantive.  Has the commission, had a chance to review these revised 

minutes?   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  No, I haven’t. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, that’s okay.  I can, umm…it’s really just spacing and 

just two typos.  I think with the umm… incorporation from those revisions, I have no 

comments, other comments.  Okay, okay.  Mmmhmm… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve minutes from March twenty-one, twenty 

nineteen.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, a motion has been made and second it to approve the 

minutes from March twenty first, no further discussion?  All those in favor? 

Commissioner A. Santos/Commissioner S. Techaira:  Aye 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, aye has it.  Okay, thank you.  Umm…the next agenda 

item is old business; we have administrative matters.  But first is the UOG boundary 

proposal, bill no. 76-35, this is in regard to Lot 5412-11 in Fidian.  So, what was 

included in our packet was the bill.  Is that right?  The proposed bill? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah, did you get the Director’s Report?  Jhoana? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  I just need to make a copy. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  We will wait for the Director’s Report.  Okay, stand by.  

Thank you, okay, we have the Director’s Report for the UOG Hatchery.  In the 

Director’s Report, there is a timeline.  Umm…it will take a minute to review this.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  What is AD? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  AD is Administrative Director. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Oh.   



 

 
Page 3 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, the last time we visited this subject was at our, 

looks like, umm…May ninth, was it May ninth Commission meeting?  No.  Okay, May 

ninth, oh no May second, May second, Commission meeting.  Where we reviewed the 

Bill and we directed the Administrative Director to draft a board Resolution, that would 

require appraisal, appraisals to be done on the property, the cost to be borne by the 

UOG, cost to be borne by the UOG for the transfer, and, and that we would require 

payment for the property.  Right?  So, then it looks like he had a meeting with UOG 

and the Governor.  Are you able to speak about that meet, this?  Or is that just the 

Director’s input?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  He just asked that you consider the recommendation. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, the Director’s recommendation is…So, the 

proposed Legislation has nothing in there, even describing the land, CHamoru Land 

Trust property, it says nothing about umm…the taking of that land does for the Land 

Trust.  If we are going to be reimbursed for the land, or they are going to pay for it.  So, 

it looks like, all we have is this proposed bill, 76-35.  Nick, can we do this? 

Legal Counsel N. Toft: I mean, I agree with the Director, if it continues as just a 

boundary correction, we need to propose it and bring our concerns to the Legislature.  

It’s basically siezing it is Land Trust property without compensation. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  That makes sense to me, I mean, tried to work with 

them the Director had several meetings with them. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  We, we just need to be on top of it, it looks like he met with 

them today, ***phone ringing*** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well, umm…a future amendment will be nice, but at this 

point, there is nothing on the table for us to support.  I believe, the only thing on the 

table is this bill, as a legal counsel said it is basically seizing Land Trust property 

without any compensation.  So, I don’t know, I think everything on the table is just 

basically this Bill.  Umm…I do not believe that the Commission supports this Bill, in fact 

we oppose it as it is currently drafted.  Okay, so umm…should we just motion or ask 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I don’t think we need a resolution 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I think we should wait another week or two.  If things do break 

down, let’s meet again.  It looks like things are preceding the way we want them to.  

We just haven’t seen anything down on paper yet.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, that makes me uneasy because I don’t know, maybe 

we might not have quorum next time where we as a group can decide and maybe 

oppose it.  Is there some way we can document it?   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Yeah, it could work.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  We can do it. 



 

 
Page 4 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  What should it say? 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Simple Resolution saying, at this time we oppose this Bill, in its 

current form. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, but we hope that there’s future, umm…cooperation to 

reach a  

Legal Counsel N. Toft:   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, what’s beneficial.  Okay, I would be happy with that.  

Umm…Resolution.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Do we make the motion or just a Resolution to the Bill? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Umm… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well I think, what we can say is umm…maybe we can let the 

Administrative Director our position, that if this current meeting or current discussion 

would be our policy, if that breaks down then he has our direction to prepare this 

resolution.   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Yup, that will work. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, it will 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  The Resolution  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, for the Administrative Director, our direction will be, 

should current, umm…what is it?  Discussion?  Okay, with policy team, the Adalup 

policy team, not reach our previously stated  

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Goals. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Goals.  Then he has the authority to draft a Resolution and 

opposing the Bill.  Opposing Bill 76-35, okay, and we don’t need a motion for that or 

anything? 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Just on the record as a direction to the Director. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, thank you.  Okay, well I’m, I’m hopeful.  I’m optimistic 

that we won’t have to go that route.  I’m sure they hear us, and they want to work as 

fairly with us as we want to with them.  Okay, any other discussion before we move 

on?  Okay, next item on the agenda is the former Land for the Landless properties, 

ready for leasing.  So, umm on the last meeting we directed the Director to look at all 

the properties that were given back to the Trust from Land for the Landless program.  

And just on our tabletop view of this properties, there are at least six lots that umm 

have the infrastructure ready to be develop for Residential leases.  Umm but before we 

can actually get to the process of going down our waiting list and identifying 



 

 
Page 5 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

beneficiaries, that would receive these properties, we asked the Director and the staff 

to put together a, what is it, like a standard operating procedure for how they are going 

to go about this leasing process.  Then we also asked them to umm look further into all 

of the properties and get a firm number of properties that are, have the umm 

infrastructure needed.  So, I think this is on our agenda.  Is there a status update?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Okay, basically what we did was, we’re ah, still drafting 

the SOP, we’ve had the survey division, ah, identify all the properties on an aerial, 

identified all the properties on an aerial, together with a Lidar to show, to at least let us 

know which properties are developable.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Umm…according to them they were not able to umm 

identify them, based on the tabletop.  They wanted to go out and do a physical 

inspection of each of these properties, so, that’s our next step.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, umm, about hundred and seventy-seven lots were 

transferred to the Trust, but at our last meeting I know we discussed that sixty of them 

may only be, probably be identified as usable property.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  But we will go ahead and have those firm numbers for 

you in the June 20, right?  I think that was our target date.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That was our target date. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Was to come up with the whole assessment.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, we will go ahead and have the SOP put together on 

that date and also the final assessment of the all the properties. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh okay.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  How do you pick all the people that apply? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well we have to follow the rules and regulations.  So, first 

come, first serve. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  First come, first serve. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And also, must be priority one, meaning the own no property.  

So, those will be the first people we reach to get these loans, leases.  So, we are still 

looking at June 20,  

Land Administrator M. Borja:  June 20th is a target date to finalize a SOP, on how we 

are going to move forward.  And the assessment of the properties.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 



 

 
Page 6 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Based on the aerial, overlay that we have, we identified 

probably about two, that have occupants.  So, we still need to go out there, revisit that, 

find out who they are, not sure if they are the ah, applicants under the Land for the 

landless were awarded the property, and whether or not they qualify, those are the 

things we need to look at.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  ahh… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  And put together as far as our SOP, so far there are two, 

occupants, and don’t know whether or not they’re applicants for the Trust and if they 

are not, how are we going to move forward and if they are qualified. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  I don’t know if they are pre occupier’s status, we just 

need to get all that information.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  But we will have all of that by the twentieth.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, I’d like to ask that as the team is really going out and 

looking at these properties, that you also put together a SOP, for how you’re reviewing 

the properties.  So that, we know that these are not the only lots we are looking at and 

trying to figure out what’s going on there.  So, if we can have a SOP that, how your, I 

guess, you’re checking inventory, right.  You’re inventorying it, what kind of things that 

you would come across, and how we will handle it.  Cause I’d really like to use this 

leasing process for like land for the landless be our pilot program.  Set all the policies, 

set all the procedures, so that we can apply it to the other subdivisions that we have.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  I think we should make like a fraction of the umm 

inspection checklist. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, uh ha, I know you guys have seen inspection 

checklists, but is there, I think that’s very like “Lot” specific, right.  Is there like another 

area, another tool you guys could use, umm when you’re doing that.  Right? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Property development. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  So, basically everything you guys are doing, 

document it, and put it on the SOP so that we understand your step by step process.   

Land Administrator M. Borja: 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Land Administrator M. Borja: 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you, okay, umm did you guys have any other 

questions?  Okay, let’s move on down the agenda.  Moving along nice and quick today.  

Umm financial report.  Need to print status update.  Joey are you here to present to 

us?  Hi Joey.   



 

 
Page 7 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  Our last minute, you wanted an update on the Survey 

Infrastructure Fund. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes. 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  So, what you have in front of you is a print out of the 

government’s accounting system by DOA.  The general ledger account, our balances.  

So, the Government of Guam hasn’t closed the books for the second part of FY 2018.  

Between January and present or May.  We collected about a hundred, forty-two 

thousand, one hundred twenty-six dollars and twenty-four cents in revenues.  Although, 

if you look at CLTC’s Survey Infrastructure’s Fund, the second line item.  Out of that 

hundred forty-two thousand dollars, they only deposited fifty-two cents to the bank.  

The rest has been recorded as a receivable.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  From the Government of Guam.  So, we’ve been 

tracking it and that’s been deposited  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, can you speak up.  They can’t hear.   

Audience Member:  We haven’t been hearing anything since you started discussions.  

Can we please hear what he is saying? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, sorry.  Yeah can you please speak into.  We will try to 

speak up, I’m sorry about that. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Yeah.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, umm Mr. Joey Cruz is our Program Coordinator.  He’s 

talking about our current funding and balances.   

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  For the Survey Infrastructure Fund.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  For the Survey Infrastructure Fund it is about one thousand, 

four hundred, fifteen dollars.   

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  That’s the balance  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The balance? 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  What’s owed by the Government of Guam, a total of one 

hundred eighty-nine thousand, four hundred thirty-nine dollars and fifty-nine cents.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, we expect that to be deposited into the Survey 

Infrastructure Fund? 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  Hopefully. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hopefully? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  How long has that been sitting as account receivable from 

the general fund?   

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  Last year. 



 

 
Page 8 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Last Year? 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  The only reason why this year we elected from the FY 

2019, audit did a write off, because they do show some kind of remittance payment, 

but it’s only the interest earned.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  So, this year if there’s no money remitted, substantial 

amount, they have to advise you guys  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, we can’t do that.  So, how do we move the money to 

where it should be deposited? 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  When I consulted with Attorney Toft, since the board 

has the ability to spend money just through Resolution, we can create the proper 

accounts needed, on the books it doesn’t say there’s money in the bank, but there’s a 

receivable from the Government of Guam. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh okay,  

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  So, we can offset it; 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  We can start sending 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well that makes sense.  Umm, so that means, that will 

be about, a hundred and ninety thousand dollars, for Survey and Infrastructure Fund? 

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  So, for FY twenty nineteen, we’re gonna lose seven 

thousand dollars.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, we have two hundred, twenty thousand dollars.   

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  Yes, ma’am 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That we can spend for survey or infrastructure for our 

properties.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Yeah that’s right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s great, awesome.  Yes, that’s wonderful.  Okay, well I 

appreciate you presenting this.  Ummm, let’s get started, let’s get those accounts 

created so that we can use that money.  Umm… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I never see it.  it can go out to the people. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, so now we need to umm, we need to determine umm, 

how and where we are going to use this money.  Okay, umm, I’d like for some 

proposals from the staff.  They are very aware of our inventory, umm, where can we 

invest this money, how can we invest this money.  For the maximum benefit for our 

beneficiaries.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  In audible.   



 

 
Page 9 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  Okay, umm, well I’d like the proposals.  Umm, at the 

next commission meeting.   

Program Coordinator J. Cruz:  Third week of June? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, June twentieth.  You know, we’ve heard from so many 

of our beneficiaries that they’re living on their properties, and they don’t even, they 

can’t  

Commissioner A. Santos:  Can’t get water. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  They can’t get water, they don’t have power, we have money, 

let’s use it.  we’ve seen before when there was money in our account that was not 

umm spent, it was just taken out from us, so.  We’ve got to move quickly, but also think 

about how we’re going to fairly use this money, right.  And we have to be very 

transparent about it, and what is the highest best use for the money.  Okay.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  They transferred it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, well they actually haven’t transferred to us, yet we’re 

calling it. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  We’re entitled to it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, we’re calling it accounts receivable.  Okay, let’s move, 

thanks. Joey.   

Program Coordinator J.Cruz:  Thank you 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s all for today?  Okay, awesome.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Thanks Joey. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so next item on the agenda is new business.  For 

constituent matters, we have request for loan guaranty, the first case we are looking at 

is for a Julia SA Quinene and a Jesusa Santos Chavez.  It’s an SBA loan guaranty, 

approval request for eighty-nine thousand, one hundred dollars.  They are currently 

occupying their property, they are a December second, two thousand nineteen 

applicants.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Can we make a correction, they are a December second, 

nineteen ninety-five. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, okay, December second, nineteen ninety-five.  Not two 

thousand nineteen.  Ah, yeah come on up.  I’m just going to talk through this.  So, 

nineteen ninety-five applicant, this applicant has a Land Use Permit Number, for 

property in Dededo.  So, the first lease was issued in two thousand, and recorded in 

two thousand five.  This is the first time I’ve seen a mother and daughter on the lease.  

Can we have this file, please?  Oh, and I asked for the guaranty docs.  The guaranty 

docs? 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  I did mention it to the land agent. 



 

 
Page 10 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Do you have it?  Ah, thank you.  Okay, so, this is for 

SBA Disaster Loan.   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  This was all that was submitted. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Did you request for the…inaudible. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Eighty-nine thousand dollars,  

Land Agent Tina Jocson:  Can we get the audience to be quiet in the back.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, hi.  Please state your name for the record, yeah. 

Julia Quinene:  Hafa adai, my name is, is it on?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is it on? 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  It is on. 

Julia Quinene:  Maybe I’m just not speaking loud enough. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Now, now it’s on. 

Julia Quinene:  Hafa adai, my name is Julia San Agustin Quinene, also representing 

my mom, Jesusa Santos Chavez.  From the last minute, I was here to just move 

forward.  I was on hold because of the guaranty that I needed from Land Trust and that 

is why I’m sitting waiting to move forward.  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you.  Umm, were you at our umm,  

Julia Quinene:  My name wasn’t on the last meeting; I was asked to come in.  The said 

it was but I was really too busy. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh man.  I’m so sorry. 

Julia Quinene:  inaudible 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Did you give public comment? 

Julia Quinene:  Yes, I did. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, now you’re here.  We have the loan documents.  

Umm, did the commission have a chance to review?  Okay, did you have any other 

documents?  Umm, for the loan authorization and agreement?  Do you have…because 

we only have pages one and two. 

Julia Quinene:  Jessica, I gave it to you, all the copies. 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  These are all the documents that she gave me. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Do you have anything? 

Julia Quinene:  Yes, I do.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, can we take a look at that.   



 

 
Page 11 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

***conversations*** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Julia Quinene:  What is it, chairwoman that you’re looking for? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  ahh, I just want to see… 

Julia Quinene:  The latest letter, the latest letter I had was  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Trying to confirm  

Julia Quinene:  They are still going to go through the loan, but because of the hold up 

with my documents from Land Trust, had to extend my, but she is waiting for me today, 

to get back with her.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, 

Julia Quinene:  To see what’s the status.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay, so, umm, can you describe for us what the loan 

will be used for? 

Julia Quinene:  Yes, umm, well, I am just frustrated and tired every time there’s a 

storm.  And umm, I am living in a container right now and the foundation is getting all 

rusted already and inside the rain coming, we had to replace the roof.  Yeah, every 

time we put a frame on the top, it blows again.  The way they constructed it on the 

container in the middle part where it’s cut in half, whenever that “A” frame flies away, 

the water comes dripping in.  And there was a time when I couldn’t afford to, you know, 

get a loan and all that, I had to put a bucket and empty all the water.  It was like a 

serenity to me cause it was dripping into the bucket.  But it’s all good.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I love your positive outlook.  I love that. 

Julia Quinene:  And it paid off.  Well I don’t, I just kept strong and kept on going.  It’s 

something you got to do.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, you’d be using the umm, money to… 

Julia Quinene:  To build a, you know… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A Permanent structure. 

Julia Quinene:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, this is for you and your mother? 

Julia Quinene:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, umm…just wanted to see if legal counsel had a 

chance to review the umm, loan document? 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Yeah 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is there anything that we would umm, look out for?  I mean, 

this is, we’d approve other SBA loans for the same purpose. 



 

 
Page 12 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  The same as the previous. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  No, it’s all umm, it’s pretty straight forward.  It says 

umm, I didn’t see the  

Julia Quinene:  Yes, and I didn’t want to keep repairing and repairing. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, better to start over. 

Julia Quinene:  All and my mom and her age, it’s not healthy for her, so.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And you have power and water? 

Julia Quinene:  Yes, yeah, actually there’s a structure on the corner.  Just waiting on 

that, so. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Do you want to see the estimate?  Or that one. 

That’s fine. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, there you go. 

Julia Quinene:  inaudible. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It is, and are those fruit trees 

Julia Quinene:  Yes, the lemon, and I’m trying to…cause if that typhoon hits I’m 

*inaudible* falls right on top of my house and I just want to get rid of the top of part 

also, so, behind that, that’s also the only place that when it rains I notice that when 

there’s a storm, right where the lemai floods, it gets really bad, so, that back part where 

my storage I will have it there. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you’re going to build here. 

Julia Quinene:  Yeah, that way my brother can look over me and mama so.  So, cause 

you know the road there is a terrible road there.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well I want to thank you for keeping your property so nice 

and living on it.  It stands.  Yeah, unfortunately we see many of our properties soiled 

the trash, you’re really doing  

Julia Quinene:  Pick up the trash, it’s not going to pick up itself.  Ah, thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Umm, so, legal counsels reviewed the umm, SBA loan 

document, so he said it stands.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve SBA Loan Guaranty approval for 

eighty-nine thousand, one hundred dollars, for Julia S.A. Quinene and Jesusa Santos 

Chavez, for Lot 7, Block 1, within Agricultural Subdivision tract 10125, Dededo for two 

thousand square meters.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, a motion has been made. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And seconded it.  Further discussion?   



 

 
Page 13 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioners/Legal counsel N. Toft:  Nothing. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  All those in favor. 

Commissioners:  I. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay,  

**clapping** 

Julia Quinene:  I just want to thank Land Trust because it’s been since January 

patiently waiting and doing my part also always following up, I appreciate, and you all 

deserve a praise.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, thank you ma’am, and I will give this copy back to you.  

Can I have the staff just make a copy.  Okay, wonderful.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think she’s rebuilding, yeah.  I don’t know, I didn’t ask.  I 

don’t think she’s gotten that far.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Based on her comment.  If somebody’s interested,  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Dispensa Ms. Quinene, so ah, Tan Amanda is asking, how 

many bedrooms?  Two, two bedrooms.  Perfect, here.  Actually, she brought up a good 

point,  

Julia Quinene:  Right now, it’s two-bedroom, two restrooms.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Julia Quinene:  So, my mom, right now, I’m trying to make it for disable.  Right now, it’s 

hard for her.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Umm, it didn’t look like there were any building plans.  You’re 

not at the building plans phase yet, are you? 

Julia Quinene:  No.  Not yet, I’m going step by step.  Now my next step is to get a hold 

of SBA and then find an insurance before anything else. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, just to give you a look into the future, when you do 

have your building plans ready, you have to come back to us and present it to us for 

approval.  Okay, okay, thank you.   

ITC Security:  Excuse me, are there anyone parked in the third-floor parking?  Any 

vehicles in the parking lot?  The employees don’t have any parking.   

Audience Member:  What car?   

ITC Security:  Anyone parked upstairs on the third floor?  Right outside.   

Audience Member:  Yup, yes. 

ITC Security:  Please move your vehicles to the parking lot downstairs.  The public 

parking lots.   

Audience Member:  Why? 



 

 
Page 14 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

ITC Security:  This is employee parking lot.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Downstairs.   

Audience Member:  Hold, because there’s no sign there that says employees.  There’s 

no sign on the, you know, the rock.  The step there, yeah.  Yeah, the pavement, 

whatever you call it.  There’s no name on it.  That’s where we parked.  We didn’t park 

on the employees parking.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You have a parking permit? 

ITC Security:  That’s employees parking ma’am, that’s all I am trying to tell you.   

Audience Member:  Oh, I am sorry that it didn’t say for employees only.  I’m sorry. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Are you towing cars? 

ITC Security:  No, it’s just that Land Management  

Audience Member:  Hey!  Wait a minute here.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I mean they are here for a commission meeting.   

Audience Member:  There are disabled people in here.  That have to walk in here and 

there is no handicap parking.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Maybe you can check the Land Management Records 

Division, maybe, some of those people are actually sitting working all day.   

Audience:  There is no parking downstairs.   

ITC Security:  There is no parking in the Land Management spots.  As far as the 

GEDA, there are no spots available.   

Audience:  We don’t want to leave and they are going to continue talking and I am not 

going to hear what you have to say, so.  Can you just wait until tomorrow?  You know 

the parking nai. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I’m sorry, I think you need to take it up with the security, it’s a 

building issue.  Sir, can you have a private conversation. 

ITC Security:  If it is GEDA spots, you would have to move your car.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Can you show them, cause they’re not aware?   

ITC Securtiy:  If you are parked in a spot marked GEDA, please move your vehicle.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you.   

**multiple conversations** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, I’d like to move down the agenda again, umm.  The 

next business item is request for addendum.  That’s actually a request for loan 

guaranty.  Alright, okay, so, this is Antonio Eustaquio.  I see a staff report.  This 

individual is a December ninth, nineteen, ninety-five applicant.  Umm, in two thousand 

fifteen, or two thousand five, there was Survey Authorization, a Utilities Application, 



 

 
Page 15 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

another Survey Authorization, then finally in two thousand fifteen, an Agricultural 

Lease.  Okay, so this is for Lot four dash two, Tract one, one, one, two, in Dededo.  

There’s a loan guaranty request for thirty-one thousand, seven hundred and one 

dollars.  And does everybody have that?   

Commissioners/Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you, Jessica.  Okay, so, we have the same thing as 

the loan documents.  In Dededo.  Do we have, umm, the beneficiary here?  Lessee?  

Mr. Eustaquio.  Not here? 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  He’s not able to make it in.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, no problem, I just wanted to give him an opportunity to 

join us.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  This is a lower amount, Pika, this a lower amount. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, this money would be used repair, replace disaster 

damage personal property.  In similar kind and quantity for disaster clean up debris 

removal and expenses.  To repair and replace damaged other land improvements.  

Such as driveway, septic system, etc.  and twenty-three, five hundred to repair disaster 

damage real estate, in accordance to a class “A” standard described by the Guam 

Typhoon Terra.  And as legal counsels going over that, submit of real estate lease.   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Was there inspection of the property?   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Yes 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  They just inspected it, yesterday. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  It was locked so we weren’t able to go in, but we did take some 

pictures.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is he currently occupying? 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, Okay. 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  He does have some plants and…it’s in the copy.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, Okay, the inspection report?   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  The pictures. 

Chairwoman P. fejeran:  Oh pictures.  Oh man, and you’ve been in touch with him 

because the letter is dated in January, says he had sixty days.  Has he gotten an 

extension? 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Yes.  Due to health conditions, he’s not able to come in.   



 

 
Page 16 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, but are these loan documents valid?   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  No, she said that the…okay.  Yeah and again this is 

one of our lessees, that is utilizing the property for its intended use, wants to improve it 

and taking advantage of these low, very low loans from the SBA.  Nick could you look 

at page one.  Ah, let’s see, this one the loan authorization and agreement, the 

collateral.  The collateral is a mortgage?  Held by bank of, Bank Pacific.  On that 

property?  I don’t know can you check it?  Umm, next page.  Yeah, where it says 

collateral.  What does that mean?  Do you know what that is?  Does he have a loan 

from Bank Pacific for building his home?   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  He has a residential also.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Residential what? 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  He has a house.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  He has another house?   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Yes 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Private property. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  This is the same lot.   

Land Administrator:  No, no, no, she’s asking, it’s indicating on the loan authorization 

agreement, there’s a collateral from Bank Pacific.   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  That’s together with his wife.  So, I am not sure if that’s his 

wife’s own.  It was kind of difficult to speak to… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Is there another loan document?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Can you call him?  Have you ever seen, I mean **inaudible 

and it looks like there’s a… 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  There’s a clause.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Looks like a mortgage.  Existent. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  The same lot, ***inaudible*** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, there are some pictures.   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  That’s odd, it’s with Bank Pacific. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, and Bank Pacific has to come to us for approvals 

because we are the landowners.   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I don’t think so. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And they have a lease 



 

 
Page 17 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Yeah, that’s what I was thinking.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I think in our documents; he wouldn’t be able to sign in that 

way. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Or maybe is it saying that  

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  It’s not entirely  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I’m just kind of guessing, basically.  It’s written.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I mean if they have another, I don’t know.   

Land Agent J. Dayday: (on phone) Mr. Eustaquio,  

Mr. Eustaquio:  Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hafa adai, Mr. Eustaquio.  Umm, I’m glad that we can call 

you on the phone, I understand that you are unable to come, due to health reasons, 

okay.  Sir, we’re looking at your SBA loan, umm, loan documents and we had a 

question about the collateral that was offered for the loan.   

Mr. Eustaquio:  What collateral?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, do you have the documents in front of you?   

Mr. Eustaquio:  No, I don’t have any documents but ah, I think the ah, **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, do you have a mortgage on the house?  What is this 

Bank Pacific loan?  Do you have a Bank Pacific loan? 

Mr. Eustaquio:  No, I don’t have any.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  haa… 

Mr. Eustaquio:  I don’t have any. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay, well, ahh, I guess we’ve just have questions 

about the collateral for the loan.   

Mr. Eustaquio:  Yeah, I don’t know, I don’t have any  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  I don’t know.  What do we do, I mean I… 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Well, the best bet is what the loan guaranty for.   

Mr. Eustaquio:  Who is this?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay sir we’re going to look at your documents a little 

bit more and our staff will be in touch with you.   

Mr. Eustaquio:  Oh, a, by the way. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes. 



 

 
Page 18 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Who am I speaking to? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, my name is Pika Fejeran, I’m the chairwoman of the 

commission.  This is the first time I’ve ever called somebody during our meetings, so. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Who am I speaking to? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Umm, my name is Pika Fejeran, I’m the chairwoman of the 

commission.   

Mr. Eustaquio:  Oh, Pika.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hungan 

Mr. Eustaquio:  You,  is your father?   

Everyone laughs 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hungan. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Me and your father used to work at the Public Health.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, he works with my dad. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  How’s he doing? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  He’s doing well, thank you. 

**Multiple conversations** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, sir, that is.  Mr. Eustaquio. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Hey, say hi to your dad, ha. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I will.  Hungan. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Si yu;os ma’ase.  Ai, dispensa, yes.  Yes sir, he passed away. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Manu na gige hao? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you sir, I’m sorry I have to hang up, I…I got to get 

back to business.  Okay sir, thank you. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  I have one more question.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Eustaquio:  Are you related to *** 

** Everyone laughing ** 

Mr. Eustaquio:  **inaudible**   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, that’s your grandson?  Yes, we are related, so.  We have 

to be careful with this.  Thank you, sir.  Oh my gosh.   

Everyone laughing. 



 

 
Page 19 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Only on Guam, right?  I’m sorry, thank you everybody for 

your patience.  Thank you for your patience.   

Audience member:  Nice knowing you.  You’re my uncle. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  I don’t think the presence of the commission would really affect 

our position as far as backing it, unless. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so.  Okay, so, to my understanding of legal counsel’s 

thing of the documents, of this additional mortgage held by Bank Pacific, has really no 

bearing on the loan guaranty that we’ll be providing.   

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Nor does it have any bearing on the property itself because it 

is own by us. 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  It’s not incumbering of the Trust property.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Got it, okay, thank you.  Legal counsel.  Okay, umm, do you 

have any questions, Tan Amanda?  We don’t have quorum right now.  So, we’ll have to 

set that one aside for a minute.  Okay, oh there’s Shawntel.  Yeah so, umm, so the 

legal counsel said the documents, the loan, or the deed that is listed as collateral with 

Bank Pacific, that’s just an additional loan collateral, so, it’s not incumbering our Land 

Trust property, so, our loan guaranty would still, it’s still possible.  We wouldn’t be 

committed to anything or Bank Pacific isn’t incumbering the property. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, that guy’s loan is approve? 

Legal Counsel N. Toft:  Well, would have to make a  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think, we have to make a motion.  Yeah. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Okay.  Make a motion. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Okay.  Motion to approve SBA Loan Guaranty of thirty-one 

thousand, seven hundred, for Antonio Mendiola Eustaquio on lot four dash two, tract 

one, one, one, two, Dededo.  Approved. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A motions been made, and seconded it.  Umm, further 

discussion?   

Commissioner A. Santos:  No. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, all those in favor. 

Commissioners:  Aye 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, all those opposed?  Alright, the loan guaranty approval 

from the CHamoru Land Trust Commission for Mr. Eustaquio is approved, so.  Yes. 

**all clapping** 



 

 
Page 20 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, thank you guys for the documents, now ahh, k, next 

item on the agenda is a request for lease, and we have on our list, umm, Poly JB Gay.  

Do we have a representative for Ms. Gay?  Here today, no?  Okay, ahh…let’s see.  So, 

she is a December 6, 1995 applicant.  Priority one, she does not own land anywhere.  

Ms. Gay completed her survey, as authorized in 2016.  The survey map was 

completed.  Okay, Ms. Gay is one of those applicants, she’s been in the process with 

the Land Trust.  Umm, to get her residential lease, before she gets her lease, the Land 

Trust required her to survey her property.  So, she was assigned a property but never 

issued a lease until she got it surveyed.  So, it looks like she has it surveyed, surveyed 

map was turned in and it’s recorded.  So, umm, the next step, would a, the next step is 

to approve a residential lease for Ms. JB Gay.  Okay, so this is, can we have her file?  

This is for?  L7151-42-3, Yigo.  Okay.  Okay, so, it looks like she spent, yeah, almost, 

fourteen hundred dollars.  Did she get the survey done?  Now, umm, she’s fulfilled all 

the duties, she’s invested in the property so, now, umm, I’d like to ask the commission 

if they can give a residential lease for… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve a residential lease for Poly JB Gay, for 

Lot L7151-42-3, Yigo.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Motion has been made. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And seconded it.  Umm, further discussion?   

Commissioners:  None. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  None?  Okay.  All those in favor. 

Commissioners:  Aye 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, ai’s have it.  So, her lease is approved.  Great.  Umm, I 

appreciate her patience with us, I know that she has been on our agenda several 

times, her patience umm, and contact her let her know, it’s good to go.  Umm, I have a 

question about our constituent matters.  We tabled several cases from previous 

meetings that’s on our agenda, and I am wondering why.  So, I’ll just throw that out 

there, can you ask the director, I really need him as he is working on the agenda, that 

he is following through with everything that we are tabling from before and bringing it 

on to the next agenda.  Umm, I mean, umm, pre moratorium lease list, which I know is 

not, not exactly exhausted.  That was never completely, we never completely looked at 

it as a commission.  So, that absolutely has to be back on our agenda.  Umm, okay.  

Okay, next, moving down our agenda is Public Comment.  I have the Public comment 

sheet, and I’m just going to call your name and ah if you can just join me up here.  

Umm, Joseph Cruz T.  Hafa adai sir, if you can state your name for the record.   

Mr. Cruz:  I am Joseph Terlaje Cruz.  I came today to request for a lease agreement, 

I’ve been living before eighty-six, I have not received a call, no letter nothing from Land 

Management or anybody. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 



 

 
Page 21 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Cruz:  I was married and got a divorce and my ex-wife left me with a three-

thousand-dollar water bill.  Which I have proven I am not liable for.  I am also 

requesting from Land Trust if I can reconnect the power and water under my name.  

The power is hooked up already.  I just permission from Land Trust the water. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. Cruz:  I’ve always been liable for that three-thousand-dollar bill.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. Cruz:  If they plan on collecting, they would have to go to my ex-wife’s grave. 

**laughing** 

Mr. Cruz:  May the Lord be with her. 

All:  Amen 

Mr. Cruz:  For now, ma’am, I have been through strokes, three stroke surgeries, I 

cannot be gone anywhere without assistance.  Please, I am requesting, I am asking.  

Just hook up the water. 

Commission A. Santos:  Work it with Waterworks 

Mr. Cruz:  Waterworks and I need permission from Land Trust.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  He needs the utility authorization. 

Mr. Cruz:  The authorization and requesting for a lease agreement, I cannot be given  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Have you, have you ever been given a utility authorization?   

Mr. Cruz:  I was given an authorization by the governor, Governor Bordallo and they 

don’t have a record of it because it being so far back.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Do have a, did you apply for Land Trust back in 

nineteen ninety-five?   

Mr. Cruz:  Eighty-six.  I was living out there since seventy-six.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, so, he’d be a pre occupier.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Pre-Occupier. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Back in two thousand  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, he, ahh… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Two thousand  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Pre-Occupier 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Must be Arendo maybe, no, arendo. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Do you.  You know Mr. Cruz thank you for coming today this 

the first step for you to get working with us, umm, the, what I’d like you to do is to meet 



 

 
Page 22 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

with our staff, so they can pull your file, make sure they have all your documents.  

Documents we need to verify and umm, get you that lease. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Issue 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you can get that utility authorization.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  And issue the lease. 

Mr. Cruz:  I would really appreciate it ma’am.  The ex-wife left everything in chaos 

where I had to do everything.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, sir, I’m, I’m sorry for that.  Umm, unfortunately, right now 

the commission is not in a position to make a determination for your lease.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Yeah 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right, umm, we need you to see, we need you to work with 

our Land Trust staff first.   

Mr. Cruz:  I need some kind of document to hook up the water.  I’m paying the 

neighbor seventy-five dollars a month and I don’t even use seventy-five.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah 

Commissioner A. Santos:  So much. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, can we have him on our next meeting please.   

Mr. Cruz:  All Waterworks is asking is an authorization. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Mr. Cruz:  To hook up the water.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Has he come work with the staff before?  Just recently?  Oh 

today?  Okay. 

Mr. Cruz:  I work with Guam Power and they reversed a thousand, three hundred 

power bills under her name.  I guess they are going to deal with God on that.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay, Mr. Cruz, I’m sorry I can’t, umm, the 

commission can’t do anything right now, we have to make sure we have all the 

documents in order to get you the lease and the authorization.  I’m hopeful that really 

quickly so we can review, the next two weeks before our next meeting.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Yeah, I second it.   

Mr. Cruz:  Thank you very much 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Can we ahh, they have your contact?  Do you guys have 

their contact information?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I think this requires to be schemed, so, this is his area 

right here. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh okay.  So, the first step is to scheme it.   



 

 
Page 23 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Well to get the approval first from the commission or the 

Trust to process his application as time and date.  You know, time and date 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, we need to have the pre-occupier documentation?  So, 

get the pre-occupier documentation, get it schemed out, so, that at the next meeting 

we have everything we need to make the lease decision, please.   

Mr. Cruz:  Whatever paperwork you need done, sir, I will have it on your desk in the 

next two, three days.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I will give you a call, to confirm which documents are 

required.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, they have it.  Thank you, Mr. Cruz, thank you.  

Okay.  Okay, next on our public comments sign in sheet is Juanita C. Diaz.  I’m sorry.  

Hafa adai ma’am, thank you for joining us.   

Ms. Diaz:  Thank you for having us.  My name is Juanita C. Diaz. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Umm, just speak in the microphone.   

Ms. Diaz:  I’m just requesting the umm, authorization to have power restored to my 

property.  Umm, at Flores Rosa Avenue in Dededo.  I have had problems because my 

late husband was in the states seeking medical care, umm, it was disconnected for 

nonpayment cause we weren’t there. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Diaz:  But a I’m back and he’s not no longer with me, so, I am trying to get power 

restored so, I can develop the property like my parents did before me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, you have power it’s now disconnected, is there, 

do you have water?   

Ms. Diaz:  I have water, yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Do you have a lease with the Land Trust? 

Ms. Diaz:  The lease was under my mother’s name, she passed. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Diaz:  And umm, passed it on to me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Diaz:  So, umm, I’m trying to maintain it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: Okay, so, what we have do is, umm, again, I will direct you to 

the staff to sit with the staff, the first step is to get the lease, umm, in your name.  And 

that would be an addendum, right?  It would just be an addendum to the lease, it is in 

your name, then we can put in the utility authorization.   

Ms. Diaz:  Okay, there is a problem, Mr. Gumataotao brought it to my attention.   



 

 
Page 24 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Diaz:  It was brought to my attention, that there is a problem with that right now.  

As the picture shows, my neighbor had built his house on a portion of my mother’s 

property, and I’m okay that their, you know that their doing that, I don’t want to have 

any problems with my neighbor, they been pretty good with taking care of my parents, 

while, you know, doing my things.  So, I’m okay with them occupying, I’m okay with 

that.  Would like to get power restored.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  I have a question?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  So, given that you’re okay with the fact that the house is kind of 

in your lot, is your property surveyed?   

Ms. Diaz:  No 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Okay, so if we were to come in and, umm, do a new scheme, 

umm, given that it is giving within the half acre to you know umm, I guess scheme you 

out, maybe, just leave them and give them a different scheme, just accommodate you.  

Because your property is… 

Ms. Diaz:  My property  

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Is not surveyed right?   

Ms. Diaz:  Either, either, move me to the back a little bit or to the left if your facing the 

house, you can move to the left a little bit. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  It would be more so of a cut shift. 

Ms. Diaz:  What’s shift 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The one in the top. 

Ms. Diaz:  Oh.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Because she, it would cut, just to… 

Ms. Diaz:  I didn’t know.  I did not know, my mother just took me out there one day, she 

said okay, your property is from here to here, so, that’s the way I looked at it.  From 

one pole to another.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes. 

Ms. Diaz:  I did not know that was happening until a Mr. Gumataotao said a they’d 

been trying to get a hold of me to let me know of that problem.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  What kind of structure is that on the property? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Is that a wooden structure? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Wooden structure here or concrete? 



 

 
Page 25 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Diaz:  My, my house, the one that my parents built is a semi foundation.  Walls 

were concrete. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Semi 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  The encroaching property 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The neighbor’s home?   

Mr. Cruz:  Wood and Tin 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Wood and Tin 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Wood and Tin?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, initially when we were, when I first worked on this, 

okay, we were supposed to transfer the file from the mom to her… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  But because of this encroachment issue, it kind of put 

everything in a stand still.  So, if she’s willing to, to getting a reduction in acreage from 

a one acre to half acre we could probably do a, put the lot line up somewhere around 

here, and it will still meet the minimum requirements for EPA, regarding septic and 

sewer.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  But other than that, if she, if she wants to try to pursue a 

lease, or transfer the lease, maybe, you recommend she does an affidavit that the fact 

there is an encroachment issue, and you know.  Going forward from after a decision 

has been made on the lease, and the encroachment still exist, at least she 

acknowledges, acknowledged, otherwise, you know has the option to a reduce 

acreage, from one acre to half acre.  Just so we can exclude that portion out.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is the neighbor a lessee?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The neighbor is a  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A Land Trust? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Lessee? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Beneficiary?  Something like that, like a beneficiary.  This 

whole area is all brothers.  Their all brothers and sisters.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  But when you survey it, right, this as is, they’re going to survey 

including that house.  That’s why if you’re agreeing to reduce your lot to a half acre, as 

what Mr. Gumataotao was advising then, the surveyor will survey, you know, your 

area.  If not, they’re going to include that house.   



 

 
Page 26 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Cruz:  It’s Agriculture, my nephew, I already talked to him and he has to remove his 

house.  He knows his house is on your lot.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Mr. Cruz:  Wood and tin structure, it can be removed. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, you do not want to reduce your acreage, you want 

to keep that property, so you’re going to work with your relative neighbor to move his 

structure out.  The thing is when we go and get your mother’s lease,  

Commissioner A. Santos:  Reduced. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Into your name, just want to make sure that when we have 

that lease, it’s identifying the property appropriately.  And a, and a, as we were saying, 

you know, sitting here today and knowing there is an encroachment…umm, we have to 

decide what we’re going to do with that.  Are we going to keep your property as it is in 

the lease, and as we see it today, and have that encroachment removed?  Or the 

alternative, which is… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Take the half acre. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is to reduce your lot line, lot property, move your boundary, 

and redefine the property so that, when the lease is in your name, it is accurate.   

Ms. Diaz:  I’d rather keep it the way it is.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Keep it like it is? 

Ms. Diaz:  Yeah.  The way my parents left it to me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Diaz:  I’d rather keep it like it is.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay, so then, I think, please talk with your neighbor 

that they can remove the encroachment.  But in the meantime, what is it an affidavit?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  That’s what I would suggest, only so the trust… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  She’s acknowledging that she knows that has to be moved 

off, what is her property.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Just, I mean, she has an Agricultural, a, the mother has 

an Agricultural lease, and she acknowledges the fact that there’s an encroachment.  In 

the future the trust can conduct a compliance, if the house still exists, then she’s 

definitely not going to meet the minimum requirements to farm, you know. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  She won’t be in compliance.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah, you know what, I mean, the bottom line is we don’t 

our lessee’s to be not compliant, we want them to be compliant with the law, so, either, 

the best recourse I think, is to reduce an acreage, I mean… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Or just ensure that 



 

 
Page 27 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The house… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The house is removed.  We can’t have both, we can’t allow 

the home to stay there, and issue the lease.  And issue you a lease for the whole 

property.  So… 

Mr. Cruz:  I know that under Land Management, there is a setback of eight feet or ten 

feet back from the property line.  I will speak to my nephew, ma’am.  I will have him 

remove the wood and tin structure.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, then, for now we would need an affidavit.   

Ms. Diaz:  Just to get the power in, that’s all I need.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Oh, but we just want to make sure you understand that 

when you do it a certain way, it will adjust some of those factors, right.  The acreage 

will  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  She does not want to a reduce her property.  She’s going to 

have the structure removed.  But we will need an affidavit stating that you will be 

having that structure removed, so that you can maintain your lot line, or your mother’s 

lot line.  In the meantime, the staff would have to go through the process of transferring 

the lease from your mother into your name, and then, umm, that would just be an 

addendum, that can be done at the Administrative level.  And once that addendum is 

completed, then we can issue you the utility authorization.  Okay, thanks for coming, I 

think that’s a pretty clear process.  Do you have any questions?   

Ms. Diaz:  No, you know, I just, like I said I really, the ranch was built with a handicap 

person in mind, my parents were both elderly, and they built it to, my sister is handicap, 

we had problems right now in my house.  My being that the best course would be the 

two of us, because we are both widows, is from the ranch, wheelchair accessible, 

bathroom is wheelchair accessible, and, and with my house, currently does not meet 

the disability standards.  So, that’s why I wanted to have power installed so I can move 

to the ranch.  Umm, Joe is my neighbor, you know, he’s there when I say, hey Joe I 

need help, he’s right there.  So, that’s why I wanted the power installed.  So, I can 

move to my ranch and develop the property like my parents did.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, you know what, umm, is there a way legal counsel that 

we can, considering the mother has a lease we have this course of action to get the 

addendum, to sign for the lease, umm, can we issue something that umm, we can give 

to her today to approve the utility authorization?   

Legal Counsel Toft:  I think we can, I mean,  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  She has an existing lease by her mother who has passed 

away so, it’s been passed to the beneficiary.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Beneficiary 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Right, I don’t see an issue.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah okay, okay.  Yeah, that’s right, okay.  So, then, we can 

issue, would it be a utility authorization?   



 

 
Page 28 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Right 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, based on the lease that will be passed down now in 

her name.  Yeah?  Okay.  So…reading the motion, perhaps?  Right, because it’s not 

currently in her name.  Juanita C. Diaz.  Oh, we don’t have it. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Oh, we don’t? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Can we see your mother’s lease? 

Ms. Diaz:  Sure. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, umm, you can go off this. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion, motion to approve utility authorization, to issue 

utility authorization for Ms. Juanita C. Diaz, for portion of lot 10120, Dededo, containing 

not more than one acre, subject to survey.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, a motion has been made and second it.  Umm, I just 

want to umm, clarify. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Maybe you can restate the motion. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, okay, it’s a different lot number?  Oh, based on a 

masterplan.  Sorry.  Sorry that motions… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Been retracted 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Retracted.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  inaudible.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Ms. Diaz, what was your mother’s name? 

Ms. Diaz:  Rosa Martinez  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, but the utility authorization will be under her name.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Alright, motion to amend, to amend the previous motions 

to issue utility authorization under Juanita C. Diaz, for a portion of lot 10120-112, 

Dededo. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  And I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, a motion was amended and seconded by Tan 

Amanda.  So, again this is in regards to the lease, umm, for her, that her mother 

currently holds.  Ms. Rosa Martinez Caligo.   

Ms. Diaz:  Yoshi-Caligo 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yoshi Caligo.  Okay, umm, further discussion?   

Commissioners:  None 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  All those in favor. 



 

 
Page 29 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioners:  Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, aye’s have it.  Motion passes.  Okay ma’am 

Legal Counsel Toft:  You have to do twice.  So, that’s on the amendment, voided 

document so that now you got to vote on the overall.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well voted on the utility authorization to be prepared. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  No, no, sorry, think of it as …. inaudible. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  You got the, initial motion was made and seconded it, and then 

there’s a discussion, then an amendment that was made and seconded it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  That vote was on the amendment to be applied, so, now the 

overall needs to be approved.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, now umm, I’d like to ask the commission of a vote 

for the overall motion that was made for the utility authorization.  All those in favor?   

Commissioners:  Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Aye, okay aye’s have.  Thank you, legal counsel.  Make sure 

we are all eyeing the same thing, the right thing.  Okay, so we can, the staff will issue 

the utility authorization so you can get the power, thank you for your patience. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Glad we can take of that today. 

All clap 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, next on our public comment, Clement G. Bermudez.  

Hafa adai sir. 

Mr. Bermudez:  Yes, my name is Clement G. Bermudez.  Umm, I had been waiting for 

this a, more than twenty years already. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes. 

Mr. Bermudez:  I applied for the Land Trust since a October 1, 1997.  But when I went 

back and check, you know a couple of years, go and take the Arendo and get my land.  

They told me that I’m not qualified, so, what I did was I took my common law, she’s 

right over there sitting down and I had a letter here, that we wrote down a to transfer it, 

to under her name because I’m not qualified for it.  But I’m been waiting long for it and 

still no processing.  I don’t have the land and so, I came here today to let you guys 

know or want to see it.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Does he have a lease under his name?   

Mr. Bermudez:  I just want to know 



 

 
Page 30 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Legal Counsel Toft:  So, we need to have the rules and regs first.  This is basically a 

proposed transfer, pitch to the Legislature with our most recently umm resolution 2018-

09.  But currently it’s not available to be done under our rules, so. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, the switch, so, umm, sorry Mr. Bermudez, has legal 

counsel was saying that the switch that was authorized back in two thousand thirteen, 

between you and your common law wife, is, was found to be illegal by the Attorney 

General last year.  So, the commission, umm, cannot recognize that the switch that 

happened.  That your common law took your place in line.  So, I’m sorry, umm,  

Legal Counsel Toft:  Hopeful that the Legislature will address the issue  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  We have proposed Legislation that will allow us to do that.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, it’s out of our **inaudible**we really have no umm, no 

remedy for this, umm, it would have to be done by the legislature.  See we have rules 

and regulations.  If you’re unqualified, means you don’t meet the definition, is that right 

in the CHamoru Land Trust Act. 

Mr. Bermudez:  I don’t understand, **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you, were you, do you become a US citizen by virtue of 

the Organic Act?   

Mr. Bermudez:  No, not really, my mom was born on Saipan, I was born here in Guam 

nineteen fifty-one.  But my mom, my parents are back in Saipan.  I don’t know, I don’t 

really understand why I’m not qualified.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Oh, CHamoru but from Saipan. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well maybe that’s what we can have the staff look into.  

I have your umm, we have a file, under your name.  So, because the switch we can’t, 

basically… 

Mr. Bermudez:  The reason why I tried to switch it because they told me I’m not 

qualified. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well we have to go back and look at the original 

application, which we have in file and see the documents there to determine that 

qualification and if you really are qualified or if you’re unqualified.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Is the wife a, does the wife, did they approve the wife? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No.  Well she was qualified, I guess.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, she can come and apply. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But it will be at a later date, so, she.  Unfortunately, we have 

to look at your application determined unqualified.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  You what come and apply.   

Mr. Bermudez:  Me? 



 

 
Page 31 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Your wife. 

Mr. Bermudez:  Just let me know why?  Why is it that I’m not qualified?   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Because your parents are not born in Guam, that’s why. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well if you, yeah.  If you or your parents became US Citizens, 

from the Organic Act, in nineteen fifty.  Then you would be qualified, but you were born 

nineteen fifty-one.  Here, so, then we have to look at, I don’t know, what do we do for?   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Sir, have you ever gone to the MARC Research in UO, at UOG?   

Mr. Bermudez:  What is that?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  MARC, it’s a research institution.  What would he be looking 

for?  What documents would he be looking for?   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  So, both parents are born in Saipan, correct?   

Mr. Bermudez:  Yes. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  How about your great, your, your grandparents? 

Mr. Bermudez:  Umm, they’re from Saipan. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  They’re from Saipan?  How about your…do you have any 

descendants, that were, you know, that were born on Guam after eighteen ninety-

eight?   

Mr. Bermudez:  No, I don’t know.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  So, we give the opportunity for our constituents, to go to the 

MARC Research Library, at the university, and you can get documentation from them 

and they will do the research.  And then, from there they’d either advise you if they 

have something on their linage tree under your family.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Could it also be that, were your parents here in nineteen fifty?  

Were they living on Guam in nineteen fifty? 

Mr. Bermudez:  Yes, they were.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is that how they became US Citizens?  So, if they were here, 

there can be proof that your parents were here in nineteen fifty, that would qualify you. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Yeah, under the Organic Act. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Just have to take the initiative to go to the MARC Research. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Okay, where’s and how, can you provide the steps 

because seems a little intimidating but he’s just going to go there and what happens? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  He’s just gonna go there and maybe 



 

 
Page 32 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Because, they’re very aware, we send a lot of our clients up 

there so, they’re very aware, that possibly CLTC clients will get some research in 

regards to… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Is there a way we can guide them or it has to be 

personally done?  Can it be one of you?  Just see. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Umm… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Even just a letter, saying that, you know, he was born in 

ninety fifty-one but just his parents were living here.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Just help him write it down. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Just come and see us sir, so, we can do a breakdown of your 

family tree possibly, so that we can work with one of the individuals that we work with, 

so, we just need a breakdown possibly submit it to them, and then from there they’d 

advise us weather they have any documentation or not.  So, just come and see us.  

Sir, update your contact and we’ll give you a call possibly by tomorrow.  Or come in 

and see us tomorrow.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Bermudez:  Thank you very much. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you Mr. Bermudez.  Okay, the next for public comment 

is Ms. Francis Faria.  I’m sorry about that, hafa adai ma’am. 

Ms. Faria:  I was here and then asking to be placed on the board to change the area 

that I was assigned and then somebody from *** said they will look into then, 

somebody was going to look into it, then somebody said they would get in touch with 

me.  Well that didn’t happen.  Nobody told me about the meeting and my friend was 

here that day and called me up and told my sister that my name was mentioned on the 

following meeting, which I didn’t know.  And then I couldn’t come in last month and I 

just had a death in the family too.  So, I’m here today. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  I just came in on public comment because I just wanted to know  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  What’s the status. 

Ms. Faria:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Well I just want to apologize, I remember your name 

on the agenda and I know that our staff tries their best to get a hold of people on our 

agenda, guess they were not able to get a hold of you.   

Ms. Faria:  My phone is always with me, it’s okay whatever happened  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  What is the status, let me see? 

Ms. Faria:  The property that I was assigned to is a ponding basin. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Ponding basin. 



 

 
Page 33 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, yeah so, this  

Ms. Faria:  It’s a swimming pool. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, yeah I remember and that’s also were your family is 

located.   

Ms. Faria:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, this was at our April eighteenth meeting.  We did 

visit it as a commission and we looked at, I guess we approved relocation for you, so, 

now it’s just pending a suitable site.  So, now we asked for you to meet with the staff.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This one is, ah, we’re trying to find a, Ms. Faria I tried to 

contact you on your numbers but I believe it was disconnected or I can’t remember 

what, so, I did write it in your file.  When the board approved the relocation, we were 

going to seek relocation to another sub division, but you stated that you didn’t want to, 

you wanted to be kept somewhere in that same area that your father and your family 

grew up.  Which we decided to go with this property here in the corner.   

Ms. Faria:  Where? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The one in, it’s in front of the, or it’s behind the GWA 

pump station, the little pump station there at the corner of Ha’hasso and Route 3.  We 

were just waiting for a memorandum from Guam Waterworks, regarding… 

Ms. Faria:  Is the pump station that goes inside the pipeline?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I’m not sure.  I, just a minute. 

Ms. Faria:  Check nai.  Because where my grandma used to stay.  If you go back to the 

history, it’s that I was under the Arendu, my father, is a Vicente, and my sister also, we 

have the Arendu.  At the time of the birth of Land Trust, it was Arendu.  And I have 

stated to this board that my memories are so vivid with if we have a lease with Land 

Management and Agriculture, we always have a meeting up at Dededo to say this is 

what we’re talking about that they’re going check and my father told me to hang on to 

my documents on Arendu.  But sad to say I lost it in the typhoon all of it and I had to go 

back and forth with this thing so, with the late Joe Cruz, with the late Monte.  I’ve been 

trying since we had the Arendu, I know the agreement was the people that already had 

Arendu has that first priority even if they applied first twenty years ago.  And then, I 

found out when my father passed away, we were going back and forth to the ranch, but 

first thing I knew.  When I checked with Land Management then Director Joe Cruz, he 

had somebody go out with me, and then we found out that the one right next to my 

dad, which is my area, where today the pump was built on and they told that people 

that are there illegal.  So, up to present still waiting and I just found out not to long ago 

that the property where my father is, once upon time somebody was sitting in it that is 

not supposed to.  And I did ask Mr. Gumataotao if I can get located back to that area.  

We have water, we have power.  It’s been surveyed, I don’t have money to do all these 

things  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And where is this and what relation to our we talking about?   

Ms. Faria:  *** 



 

 
Page 34 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  At the water pump?  Oh no. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Well it’s ahh, right here. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you want to move into the property that was your fathers?  

That’s the one that you want? 

Ms. Faria:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But we’re trying to do, what we want to do is put you where 

you want to be but not somewhere that’s not useable.  So, let’s see if we can do that. 

Ms. Faria:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, where is it up here?   

Ms. Faria:  The other end.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This is where she’s at.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, your assigned that top right that has the foundation. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This one right here.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s the ponding basin? 

Ms. Faria:  No, that’s where my father, my father’s property, Arendu.  The other end is 

the ponding basin.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Well this the area that we proposed the lease to you.  

Right?  Then, you said that. 

Ms. Faria:  Oh okay, I’m sorry, yes. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So… 

Ms. Faria:  That’s the ponding basin.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, there’s a, umm… 

Ms. Faria:  Bomb hole, right?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah, right around here.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And that is the one assigned  

Ms. Faria:  Yeah 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  And so, this is the proposed area that we want to give her.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And so, where’s your father’s  

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The father’s in between, so, it encompasses these lots, 

and that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Does he have an existing lease?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  No, this is the Arendu that LUP, so… 



 

 
Page 35 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, he was never issued a lease from the Trust? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  No. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is there a, are those properties 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Those properties have leases on them. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yes, that’s why we kind of brought Ms. Faria to us is the 

fact that umm, the area that she is requesting for is more specifically this property.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That one? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The house there… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is that the one that you were hoping for? 

Ms. Faria:  Yes, is that  

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This is the Perez.  Ramona or… 

Ms. Faria:  June?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This is a lessee, that we’ve been, that I’ve been trying to 

have the Trust terminate this person’s lease.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  You know she doesn’t live there; she’s not using the 

property.  So, why give it, why give leases to people that don’t deserve it, you know.  

So, I’ve been trying to get the, umm, terminated.  But because the Act, what’s that, 

the… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hearing officer?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah, you know it’s.  kind of hard to… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Has it been brought to the commission, on the agenda? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  To the prior director. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  At first, ma’dam Chair, there were people where my father used to be.  ***I 

said is there anyway?  He and the director, pass director, ******(voice too low to 

understand).  I’m a seventy-three-year-old woman, alone by myself, so, I can survive.  

And I did everything I could.  The swimming pools.  And then with my brother, found 

there was a sign in front of me.  The Navy came and cut the property in half.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This is usually, this tract of land right here.  Which is a 

Naval, a Federal Government, reservation or easement.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  When did that happen?  Long time ago? 

Ms. Faria:  After they gave my father the land, he got the message that it’s federal.   



 

 
Page 36 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I think the more relevant issue is, is this lot right here.  

You know I was trying to propose to offer to her, but because there’s a, you know, a, 

Guam Water works has this umm, pump station on it and ahh, it’s like a, you know, a. 

Ms. Faria: No, I remember my niece said that whenever the government leases 

property, I will be relocated.  But none of this is happening and, you know, I, I been, 

been so touched with reading of the switching and the doing and people are getting it 

the way the wanted.  All I’m asking is a way, because right I’m just letting you know 

that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  We’re going to go ahead and look into GWA’s, the lot 

that GWA’s at to determine whether it’s a pump station or well site.  Okay, but if it’s a 

pump station, they only need nine hundred and twenty square meters.  So, if the 

remaining acreage area is sufficient enough, to give to Ms. Faria, if she would want it 

then we could go ahead and issue that lot to her.   

Ms. Faria:  Was the area where the pump station is, was that area assigned to us for 

Arendu, so. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, we want to put you back there, they have identified to be 

able to give that to you.  But they have to check with GWA first, what development can 

happen on that property.  But we have our placement there.  So, that’s good.  This one 

that is highlighted in red. That would be the property that we can place you at.   

Ms. Faria:  That’s the one my father used to be?  It was me near the pump station, then 

right next to me is my dad, next to my dad is Mr. Perez, the late Mr. Perez.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Who’s in the property next to you?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Ramona Perez.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Where the house is located.  That’s probably Mr. Perez’s 

daughter. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, there’s, it looks like there are two houses.  What’s the 

one right… 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This one is Aguon.  It’s a, but they don’t, this is a Aguon 

but their not a, I can’t remember the reasons why they never came in to, to, you know 

do any paper work.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, they are going to put you there, but they have to make 

sure if it’s a pump station or it’s a well site.   

Ms. Faria:  If it’s a well site, are they occupying the whole lot?  So, the one which is my 

father’s.  Is that still available? 



 

 
Page 37 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, the only one available is the one we are showing you 

where GWA, am I right?  That’s the only one available.   

Ms. Faria:  Okay, so, what happened to the land that was my father’s that somebody 

just was coming on it?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotato:  Well that was, that was… 

Ms. Faria:  For respect, what I am fighting for here is of the Arendu.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, and we… 

Ms. Faria:  How?  And now you have a big problem with it.  Then, because of what’s 

happening, I don’t even care to discuss it but it’s just what’s rightfully mine.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, but you know we want to, we want to put you there, 

like I said that’s the only property that’s available to lease out.  But we have to reach 

back to GWA to make sure that we put you guys where you can build a home for 

yourself.   

Ms. Faria:  That’s what I was trying to do, if it’s possible, **** if it’s possible. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The one in between Route 3 and your brother?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, so, you want your brother to move with you? 

Ms. Faria:  Yeah, if possible.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, see if he would want to relinquish that property if 

you’re able to take your original Arendu property.   

Ms. Faria:  Yes, I will talk to him. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  His name is Ernesto Castro.  The politics that was published, I just read last 

week, with all these switches and deals, I would like to bring this up to you guys, the 

board member is that my youngest sister, her real birth certificate her name is Maria R. 

Camacho, and of course we all know confirmation her other name is that, but in later 

years, her name became Mary Ruth, Mary, but it was the Ruth that the Land Trust now 

is document now and it makes her not eligible to get a Land Trust. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  But it’s because of that… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Switch. 

Ms. Faria:  The Mary Ruth. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Mary Ruth? 

Ms. Faria:  But she has a birth certificate, everything her passport, all her ID’s now are 

Mary Ruth.   



 

 
Page 38 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, so, it’s like a name change but we’re not able to verify 

she’s qualified? 

Ms. Faria:  Yeah, she’s not qualified because, but she has legal document she’s born. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And so, because she wasn’t born here, she found not to be 

qualified, she was allowed to switch with somebody? 

Ms. Faria:  No, she was just disqualified. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  She was disqualified?  Okay.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Because of the name change. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Because of the name change? 

Ms. Faria:  I mean her social security, passport, everything.  And you know down the 

line, my name was Frances but then I have a confirmation name, but it just keeps 

adding up. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Ms. Faria:  Just because that little issue, my sister was told she was not qualified, and I 

find that very. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, I would recommend that your sister come back in 

and we can relook at the case.  Yeah? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Madam Chair, sorry, umm, I also handled Ms. Faria’s 

sister.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Everything was, I mean everything was a…a…everything 

was done up to the point that your sister needed to sign her lease, at the time she 

needed to sign her lease she was off island.  And she didn’t designate a power of 

attorney to sign on her behalf.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah, so, the issue with the birth certificate, has already. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  It’s been settled. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  My sister has been back and forth for medical reasons 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Ms. Faria:  For her husband, in fact we just lost him… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, I’m sorry. 

Ms. Faria:  But you know I’m trying to protect my family.   



 

 
Page 39 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes absolutely, so, it looks like they were able to settle it and 

a lease was prepared.  Now it’s time for her to come in so that she can sign the lease, 

and or actually present it to the commission for approval. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  We need to verify, so we will go ahead  

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Only because the lot technically was in a reserve status, 

but we couldn’t offer it to anybody else.  But because she never came in to sign it, went 

back into the inventory.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, if she still wants to follow through with the lease, we 

probably have to look for another. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, I see.  Okay.  What, okay.  Can you have her get in touch 

with the staff so we can reengage 

Ms. Faria:  Actually, she’s here with me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, hi.  Yeah, I’m glad you brought it up, she is qualified 

there’s no issue with that.  So, if you can reengage with the staff and then they’ll 

present back to the commission.  When the time is ready for lease approval.  Okay. 

Ms. Faria:  Si yu’os Ma’ase. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  From Margarita, Ms. Borja she’s going to talk to GWA and 

make sure we understand the requirements that is placed on that property.  Then, I 

actually recommend that you contact her.   

Ms. Faria:  Just whatever number? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.   

Ms. Faria:  Si yu’os ma’ase. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Si yu’os ma’ase.  Okay, next for public comment is an Arthor 

W. Jackson.   

Audience Member:  He went to the restroom.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh.  Okay, sorry about that.  So, I’ll come back to him.  

Joseph Mendiola.  Hi sir, if you can state your name please.  

Mr. Mendiola:  Hello and thank you for (inaudible).   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Mr. Mendiola:  First of all, I would like to thank you Mr. Gumataotao for assistance.  

Since we paid, property taxes, we were informed back in two thousand eighteen, that 

the lot that was given to us was, I guess surveyed incorrectly.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh. 

Mr. Mendiola:  So, we had a choice to either stay there or move to a registered land.   



 

 
Page 40 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, it’s an unregistered property that you are leasing, I 

see.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. Mendiola:  I have a map here that was given to me, but I ***I don’t know if you want 

to see. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sure, thank you.  I see, oh man.  I’m sorry you’re placed on 

unregistered property.   

Mr. Mendiola:  We were looking to move to registered property.  Mr. Gumataotao said 

we will be placed on the waiting list.  Per say, right?  See different properties that, now, 

the question here is that as far as a listing, I know everyone’s been patient, you know 

to get a land.  But about fourteen years ago, we were informed that, misinformed, you 

know the integrity of CHamoru Land Trust.  Okay, to come find that Ms. Casem, the 

map that I’ve shown to you was done incorrectly.  Okay, what we are trying to move 

forward with it, and we thought that because of the information given to us incorrectly, 

we were allowed to relocate to a property that was available.  And I just wanted to 

know if they’re going to have anytime soon.  This is like fourteen years ago, 

misinformed. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The misinformation was what exactly? 

Mr. Mendiola:  The misinformation first was the lease, but they did acknowledge this 

lease that my wife has that was given to her in two thousand and two.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Mendiola:  And the lot that we were all at was divided into four.  Right here these 

are four siblings that have leases, my three siblings plus my mother.  But according to 

the map that you see the names on it, okay, they weren’t aware that’s where they’re 

supposed to be at.  So, we just want to know that exactly.  I know that it will take some 

time with the infrastructure, but since, you know, we’ve already started paying land 

taxes and I’m trying to determine how much I’m going to pay.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Are you currently occupying the property?   

Mr. Mendiola:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But you’re living there?   

Mr. Mendiola:  Yes 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  It’s, umm… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Unregistered. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It’s unregistered.  But there’s an existing lease.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Yes. 



 

 
Page 41 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Under your wife.  Legal counsel, what can we do, I’m sure 

this is on our list of properties to become registered. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  That’s basically it to get registered.  Just get with the 

Administrative Director. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Can we… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Get it prioritized.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Can we leave them there? 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yes.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  I mean, the lease is there already. 

Mr. Mendiola:  If you take the time and identify where I’m at and where my mother in 

law is at, one of us was informed that we have to move because it was not surveyed 

correctly.  See, I guess we’re supposed to get allotted a half acre.  But if you look at 

where my wife is at its half-acre as for my mother in law, so, also who has a structure 

though, give up our portion, and move to another area, which Mr. Gumataotao is aware 

of.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so you don’t want to stay here, you want to find 

another property?   

Mr. Mendiola:  Of course.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Mendiola:  So, my mother in law can stay where she’s at.  Secondly, I just came 

into some findings that I guess, you know, CHamoru Land Trust staff really working 

hard that the area where we are at there’s some lands there that are now registered.  

That correct?  In Stampa Road?     

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  There are some that are registered, regarding like survey, 

this area that, this is the mother in law’s property and it’s a substandard lot, because 

it’s only nine hundred and ninety-two square meters in an area that doesn’t have 

sewer.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, you know.  So, while we are trying to get some 

property, of course we have to consider the existing, what they have right now and are 

they able to just pick up and go to another property and build right.  So, we can identify 

some, it’s just the timing it’s just the only problem is the only issue and I think I’d asked 

Jhoana if we can start looking for a property that is cut the same, you know next to the 

road, access to water and power, or… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Because currently when I did speak to the husband and wife that 

I did advise them that it’s unregistered.  Right, and because they would like to move to 

an area that has the infrastructure, that currently this area provides, that’s where I did 



 

 
Page 42 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

advise them that is the thing we have to try and find.  At the moment, you know, it’s 

hard because most of the properties that would be available, the infrastructure would 

be too far versus where you guys are at, that’s why I did ask, are you guys in a rush to 

move because we are not displacing you.  We are not telling you guys to move 

because that’s an unregistered property that is where CLTC possibly placed you guys 

at one time, right.  So, we’re not holding that against you guys, because, and that’s 

why we say, if you’re in a rush to move, you know, and you guys say no, that’s where 

we fall, right now, you know.  We would like to find you guys an area where there’s 

infrastructure.  But it’s  

Mr. Mendiola:  Because, it was 2018, pending management in 2019, that is the reason 

things were held back.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  The moratorium. 

Mr. Mendiola:  Right, we informed Mr. Gumataotao when we met with him, April 12, 

2019, okay, a month ago.  That we would like to move. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Okay.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Okay, that being said, I’m not saying Mr. Gumataotao has been great as 

far as assisting.  The disappointing part was again only that you misinformed us, you 

know deceived us, when this could of been done fourteen years ago.  So, we were 

under the understanding because of that.  I am not saying to be put on top of the list, 

but you informed Mr. Gumataotao about what had happened, you know given that 

opportunity to see different lands.  Give us that choice you know if that’s what we want.  

I believe I informed Mr. Gumataotao three different areas.  You know that is registered; 

you know according to the map that he had shown us.  You see, secondly, if we decide 

not to, this is any question, if we decide not to get that land, then they show us, are we 

going to placed at the bottom of the list?  Wait about fourteen years. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No.  I think that the issue is you have an existing lease, on 

unregistered property, and you want to find a suitable property that is registered that 

you can move to.   

Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, that would be our first endeavor.  I think it’s clear 

now you don’t want to stay there because it is unregistered.  We’re advising you that if 

you do stay, like she said, we’re not displacing you, I think it would be easier for you if 

you stayed but you made it clear you don’t want to stay and so we’re going to have to 

figure out where to place that processes, because right now the moratorium, we’ve put 

a moratorium on all new leases, new leases for vacant property, right, and it might be a 

problem but if it’s an existing lease perhaps we can do an addendum to the lease, so it 

would be finding a suitable property, so, there would be, we would issue a Notice of 

Intend to Award, right, I mean definitely if you haven’t already or I think you already 

expressed some areas you wanted to look at but you have three declines, I guess, or is 

that right?  Because he already has a lease.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Three declines?   



 

 
Page 43 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, so, so if we say okay there’s a property and you 

decline it. 

Mr. Mendiola:  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Then that’s one decline.  They offer you another property, 

you decline it, second time, the third lot we offer you is you got to choose it or you 

decline the third time, then we put you back down at the bottom.  But then again, I think 

there might be clarification.  Did those decline only for new leases?  Because he is, or 

since he has an existing lease.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  I have to  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  We really just want to find somewhere that is suitable for you.  

But also, understanding that we have very limited resources, for our staff and there are 

many other cases to get to so, you know, we’d ask for your cooperation, in identifying a 

property as quickly as we can so we can move to other cases as well.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Is there like a time frame, as far as available lands?  I know you all are 

busy, but I wanted to ask.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, yeah.  No that’s a fair question, like how soon can you 

meet with the staff.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Right.  Only because it’s been a month since I last spoke to anyone. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay,  

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah as far as…based a, maybe a week ago, to GPS the 

property and a from there kind of brainstorm what’s the best way to approach your 

issues, right.  And because a I took comments under, on the process, I said to myself, 

well maybe this will give you guys a chance to maybe go with Guam Housing 

corporation maybe try and secure some funding right, to build on a property that they 

are going to end up getting.  We’re going to try and relocate them somewhere, in that 

meantime you know, was what I’m thinking. 

Mr. Mendiola:  It’s a great suggestion, which we had done to the land we are at now.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Hmm…okay.   

Mr. Mendiola:  And because it was surveyed incorrectly, now someone has to move, 

so, now you’re asking me to get into more debt. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You don’t have to move.   

Mr. Mendiola:  Well because the way it is now, the information we got, one has to 

because it was surveyed incorrectly.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, the what I meant by, you know, the time to look at 

Guam Housing, to get some kind of financing, right is, maybe, this is to build on a 

future property that we are going to issue to you.  But depending, you actually paid a 

licensed Surveyor to survey the property and put points on the ground or markers on 



 

 
Page 44 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

the ground, you did that, you paid for it, if we do find you another piece of property, 

you’re going to have to repay or you’re going, not repay, but you’re going to have to 

pay for the surveyor.  And that was the understanding because one, we’re not forcing 

you to relocate, right, which, Jhoana had mentioned, we’re not gonna tell you to move 

from that place.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You can stay there 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  We’re going to… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Regardless of what that survey was or the misinformation.   

Mr. Mendiola:  The land was surveyed but was not surveyed correctly.  So, the land 

was surveyed at that time.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, for any intention  

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, the thing is the, I mean we can find you a property.  

That’s not a problem, we can issue, we can take the time to maybe next week we can 

look at three properties… 

Mr. Mendiola:  That’s all we want and for paying taxes, and it’s not surveyed correctly, 

then I don’t want to pay taxes for nothing.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  So, and we can work through some of the details about 

payment of property taxes and all that stuff later on but, just so you know, that if we do 

find you property, any survey fees that are incumbent, will be payed by you.  It won’t be 

payed by the Government of Guam or the CHamoru Land Trust because the…Right? 

Mr. Mendiola:  That’s fine, thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, next week! 

Mr. Mendiola:  Okay, sure.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you, sir.  Okay, next is Mr. Arthur Jackson.  Hi, hafa 

adai sir. 

Mr. Jackson:  Do I say my name?  or… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, state your name. 

Mr. Jackson:  I’m Arthur Jackson. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hafa adai. 

Mr. Jackson:  I’m actually here because I did a follow up with my application and I 

applied back in nineteen ninety-five.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Jackson:  I think sometime last year this time May, June, I talked to one of your 

fellow coworkers, I guess his name is Glenn Eay or something. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 



 

 
Page 45 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Jackson:  Anyway, he checked my records because I lost my paper works.  I got it 

when my brother got his and also mine.  Anyways, so, come to find out it’s a 

misunderstanding and I know I made a payment.  He told me I on unpaid.  So, come to 

find that on the record my name is Arthur H. Jackson but I’m Arthur W. Jackson.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Jackson:  So, then he already made the correction.  But he told me to follow up 

October of last year.  Or that he would give me a call last year, but I’ve been waiting 

and I didn’t hear anything so, I came here two days ago and talked to Lorraine and she 

just told me to fill out a new application and start from the bottom or come and see you 

guys, that’s why I came here.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Why would we… 

Land Agent L. Nededog:  He is in the unpaid and I told that **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay,  

Mr. Jackson:  I notarized everything but, I don’t have… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But you don’t have the receipt to prove it. 

Mr. Jackson:  No, ma’am I don’t have it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Ahh…so, what do we do? 

Mr. Jackson:  My brother is too, we are together. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you’re a nineteen ninety-five applicant, you say you paid. 

Mr. Jackson:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Our records don’t show… 

Mr. Jackson:  I told Glenn that, he said the only one that approve that will be the 

director, and he will give me a call.  But then he said we couldn’t do anything until we 

go to the commission. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Until you come to the commission.  Can we do that, Nick? 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, we would honor his place in line, and just have 

him pay the fee now.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. Jackson:  I am going to pay it right now. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  I understand that it was express earlier it was 

documented and all of that.   

Mr. Jackson:  I’m sorry  



 

 
Page 46 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you’re okay? 

Mr. Jackson:  Yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Do we need a motion to? 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Allow payment and to keep his place in line. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah.  **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Is this going to generalize everyone on the unpaid?  We 

have four thousand applications.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Four thousand? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Two thousand. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Two thousand, okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  They are going to come in on a case by case basis as 

they come in before the board. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No.  I’d rather set policy now, about this.  I don’t want to.  The 

law says they have thirty days to pay otherwise you’re taken off the list.  All this time 

has passed 

Legal Counsel Toft:  It says there is a one-time processing fee of fifty dollars to pay 

within thirty days.  It doesn’t have a consequence for it.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, it doesn’t. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  No.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, okay.  So, what if, what do we do? 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Board discretion, really.  In the past, we allowed people to pay 

despite they didn’t pay in thirty days.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:   Yeah. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  I think the reverse course to that… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, how do we  

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Have you tried checking DOA, sir? 

Mr. Jackson:  No one told me. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Because we had instances where clients made payments, not 

directly to CLTC and we get different Treasury of Guam.  So, we had clients actually 

were able to retrieve their paid applications.  From…maybe you paid it elsewhere.   



 

 
Page 47 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Jackson:  I don’t know they said I did it together with my brother, but my brother is 

paid and mine is unpaid. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah sir.  I think he is okay with paying today because he 

doesn’t have the proof, but what I’m trying to figure out, legal counsel.  For all of the 

two thousand that are on the list that are unpaid.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  If they come before the board, **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay.  I think at the last meeting I asked that a, what 

is it.  A list of ambiguities be draft, be put together about the so, the commission can 

set policy moving forward.  You know whether we are allowing, like this would be one 

of them.  For all those unpaid, what is the commission’s position on policy for how to 

handle.  Can you put that on our list for the commission to revisit?  To set a policy so 

that it’s not on a case by case basis that you guys can already process 

administratively.  So, Tan Amanda while you were gone, we heard from Mr. Arthur 

Jackson, who is a nineteen ninety-five applicant and he came before us because he 

had paid for his application but on our records, we don’t show it paid.  You know so we 

have to go with what we have on record.  He is willing to pay it now; will the 

commission allow him to pay it and keep his place in line.  So, Arthur W Jackson.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Where’s the place at? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, he’s just an applicant.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Applicant? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, nineteen ninety-five applicant.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to allow Arthur Jackson to pay application fee to 

hold his place in line.  Anything else? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A motion made and second it.  Further discussion? 

Commissioners:  None. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, all those in favor?   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Aye! 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Aye! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Aye’s have it.  Okay, so yes. 

Mr. Jackson:  Okay, thank you very much ma’am.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, please pay it and hold on to it. 

Mr. Jackson:  Where do I go to pay it? 

Land Agent L. Nededog:  Land Management. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, next on the Agenda is Antonetta R Carmen.   



 

 
Page 48 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent L. Nededog:  Larimer 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Larimer, dispensa yu.  Hafa adai Ms. Larimer.   

Ms. Larimer:  Buenas.  Buenas.  Antonetta R Larimer.  This is my first time to ever 

attend a CHamoru Land Trust.  Now my question here is because I am a nineteen 

ninety-five applicant, and I am very, you know when I applied for this, I have little 

children so, my kids are now forty some years old.  And as for now, I was told that you 

would be relocated, I applied for Residential.  So, umm, I hope my nephew is in the 

same location that I am in.  And I even made jokes with him that we can be neighbors 

and I can get some soy sauce from you.  Anyway, we were told that he will be 

relocated.  So, after that, there was no contacts or any kind of you know, any 

information to what is going on with that property.  So, umm…that was the last time I 

went there was when the office was down in Anigua.  Again, they said they will get a 

hold of us, and get a hold of me.  But then nothing is done.  So, few years go by still 

nothing.  So, finally, since the office was here, I went in and there’s this Leon Guerrero, 

I don’t know.  Anyway, he said that the place that was given to us was, to be, that was 

given to us, or given to me, they have to relocate me.  Because they said it was in 

Swamp Road, so, I just kept going to Swamp Road.  It’s like everybody was staying 

around here.  I mean this couldn’t be my area.  So, again I came back over here, I 

asked where in Swamp Road.  They said it was oh right across the Swamp Road area 

that people are living in.  It’s so frustrating because my kids are all grown, I really need, 

I like, I still want the land, but again, sometime in March if I’m not mistaken.  This year, 

if I’m not mistaken, I was about to transfer the land to my sister, because all of my kids 

are grown.  And apparently, when I came in, they asked me to pay taxes, I said, why 

am I to pay taxes when I don’t even know where I am going to live.  So, I think I did pay 

one year, but the rest of the remaining, I said, wait a minute, I mean, why am I going to 

pay something that I don’t really know.  I don’t even know where I am going to be at.  

Well so, the thing is when I went to Revenue and Taxes, they told me I had to pay this 

or else you will be taken off the list.  So, my question is that a yes, I was supposed to 

be removed from list of the Land Trust.  That I don’t know where I would be placed.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No.  I don’t think anybody can remove you from the list for 

Land Trust, other than the Land Trust.  So, I’m sorry, Rev and Tax told you that?   

Ms. Larimer:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  It’s none of their business. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.   

Ms. Larimer:  You know, I just said, ma’am, I don’t even know where my land.  I know 

Swamp Road, but I don’t know where in Swamp Road, but I only know my lot number 

and you know.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Larimer:  That’s my concern.  My name is off the list, this CHamoru Land Trust 

Lease that I have?  That I was given?  Because I want to transfer this to my sister.   



 

 
Page 49 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, what we have to do in your case is we’ll have to 

have the staff do some research and present it to us so we can see what’s going on.  

If. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  You applied already; to Land Trust? 

Ms. Larimer:  Since nineteen ninety-five.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And she has a lease.  She has a lease, but her lease was 

before, because there are squatters there.  So, what we’ve done in the past with 

another lease holder, who was never actually in possession, but was able to move onto 

the property.  They were assessed taxes, you were able to access a waiver of taxes for 

them because of those reasons.  So, we have to do some research to see what’s going 

on in your case.  And see if that’s warranted for you and get that process moving 

finally.  To relocate.   

Ms. Larimer:  I can even if it’s twenty dollars already twenty years.  But even then, you 

know.  A dollar a year that’s okay.   But for you to pay taxes and don’t even know 

where you are at.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: And after all this time you’re being told you were being 

relocated.   

Ms. Larimer:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:   

Ms. Larimer:  They keep saying Swamp Road, Swamp Road.  I know it’s on the side of 

the road.  But in Swamp Road, maybe in the Swamp. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, okay.  What I’m going to instruct the staff is to look into 

your case, have a staff report prepared, and get you on our Agenda, have it presented 

in front of the commission and have it formatted that the commission can make some 

decisions. 

Ms. Larimer:  Presented to each or some letters, my PO Box is still the same, it never 

changed, so.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Larimer:  It’s really a challenge for me.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  How many kids?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you for coming. 

Ms. Larimer:  Si yu’os ma’ase 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you for your patience 

Ms. Larimer:  Thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Please contact the staff if they haven’t already contacted you.  

Just to make sure things are moving along and you’re ready and just waiting.  Yeah, I 

think it’s best that you contact them.  Other than waiting for them.   



 

 
Page 50 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Larimer:  I’ve done that several times. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well they’re on the commission’s radar now.  We’ll be 

looking for progress.   

Ms. Larimer:  Okay, si yu’os ma’ase. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Si yu’os ma’ase, Ms. Larimer.  Thank you, okay next on the 

Agenda on Public Comment, oh boy, uh-oh, Marita?  Maria?  Phone number is 483-

4883.  Dispensa, I have a hard time reading.   

Audience member:  What’s the number? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Four eight three four eight eight three.   

Audience Member:  Manuel… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Manuel…something.   

Audience Member:  Inaudible. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Manuel.  Manuel, dispensa yu.   

Audience Member:  Manuel San Nicolas 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Mr. San Nicolas.  Thank you for your patience.  Okay.   

Mr. San Nicolas:  Last meeting because of a problem.  I tried to make it down. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, how can we help you today, sir? 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Last time I was here, I only want you  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, let’s see what we have.   

Mr. San Nicolas:  I was told to come down.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The pre-moratorium?   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I looked at the paper. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Mr. Manuel Pineda San Nicolas.  Okay so, the original 

applicant is a Felix P. San Nicolas. 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Yes.  He is deceased. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Deceased?  Is he your father? 

Mr. San Nicolas:  He is my father. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Your father, okay.  And you were the beneficiary, for your 

father? 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Yes ma’am.  There’s only **inaudible**  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay and it looks, okay so.  Your lease was prepared for lot 

480-57-1 in the municipality of Agat. 



 

 
Page 51 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Yes ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It was signed by you, on April twenty-six, of last year, and 

also signed by the director so, it was the lease, you had the lease, it was all signed 

everything was good.  But this was the one that the director red lined, red marked.  And 

it was under the radar until just the last few months, so, now, thank you for coming 

before us.  Do we have his… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Yeah. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  His dad Felix San Nicolas was the original applicant.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:   Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Passed away, no beneficiary named. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  In nineteen ninety-nine. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  The families came in to try to take over. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  But the Administrative Director denied their request, 

because they did not meet the hundred eighty-day timeline.  They came back later on, I 

guess, after another administration.  And provided the commission with letters from all 

the siblings, giving it all to Mr. San Nicolas.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  And then, that’s when the… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The lease was prepared. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  The lease was prepared and it was approved.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Okay, so… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Are you residing on that place?   

Mr. San Nicolas:  Every now and then. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. San Nicolas:  Just to protect my investments.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Mr. San Nicolas surveyed.  It’s surveyed. 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Everything is done. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Everything is done with the lease, but he is one of the 

thirty where it was ready for Governor signature, and the director. 



 

 
Page 52 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  It requires board approval, so, that’s the problem with the red line, 

most of the red line.  If the lease requires board approval, but I think for now it just 

needs the Administrative Director’s signature.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  I’m sorry, I know that we approved leases that are in 

this category of red mark.  Did we issue new leases based on the old? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah, that was… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The old date? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  That was able to record the leases. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Without the Governor’s signature, on there.  Tried to with 

Land Management.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  

Land Administrator M. Borja:  It didn’t meet the recording requirement. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, we had to re do the leases, with the director’s name 

and all the… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is it dated.  Did we back date to the original lease…? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  No.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It was a new type…okay.  Okay, so. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  We need to approve it, the board. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:   Yeah, so now the board needs to consider Mr. Manuel 

Pineda San Nicolas to re issue a lease.  That he inherited from his father, Felix P. San 

Nicolas, for lot 480-57-1. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  480- 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Dash, 57, dash 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  57, dash 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Dash one 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Where? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Agat 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Agat, Agat.  So, my earlier comment of why were not re 

visiting the pre moratorium leases is, I guess he is one that we… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Signed. 



 

 
Page 53 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Okay before I say it out, 480-57-1?  Okay.  So, we have to 

do a motion on this?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Did we want to look at the five?  Are we getting his file?  Oh, 

you have it?  Oh, here it is.  Okay, it was even notarized and everything.  I think we 

determined we’re gonna; 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Reissue 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to re issue lease that was inherited from Felix P. 

San Nicolas to Mr. Manuel Pineda San Nicolas, for lot 480-47-1; 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Five, seven 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  For lot 480-57-1, Agat.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A motion has been made and second it, all those in favor? 

Commissioners:  Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Aye’s have it.  Okay, sir, so your lease has been approved.  

Now the staff will just draft it up and just make sure that all the right signatures are 

recorded on there and then it will be recorded with Land Management.   

Mr. San Nicolas:  Will I get a copy of it?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, definitely. 

Mr. San Nicolas:  Thank you 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, thank you for coming.  Okay, next, I have a Brett T. 

Duenas for Public Comment.  Hi, hafa adai. 

Mr. Duenas:  Hafa adai. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hi, if you can state your name for the record. 

Mr. Duenas:  My name is Brett T. Duenas.  Chairwoman, hi, I’m here because my mom 

passed away, my brother was the beneficiary, my brother is off-island.  He was the 

beneficiary on my mom’s lease.  I am here to see if I can transfer… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Beneficiary rights to you? 

Mr. Duenas:  Yes, ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, I think… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Where’s the land at? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, so, where’s the, your…it’s your mother’s lease, right? 

Mr. Duenas:  Yes, ma’am.   



 

 
Page 54 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Where?  What village?   

Mr. Duenas:  Dededo.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  In Dededo, Residential.  So, your brother, who’s the 

beneficiary is Chase Taitano Junior? 

Mr. Duenas:  Yes, ma’ame. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And he is, would like to relinquish his beneficiary rights to 

you.   

Mr. Duenas:  Yes, that’s right.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, now you’re coming to the board requesting approval. 

Mr. Duenas:  Yes, ma’am. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, Legal Counsel, we’ve done this in the past, we just 

take board approval, right? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Chase hasn’t been issued a lease. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But the mother has been issued a lease? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  The mother has a lease. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, So, if the brother, if your brother had accepted it, then 

addendum to put his brother on the lease.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  And then come before the board to pass over to the 

beneficiary pass over seven years? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, I don’t think so.  So, I know we were talking about if this 

was a switch.  But I think… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  It would be a succession to the lease.  Because it is not 

technically a switch if the brother has not been on the lease yet.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Successor? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Successor, right.  So, it would be… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  So, it would be for the commission to decides to approve the 

bypassing of the brother and go directly to the other.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And does he, okay, I see you did apply already, and have 

your paid yet.  Has your brother submitted an affidavit?  Submitted?  Okay, there it is.  

Okay, so I see a notarized letter from your brother stating that he would like to, would 

like you to be successor of the lease and not himself okay.  So, this would require 

board approval actually, yeah.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Just to name as beneficiary, or… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Or, or successor. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  To the lease, okay. 



 

 
Page 55 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve Brett T. Duenas as successor of lease 

to Isabella Taitano Pen, for lot, track 11405, block 13, 25.  Municipality of Dededo.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A motion has been made and second it.  Further discussion? 

Commissioners:  No. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: All in favor? 

Commissioners:  Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, aye’s have it.  Okay, Mr. Duenas thanks for coming in. 

Mr. Duenas:  Thank you very much.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you, so the staff will be preparing an addendum with 

the lease under your name.  Thank you, sir. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, next is a Maria Martinez.  You are next! 

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hafa adai Ms. Martinez. 

Ms. Martinez:  Hafa adai. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you for your patience.   

Ms. Martinez:  Oh, patience is a virtue.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, state your name and let us know what we can do for 

you. 

Ms. Martinez:  My name is Maria Martinez and I am the wife of the late Antonio Vicente 

Martinez.  I’m just here to check my application because I was told about the, what do 

you call that, my husband passed away last year 2018 on December 14.  My son told 

me I needed to come down here to check on the title because, you know he was told 

that since he passed away, I had six months to come down and have it transferred to 

my name.  So, this is the reason why I came in.  I did that so, just wanted to find if, 

because I really have to take this to the Agriculture, under Agriculture.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I see. 

Ms. Martinez:  Because I have the lease there for the Bona fide Farmer and transfer it 

to my name. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Ms. Martinez:  And I do have a problem, I need an approval from you guys for a power.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  A utility authorization.   

Ms. Martinez:  Yes 



 

 
Page 56 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, that will come when the, get the lease in your name.  

For your case Ms. Martinez, I’m sorry about your husband’s passing and having to deal 

with all of that.   

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you came to the right place.  I see that your husband, Mr. 

Antonio Martinez has a lease an Agricultural Lease 

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Lot 6, Block, Tract 1021 in Dededo.  Just the staff report has 

it.  As you mentioned your husband is deceased, but he had no beneficiary designated.   

Ms. Martinez:  He did have one, but the problem is we didn’t bring down the death 

certificate.  We designated my son, my oldest, yeah so, we changed everything around 

and we do have a beneficiary for it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I, don’t think 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  She is talking about she designated for herself. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh okay.  You, to be more specific your husband didn’t have 

a beneficiary for him.   

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, in those cases, our rules allow the commission to 

designate a beneficiary for the lessee.  In that case, that you as the widow, you would 

be the first person we’d look at designating as beneficiary.  So, this is…your husband 

was a nineteen ninety-five applicant, and his lease was since nineteen ninety-seven.   

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And then I saw on the staff report that you are farming and 

continue to keep up the property. 

Ms. Martinez:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s wonderful.  Okay, so, in these instances, the 

commission has to make a motion to approve this beneficiary designation so she can 

succeed her husband’s lease. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve designating Maria Santos Martinez as 

successor of Antonio San Agustin Martinez, under public law 23-38, section 9.2.  For 

lot 6, Block 2, Tract 10121 Dededo.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Motion made and second it, further discussion. 

Commissioners:  None 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  All in favor? 

Commissioners:  Aye. 



 

 
Page 57 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Aye’s have it.  Okay, ma’am, so your request to be the 

beneficiary for your late husband’s lease has been approved. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Continue farming. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, please continue farming.   

Ms. Martinez:  If any of you wants avocado, gives a call. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh!  I’ll take you up on that. 

Ms. Martinez:  Oh, I will be there Mary.  Anytime. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, with that lease approval, the staff will prepare an 

addendum to your husband’s lease to put your name on it and a utility authorization.  

That’s also what your requesting, they’ll be able to take care of that in house.   

Ms. Martinez:  Thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Martinez.   

Ms. Martinez:  Thank You. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Thank you and enjoy your farming. 

Ms. Martinez:  Yes.  So, I will give you guys avocados.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you. 

Ms. Martinez:  Goodbye dear. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, next for Public Comment is Julia Q. Tenorio.  Hafa 

adai, please state your name for the record. 

Ms. Tenorio:  My name is Julia Tenorio. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hi. 

Ms. Tenorio:  Hi.  My daughter…**inaudiable**   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Dispensa, hayi naan-mu? 

Mr. Barcinas:  **Responds in CHamoru** My name is Ramon Barcinas. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Ramon Barcinas.   

Mr. Barcinas:  **Speaks in CHamoru** Yes, Antonio Salas, Sanome’s father.  When 

Antonio passed away, he gave his daughter the land.   

Ms. Tenorio:  **Speaks in Chamoru** Do you want him to speak in English? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  **Speaks in CHamoru** No, CHamoru is fine, you can 

translate for us. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  **Responds in CHamoru** Yes, please, some don’t 

understand. 



 

 
Page 58 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Barcinas:  Okay, my auntie Sanome, gave me the land as well as the mother.  To 

occupy the land, as they were in the mainland.  **Responds in CHamoru**Wait, I’m 

speaking in CHamoru again.  And so, what happened was she, her and the mother and 

the father were living, until all of a sudden, the dad died, and he was deceased.  And 

what happened was, the Land Management had given them authorization to continue 

staying there for, yeah, and you know, until a storm came, the house was destroyed.  

So, what happened was after the house and land was destroyed, they ended up not 

allowing them to stay there anymore.  With that also the sibling in the mainland tried to 

petition them out.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Why? 

Mr. Barcinas:  That was not clear to me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sorry, just a question.  So, this is your auntie Sanome S. 

Malia.   

Mr. Barcinas:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Who was staying… 

Ms. Tenorio:  That’s my daughter. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s your daughter.  Outside, what is your relation? 

Ms. Tenorio:  Este, he is my great nephew.  I reared him, so. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Interpreter. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Ms. Tenorio:  He speaks for me when I’m all stressed out, like right now. I’m very 

stressed out, it’s just too long already, since nineteen ninety-five.  Since nineteen 

ninety-nine we were given this CHamoru Land Trust Commission signed by Mr. Borja?  

Director?  Former Director of CHamoru Land Trust that we were to continue to occupy 

235 Meno Street, up in Nimitz Hill, however, my late husband passed away, Salas, I 

was a Salas before now I’m a Tenorio.  He died in the year two thousand in November.  

So, in December first two thousand, we were given another paper saying that we can 

continue to live until, we were promised to be given, you know a lease.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Ms. Tenorio:  We’ve been waiting and waiting and waiting.  So, finally, when he passed 

away, we found out that he did do a beneficiary, and this is about the two thirty Meno 

Street okay.  There was a beneficiary and it was to Sanone, that’s the daughter, his 

biological daughter.  Okay, so, what happened was… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I’m sorry, who was the one that had the designated, the 

beneficiary designation? 

Ms. Tenorio:  My late husband, Antonio Salas that was given authority to continue to 

live there with my daughter.  Two thirty Meno Street. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Who was there before? 



 

 
Page 59 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Tenorio:  Before that it was my mother in law, she passed away, she is deceased.  

And the property was abandoned for years, so, we decided to go up there we, you 

know, cleaned it up, we built a house. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, it was your mother in law, the pre-occupier? 

Ms. Tenorio:  Pre-occupier, but she, she passed away. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, yeah.   

Ms. Tenorio:  So, she died in the mainland, back in Texas.  So, what happened was, 

when we tried to go back up there to, you know, we got our life straighten out and, you 

know, we wanted to rebuild.  To live there again, my daughter, well not me, my 

daughter.  CHamoru Land Trust, Ms. Jhoana told us, go ahead, told my daughter to go, 

you know to do a quick, what you call that?  Switch of date and time, which she has 

here.  Instructed to do that.  So, she went ahead and did it, and then later on they told 

her she couldn’t do it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Ms. Tenorio:  Because what they were using was my nineteen ninety-five application, 

that was, you know used to keep the property.  Now that property was not registered.  

How can it not be registered, it’s been surveyed?   

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru** There is no way to survey the land if it is not 

registered.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  My fluency is not as good… 

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru** I am sorry, but when I first came in it said 

CHamoru Land Trust so, but we cannot speak in CHamoru.  Because if I speak in 

English, sometimes I cannot speak.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I’m Sorry. 

Mr. Barcinas:  Yeah.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I tried to raise myself up, unfortunately, my father never… 

Mr. Barcinas:  My message might not necessarily get across because I might say 

something else, but I guess basically, can a land be properly surveyed without being 

registered? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No. 

Mr. Barcinas:  So, why is that’s where I am at right now. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well… 

Ms. Tenorio:  Approved by territorial whatever, director of Land Management.   

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru** Give it to them so they can see. 

Ms. Tenorio:  Can she look at it? 



 

 
Page 60 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Dispensa yu, Sinot Ramon, I’d really admire your…I wish I 

was as fluent as you, I.  I assume your parents, your family taught you growing up.   

Ms. Tenorio:  I was a CHamoru teacher, nai. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You so suetti, so, I was not that lucky. 

Mr. Barcinas:  Well when it comes to the English then, sometimes the concepts that I’m 

issuing aren’t coming clear. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I understand.   

Mr. Barcinas:  So, when it turns out, you know, it turns out wrong then, I end up losing 

my situation.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well we’ll try our best and if we’re… 

Mr. Barcinas:  You guys can do it if…see, I can speak, I can speak my very best to 

articulate.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You said that two five three Meno Street? 

Ms. Tenorio:  I don’t know about that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is the yellow where you were occupying? 

Ms. Tenorio:  The area was surveyed during the time of my father in law, but my 

mother in… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, it might be that it is registered.  So, as Margarita 

has expressed, we have to check… 

Ms. Tenorio:  So. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  If it’s registered or not.   

Ms. Tenorio:  I did turn this into CHamoru Land Trust. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  So, I have been through this with Ms. Tenorio the past several 

years. 

Ms. Tenorio:  That’s Sanonie. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  I, I do recall, your, your situation, so, as I advised you guys 

before given the situation with your late husband, there, he was at one time given the 

occupancy to stay on the family property.  But over time, there was a letter from 

siblings to relinquish it to one sibling.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Your late husband’s siblings?   

Ms. Tenorio:  Yes, because there was problem with them.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  They relinquished it to one sister, and the sister currently now 

has the lease for the said property that their claiming.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, so, there’s an existing lease…**interrupted** 



 

 
Page 61 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru** Excuse me, but their sister is in America and no 

one on the place.  How is that she was given a lease when she is not there?  What is 

that?   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  For whatever reason though, we just need to do a staff report, 

go back… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, thank you for coming, but this is a very complex case, 

that we won’t be able to fully address today.  So, we’re going to have to the staff 

prepare a staff report, so it can be presented on our Agenda, and give you the right fair 

time.  Have all the documents before us, so that we can address your issues and 

concerns.   

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru** I have two more questions. 

Ms. Tenorio:  He has two more questions. 

Mr. Barcinas:  I’ll try my best but like I said, if, because I have a problem with my 

concept comes out wrong, but I’ll try.  Really quickly, when it comes to, when it comes 

to her really, that’s one thing, but is it lawful for my auntie here to receive her own 

property and Sanone is married, and she applied for her own property, she’s been 

waiting since ninety-five.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  I think for your question, like I said I think we really 

need to revisit this as a whole, and we can have your file here, Ms. Tenorio, so, we can 

know what exactly what we’re dealing with, and make the right determination.  Kay… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  You’re nineteen ninety-five  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Unfortunately, it can’t be today.  Okay, let’s go from there. 

Mr. Barcinas:  So, that’s what the issues are so hard because my auntie 

sees…**inaudible** 

Ms. Tenorio:  It’s okay, they took my lease and covered what is going on. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  What? 

Ms. Tenorio:  You took my nineteen ninety-five lease, and covered up with, you know, 

with us to say oh okay, I, I applied for Residential, and then when my daughter applied 

an agent told her to, I have it here, get Agriculture.  That was fine, right.  But at least it’s 

a property for my daughter, I, really don’t care about myself, but it came to the point 

where they said no, it’s illegal, no we, but when you guys are done with my lease, 

using it to whatever do whatever, toy it around, it’s just, you know, not ethical, it’s not 

right.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I’m sorry, so your application. 

Ms. Tenorio:  My application, I mean, I’m so sorry.  Nineteen ninety-five application 

was used.  You know to just hold everything down where, to cover up whatever wrong 

was being done.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We can do a further breakdown.   



 

 
Page 62 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, I guess… 

Ms. Tenorio:  Well, I don’t mean to, you know, when you mentioned it, I think it’s time I 

withheld it.  What I heard Ms. Jhoana, you told my daughter, you will see what you can 

do… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  At that time, ma’am, at that time though when we looked at your 

file, there were notes put in your file ma’am.  That was before my time.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I understand your frustrated and I want to get to the bottom of 

this.  Okay, so I am glad you came today.  And we’re going to have to put you on the 

Agenda for a future date so we have everything before us, we can make those 

determination.  But you will be, you have the nineteen ninety-five application, your still 

there. 

Ms. Tenorio:  **inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, and Jhoana informed your daughter, unfortunately, the 

switch that was allowed back then is null and void.  Your back in line where you were.   

Ms. Tenorio:  For my daughter, not for me.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right, the switch. 

Ms. Tenorio:  Yeah.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You still have your place in line, your nineteen ninety-five 

application.  Is still valid, so, now we just, we’ll have to schedule another time with you 

and hopefully you can rejoin us, then state your case so we can make some 

determination. 

Mr. Barcinas:  So, what they did is not affected.  You still have a chance…**inaudible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, you still have your application 

Mr. Barcinas:  Another question I had before you people, **speaks in CHamoru**Why 

are there some given land that has no infrastructure?  They paid for survey and was 

given a lease to build a house, but no infrastructure.  That is Agriculture, she was given 

one acre, and when they went to Yigo, they told us that we are the ones.  So, my 

question is Agriculture, they give land to farm but cannot nothing can be planted.  

needs edit.  Why people with no land can get water from the Mayor.  Another problem, 

when you give a land, at least assist with having water there.  Because we are the 

ones who are paying, right?  That is no problem, but for us to put it in there.  Land 

Agent J. Bragg:  What does that mean?  I’m confused. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Okay.   

Mr. Barcinas:  If you can answer the fact, that the Agricultural land supposed to be for 

farming.  The land is nothing but rock and dirt.  That would be remedy by planting 

fertilizer grass and all kinds of stuff, but no use if they’re going to continue to dry up by 

sun, because that soil has no nutrients.  So, the least we can do is, bring the water 

closer so all we have to pay for is our pipes.  Basically, GWA wants us to do like their 



 

 
Page 63 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

job and try to pay for the infrastructure, infrastructure, yeah.  See what happens when I 

speak English?  You know what I mean, right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, 

Mr. Barcinas:  Do you see? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, and you’re one of many individuals have properties that 

are unusable, so.  I have no answers for you today.  I’m sorry, Mr. Barcinas. 

Mr. Barcinas:  **speaks in CHamoru**Okay, then, thank you.  I feel good that my aunt 

is here and getting her land.  But these kinds of questions, should wake the people up, 

because they are lucky. Please, turn it around and answer the questions that I am 

asking.  Listen to CHamoru English style.  You need to follow Angel Santos.  CHamoru 

is an official language of Guam.  Where I speak the language.  The reason for that is 

because this is Guam, in Germany, people are speaking German, I can’t turn around 

and say English please.  Now I don’t mind speaking it, I don’t, not to offend people, the 

reason I say this is because we need to start perpetuate and we need to be heard with 

our language, si yu’os ma’ase (thank you).   

Commissioner A. Santos:  **responds in CHamoru**Your welcome.   

All:  Biba!  Biba CHamoru! 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s another one for the next…okay, next on our Public 

Comment is a Julia Q. Tenorio.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  She was just here. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, we a multiple signed up?  Okay.   

Audience Member:  Is there a Roland Tenorio? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, and a Roland Tenorio.  Did you want to provide public 

comment today?   

Mr. Tenorio:  This is concerning my home in Sagan Linahyan.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Tenorio:  I’m confused because when I go up to Revenue and Taxation to pay my 

property tax.  The land that I’m assigned in is mine.  But in the other side of the fence, 

the home that I’m residing I own too.  Me and my ex-girlfriend, okay.  That is the 

confusion I have. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  That’s Land for the Landless 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, this is Land for the Landless?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah, it’s not CHamoru Land Trust. 

Mr. Tenorio:  Yeah, it’s over at Sagan Linahyan. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Linahyan. 

Mr. Tenorio:  But it’s called the Dollar housing. 



 

 
Page 64 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Dollar housing 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, so you don’t have a Land Trust lease, do you? 

Mr. Tenorio:  No, I don’t have a Land Trust.  I used to have… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  What issue is this?  I’m sorry sir.  I think this not a CHamoru 

Land Trust issue.  This is a, because you… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Dollar home. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  For the Land for the Landless program, you actually own the 

home.  Here at the Land Trust we only issue leases.   

Mr. Tenorio:  Oh 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, so, who… 

Mr. Tenorio:  I have question, I used to own property up there near Agafa Gumas.  It 

was under the Arendu.  So, what happened was the at the time, Governor Ada said, 

that if you were allotted a home in Astumbo, you can go ahead and keep that property 

in an Agafa Gumas.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  No, you either get Land for the Landless or Arendu.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sir, I’m sorry this is outside of our jurisdiction.  I’m sorry we 

can’t help you not in our, not within our program.   

Mr. Tenorio:  Then can I apply for Agriculture? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sir, we’re accepting application  

Mr. Tenorio:  Even if I own a house in… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, but you will be a two thousand nineteen applicant and 

we’re still trying to get through the nineteen ninety-five applicants.   

Mr. Tenorio:  Nineteen ninety…yeah nineteen ninety-three okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Mr. Tenorio:  But if I do apply for Agriculture, can I apply for two acres? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, I think we’re only allowed to give half acre?  Agriculture?  

We’re only allowed to give no more than half acre lots. 

Mr. Tenorio:  Oh wow.  I thought it was one acre? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran: I believe it’s half acre.   

Mr. Barcinas:  I thought Residential is half acre? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Agriculture, you can apply for one, provided you have a farm 

plan.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  I think it requires Legislative approval for anything over half acre. 



 

 
Page 65 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Half acre. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, anything over an acre, Residential or Agricultural. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Agriculture 

Mr. Tenorio:  So, right now you guys are just working on the nineties?  Nobody yet can 

come in and apply? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No!  You can apply, put your name on the list. 

Mr. Tenorio:   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, thank you Mr. Tenorio.  Four o’clock again?  Okay.  

We need to have someone talk to PBS, figure out why are they cutting out early.  The 

second meeting.  No, no, we’ll handle it.  You’re following orders, sir. 

PBS:  Yeah. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Media? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, PBS.  It’s a in kind service they are providing.  Can I, 

sorry, can I get that added to our notes for the director, he needs to check on that.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  What’s next on the Agenda?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Just a moment.  Okay, next is Anjolisha Aguon.  Hafa adai, 

welcome back.   

Ms. Aguon:  Hi.  I wrote a letter for the commission.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  And it’s notarized.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Ms. Aguon:  I want to withdraw my request to relocation.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Relocation? 

Ms. Aguon:  Sorry, and… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  And it’s for you.  And if you can just make a copy for my father in law’s file.  

The director told me to get it notarized.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, you’re going to apply for… 

Ms. Aguon:  To withdraw my relocation.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, just… 

Ms. Aguon:  To withdraw my request. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 



 

 
Page 66 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Aguon:  He was on the moratorium list too.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, you’re still going to withdraw your father in law’s… 

Ms. Aguon:  We’re still working with DPW to open up that fifty-foot easement. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You did?   

Ms. Aguon:  Well he did, he’s not bugging anymore.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  I get worried when I thought he was… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  He was here for the meeting but he didn’t come in.   

Ms. Aguon:  I didn’t see him here. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I saw him and I thought he got into the wrong place.   

Ms. Aguon:  Oh.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, we have to look at this again with Ms. Aguon’s 

case.  Then Mr. Gregory’s case, because we never made a determination.   

Ms. Aguon:  You didn’t motion anything yet.  It was just a request for me to… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You said, oh I will do it, okay that solves it.   

Ms. Aguon:  No, the road is still closed, we are still walking through jungle, still.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  So, it’s still not cleared up? 

Ms. Aguon:  Well the fifty-foot is still open.  Fifty-foot goes like this, our road goes like 

this that means our road is still jungled out, where his piggery is at.  The fifty-foot is 

open, but I don’t know is he going to remove the fence that is blocking… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, his fence is still there? 

Ms. Aguon:  They just removed what was blocking their fifty-foot, but ours, I wanted to 

find out what is, can we remove that fence ourselves? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The, you’re talking about… 

Ms.Aguon:  Fifty-foot easement.  Then our road goes in here.  The front is here… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, they have to follow the easement?  Legal Counsel? 

Ms. Aguon:  That’s what I’m trying to find out, but the fence is still there. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  The road has to follow the fifty-foot easement, that’s what an 

easement is, right?  Right of way. 

Ms. Aguon:  Yes, that’s the flag lot.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We went out to visit the area. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Couple days ago. 



 

 
Page 67 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Aguon:  It was yesterday. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Possible yesterday, I, I saw her two days ago.  So, we did GPS 

the area, we did GPS where the piggery is, so, we’re working with DPW to remove the 

pan handle so that they, you know, have their access in.  So, it doesn’t have to bother, 

because right the piggery sits on this, this easement, so, we’re trying to propose to 

possible move it a little bit and move the easement up.  So, that, it’s a concrete, 

concrete piggery area.  Yeah, just a matter of survey just survey division just finalizing 

it or you know, we’re still working with them to see what we can do.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Add another, the person that, the person that occupying 

this house, came in yesterday. 

Ms. Aguon:  Yes, to apply 

 Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  To apply under the pre occupancy for LUP status.  It’s 

just going to be, I mean, this, if I’m not mistaken, I heard we, retracting her relocation 

request, means that she is going to retain staying there but Tomasa Aguon, whose 

claim, that the board approved. 

Ms. Aguon:  No, nothing was approved.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Did the board… 

Ms. Aguon:  Nothing was approved.  Nothing was motioned.  I even listened to the 

audio before I came in today to make sure I did not indefinite that relocation it just a 

request.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well we have to go to reopen this whole can of worms, 

dealing with Tomasa Aguon.  We need to revisit it, we will check our minutes, see what 

we’ve decided, if anything.  What we can do moving forward.   

Ms. Aguon:  Yeah, all I was told was get with the staff, so I did.  We looked, we were 

shown several, maybe two, there were issues, you know, there was one that wasn’t 

accessible to power and water.  We would have to bring it ourselves.  So, I was 

thinking why do we have to restart over, you know, when we have something there.  

We’re already close to gaining the power access and you know, the lease.  Why would 

we have to relocate for a small issue, I’ve been in out of this place for almost two years 

already.  I mean I wasn’t there since ninety-five, but I’ve been fighting for my father in 

law because he has been there since ninety-three.  So, you know, when you stated 

that you can’t displace him, because he has been there and she left.  I figured, hey you 

know, why do we have to leave.  We were already there at that point.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  So, I didn’t think it would be an issue, to withdraw my request.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I’m sorry, the woman that is living here, the lady,  

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Bernice Aguon. 



 

 
Page 68 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah, she had mentioned that her husband, or something 

was the one that given this place or built this house, something like that.  I can’t 

remember exactly.   

Ms. Aguon:  Husband or her father? 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Her father.   

Ms. Aguon:  Her father is Gregory’s father too, yes, he did build that house, but that 

house is going down.  It’s going down because along the boundary.  It needs to be 

rebuilt in the middle.  So, there’s only supposed to be one structure, if I’m not mistaken.  

So, we are already in compliance.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  So, that house is supposed to go down, actually.  It’s so old already, it’s 

eaten by termites, it’s not even livable anymore.  Well I live in it with my kids.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  But this is the house that’s going to remain in… 

Ms. Aguon:  Okay, so, you see the house on the right is going to go down. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  This one? 

Ms. Aguon:  Yes, so, we can build extension, just as long as they’re connected right?  

So, that’s what we’re going to do, break it down and build by extension.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  And build, you mean as an extension to this house? 

Ms. Aguon:  Yes!  Or if, if you know have the funds, because my husband is just 

waiting like everyone is, waiting for their tax refund, if what, and if do get that money, 

then of course, we would build a semi to that house.  Extension by extension, we can’t 

afford to build a full-on concrete house.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well like I said, we need to revisit this because your father in 

law doesn’t even have a lease for this, so, we have to revisit this. 

Ms. Aguon:  He was a part of the red “x” lease.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.  Okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  On that list. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, as, when we get this on the Agenda to revisit, we also 

need to look at Tomasa Aguon, and this new, maybe. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  If you really think about it that’s two parcels of land, but 

three people are taking claim to a LUP.  Kind of like a… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Pre occupancy, they are claiming pre occupancy.   

Ms. Aguon:  She’s able to get a Mayor’s certification stating she is on that lot.  

Separated 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  That’s fine.   



 

 
Page 69 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Ms. Aguon:  So, what’s wrong? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Let’s focus on this one. 

Ms. Aguon:  You know, what’s the issue though?  What are you trying to…? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, we just need to relook at the case, because last you 

wanted to look elsewhere.  So now that you withdraw that request, then we have to 

relook at the whole case.   

Ms. Aguon:  And we will be on the next Agenda?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  As soon as we can fit you on, you know… 

Ms. Aguon:  What happens after that? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  We’ll make that decision at that point.   

Ms. Aguon:  So, we can’t say nothing right now? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You can’t what? 

Ms. Aguon:  Say nothing for now, what… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, we can’t make a determination at the point.   

Ms. Aguon:  So, next meeting I will be on the Agenda again?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well, I mean we have to see what our Agenda looks like. 

Ms. Aguon:  Oh okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And we will get you on as soon as we can.  But for now, stay 

where you are… 

Ms. Aguon:  So, we can break that house down and start fixing it? 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  I wouldn’t do anything, until we verify because we cannot 

answer your questions right until we look back into it.  We already planned for it, but 

now that you retracted it, they have to make sure they are not bypassing every, it’s just 

about having checks and balances, and we’re not doing everything backwards 

everything. 

Ms. Aguon:  Okay. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Yeah, I know it’s an inconvenience; 

Ms. Aguon:  No, no it’s not a problem.  I don’t mind waiting more, we were waiting for 

so long.  So, you know, so… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  So, we just wait until the next meeting and then hopefully something can 

move forward.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, we will get you on.  We will get you on our Agenda so, 

we can finalize this because I know your father in law’s lease was the one red marked.   



 

 
Page 70 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Gumatoatao:  With regards to her demolishing and all that stuff… 

Ms. Aguon:  No, I’m not going to demolish it, the house is falling already.  So, it’s not 

safe for my kids.  The house, if you guys really look at my garage if you went there to 

take pictures, you would see that it’s not safe.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I understand… 

Ms. Aguon:  But… 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I understand I was just answering the question… 

Ms. Aguon:  Oh okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Whether or not you can… 

Ms. Aguon:  Break it down? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think the commission already answered her. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  She needs an authorization. 

Ms. Aguon:  Yeah, she said I couldn’t, so, yeah.  It will just be left like that, if it falls, it 

falls, right.  Hello, as long as I didn’t demolish it, its own.  Right? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, we will put you on our Agenda.   

Ms. Aguon:  All right, thank you 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  At the same time, they are going to figure out about your 

access.   

Ms. Aguon:  Okay, DPW is going to open it or… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, only… 

Ms. Aguon:  They are going to remove the fence. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right.  They wouldn’t open because that’s part of… 

Ms. Aguon:  We can do but the fence part.  That’s all I’m asking.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  The fence, I mean, we went out there… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Who built the fence? 

Ms. Aguon:  Mr. Benavente.  Mr. Benavente built the fence. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Yeah, we went out and DPW already flagged your pan-handle, 

so, part of the fence, on the pan handle is what we’re questioning about.  So, we did 

see that there’s a path way going in, it’s just a matter of that part of the fence that sits 

on your pan-handle, is whether or not DPW will possibly come into, you know, remove 

it.  That, just a small portion of the fence.   

Ms. Aguon:  Just the, just actually the pipes only.   



 

 
Page 71 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Are they allowed to remove it themselves because it’s on that 

property? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  I am not too sure, you… 

Ms. Aguon:  It’s on the flag lot.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Without speaking with Mr. Benavente or not, I am not too sure 

with the correspondence out there.  We would have to verify. 

Ms. Aguon:  But I am getting with Karen, Karen over at Highway, over at DPW and 

highways and something like that.  I can’t remember her name, but I know she’s the 

one that will have the guys to go out there and do that.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think the best, the best way forward is let’s figure out, let’s 

get a lease out, then there’s no question as what you can do on the property, okay. 

Ms. Aguon:  Yeah, alright.  Okay, so I will see you on June.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hopefully. 

Ms. Aguon:  Thank you.  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  After that or before that.   

Ms. Aguon:  Oh, see I am hoping for that then. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  The way I’m reading this, there’s more than one person.  

Are they all living with each other? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I don’t know.  Next is a Ms. Anita Benavente.  Oh, hafa adai, 

ma’am. 

Ms. Benavente:  Hafa adai. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hi ma’am.  So, it looks like the staff had something prepared.  

Can you state your name for the record? 

Ms. Benavente:  My name is Anita Mendiola Benavente.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Hi ma’am.  Can we just take a look at this? 

Ms. Benavente:  Sure, sure. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  We need to catch up a little bit.  So, it looks like…okay, Ms. 

Benavente, looks like your husband has a lease. 

Ms. Benavente:  He passed away just this past December.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sorry ma’am.  Okay, so, this is another case, where the 

beneficiary, the successor to the lease was identified as your grandson, and he 

submitted a notarized letter relinquishing his rights to you.  

Ms. Benavente:  Correct. 



 

 
Page 72 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, who did we see that from…with Brett Duenas.  We just 

heard from him; we approved that succession. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Just note, madam Chair, Mr. Benavente is under the 102… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Switch 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Ms. Benavente was the original, so, in her, if you read through 

her case, she was the original applicant, but transferred to the husband due to a VA 

loan, and he’s named a benefactor and Brett was his grandson but now giving it back 

to Ms. Benavente who is the original… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Applicant. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Who is the original applicant to this file. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh! So, do we need to go through this route because if the 

lease was null and void. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  I’d say just to clarify.  Just do motion to approve application back 

to her. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh.  Okay.   

Legal Counsel Toft:  Provided there is no question. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  So, to remedy we made a motion to transfer. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to approve transfer of T15213 B6 L5, Mangilao, 

back to Anita Mendiola Benavente.  Based on Public Law 23-38, Section 7.5, as the 

original lessee. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Motion made. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  I second it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And second it.  Further discussion? 

Commissioners:  None. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  All in favor?   

Commissioners:  Aye. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, Aye’s have it.  Okay ma’am, the lease will now, 

addendum, you’ll have an addendum to the lease to put it in your name.  Thank you, 

ma’am, thank you for coming.  Thank you staff for having these reports… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  There were two sheets 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s okay.  I have;  

Land Agent J. Bragg:  She actually wanted to sign up under Public Comment. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sure.  Can I have your name ma’am? 

Ms. Muna:  Therese Muna.   



 

 
Page 73 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Therese? 

Ms. Muna:  Muna. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Muna, okay Ms. Muna, I’ll call you up in a few minutes.  Alan 

D. Jackson.  Hafa adai Mr. Jackson, we’re glad you’re here.  Brother of Aurthur? 

Mr. Jackson:  Yes, ma’am.  We just got one thing to bring up. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, sir. 

Mr. Jackson:  I have a sixty-day survey authorization.  It was issued to me in two 

thousand eight, I was wondering if I can re update that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Sure 

Mr. Jackson:  So, I can go forward surveying my, the area where I was awarded for 

lease.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes, I think that can happen, you just have to get with the 

staff. 

Mr. Jackson:  Oh, so, I just go straight to you guys later? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Mr. Jackson:  That’s as of today? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Mr. Jackson:  Oh okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Right? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  The director can approve it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, so we, the director can make those approval. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Sixty days 

Mr. Jackson:  Okay.  I got one more question. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Mr. Jackson:  Earlier I heard something about a half-acre for Agriculture lot.  I was 

awarded a lease for one acre.  Yeah, I’m not… 

Commissioner A. Santos:  With a farm plan. 

Mr. Jackson:  Yeah, I’m, I’m an applicant of nineteen ninety-five, just, just. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Do you currently have a lease? 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah, that’s just the current state.  If you were awarded a lease 

before, this law went into effect in **In audible**  

Mr. Jackson:  So, yeah, I just need to get an update survey so I can get it surveyed so I 

can have a lease.   



 

 
Page 74 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, you were never issued a lease? 

Mr. Jackson:  Not yet. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I see. 

Mr. Jackson:  I just have the authorization. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  To… 

Mr. Jackson:  To also bring the power and water, but they said I can’t do that without 

that and being surveyed, lease, yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Are you currently occupying sir? 

Mr. Jackson:  Say that again? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Are you currently occupying on the…? 

Mr. Jackson:  Yeah.  I’ve been since nineteen ninety-four.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Is this Mangilao? 

Mr. Jackson:  Yeah. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Pre occupier. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Okay.  But just issued a survey authorization no lease. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Two thousand eight. 

Mr. Jackson:  I was given everything, I, by the time I didn’t have the money and then I 

did, then my common law, you know, she’s a heart patient.  So, yeah. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Ai adai. 

Mr. Jackson:  But I mostly focus on her.  So, now I… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Now you’re ready. 

Mr. Jackson:  Move forward and get this on my where I’m at.  My common law has 

issues with her heart.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, since this issued with no lease for that one acre,  

Mr. Jackson:  Want to see the paper that was… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah, pre occupier stands. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s okay, we can 

Legal Counsel Toft:  **in audible** 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  That’s okay, work with the staff to get the survey 

authorization done, then we’ll work towards getting the lease. 



 

 
Page 75 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Mr. Jackson:  Is there anyone in particular, because last year I saw Glenn I. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  uhhuh. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Eay. 

Mr. Jackson: Oh Glenn Eay, yeah, as a matter of fact he visited me like two years ago.  

They even give me some certificate that they visited.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, who does he?  Yeah.  Just come on in and they will 

direct you to the right staff.   

Mr. Jackson:  So, who do I see? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  No, just come in and we’ll, anyone who’s available will 

assist you. 

Mr. Jackson:  Is there anyone today? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Tomorrow or the day after. 

Mr. Jackson:  Oh, tomorrow, okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  The office is closed 

Mr. Jackson:  Oh, they are, okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  Okay. 

Mr. Jackson:  So, we’re good? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Jackson.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  Where’s this at? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Mangilao. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Mangilao. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, I have Ms. Therese Muna.   

Ms. Muna:  Do I have to say my name? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes. 

Ms. Muna:  My name is Therese Muna.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Hafa adai. 

Ms. Muna:  Hafa adai.  So, I have a question only.  I had a land surveyed by Ventura 

and, yeah and so, yeah, I think that gentleman in the yellow, he told me that my lease 

was marked “X”.  When I was looking at the original receipt that I got from Ventura, it 

says a different lot number, then the actually, I don’t know if it’s because TG changed 

it, but I’m not sure that’s why I am here to find out.  To clarify.  I understand I’m on the 

waiting list, I am one thousand something, I was back in nineteen ninety-five.  So, you 

know, I’m waiting patiently like everybody else.  But I just want to clarify the lot that I 

was actually paid Ventura for the land.  It was actually surveyed back in two thousand 



 

 
Page 76 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

five.  Because TG kind of got involved and I don’t know if they’re numbered the lot, so, 

whatever, I just want to make sure that, what happens if it’s a different lot than what I 

actually paid to have surveyed.  I mean what happens?  Is that the same lot? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  The only thing that is going to change is the lot 

description.  But not the… 

Ms. Muna:  The actual lot surveyed back in two thousand five? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah, it should have been the lot you are occupying 

today, right? 

Ms. Muna:  No, I, I never got a lease yet, actually… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Are you occupying? 

Ms. Muna:  No, no, no, we just never got the lease.  That’s why I never occupied.  I 

never occupied because I was waiting for the lease and actually, last year, it was after 

the Barrigada Heights thing, where I actually got the lease and notarized, I signed it, 

but I didn’t get a copy of it.  It was supposed to go to Calvo, Calvo didn’t sign it.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  It’s a part of the Pre moratorium. 

Ms. Muna:  And that’s why I’m so, just a little bit upset, because I haven’t heard an 

update.  So, I am a little bit concerned because I was looking at the numbers it’s 

different.  So, I was just a little bit concerned of how this all works.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  What we’ll do is we’ll have to revisit your case… 

Ms. Muna:  Right, right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  And then, we’ll have the staff prepare a staff report, it sounds 

like yours is one of the red marked, pre moratorium.   

Ms. Muna:  Yes, yes that’s what I was told and their very helpful when they told me 

that.  I didn’t really understand it all, but my main concern is just the numbers and what 

was surveyed. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Do we have her file? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We already worked with TG, but your map is still pending the lot 

description. 

Ms. Muna:  Yeah because it was never, Ventura never turned in to you guys to get it 

approved.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  The person that we’ve been, that comes in, you know, work with 

TG is just a matter of them finalizing it and submitting the final.  And then from there it’s 

just you getting issued the lease.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Should we just wait? 



 

 
Page 77 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Why would we wait?  We’ve issued other leases when there’s 

no completed survey. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  It’s another option, you can get a lease now, but you going to 

have to get another lease and then double… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Another lease?  or an Addendum? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  If she gets a lease now, it’s gonna, not going to give the correct 

lot description.  Versus when it’s finished... 

Ms. Muna:  I haven’t heard from TG or nothing, so, that’s why I am a little bit… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We can follow up again with Elly.   

Ms. Muna:  Yeah, that was just my concern is, you know I paid for this surveying and I 

don’t have a lease yet almost had a lease but, and so, my concern is will the lot change 

because I paid for it, I got receipts and everything.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It sounds like it’s just the name changed but the property 

didn’t.   

Ms. Muna:  Okay, that’s… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, Jhoana said she’ll check with TG see what’s the status 

with that.  Then, we’ll also be looking at your file and having a staff report so that a 

lease can be issued, because you’re pre moratorium lease was “X’d” out it was already 

signed, so the commission can revisit.  Revisit your lease and get you a new one. 

Ms. Muna:  Oh Okay.  With whatever, you know, I paid for everything and I want to 

make sure.  It was a long time ago, but I just want to make sure it’s going to be 

honored.  You know what I mean?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.   

Ms. Muna:  That was my concerned. I just wanted to find out because they did come 

here and you guys did review it and what not and I will get more information from  

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, so, we’ll, Jhoana will check with TG on the status. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Yes. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay 

Ms. Muna:  Okay, thank you for your time.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you.   

Ms. Muna:  Alright, you guys have a goodnight. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Is there anyone else for Public Comment today?   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  John Gumataotao. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, well let’s… 



 

 
Page 78 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  The only thing I have… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Commissioner comment? 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Well it’s just regarding what we’ve went over the last 

meeting, I want to get my thoughts on the lease, but these are not a lease.  There’s 

nothing wrong with them but it’s not in a lease format.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, I… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Joey put something together so, I think he had a more formal  

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Okay, I was just like… 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Yeah this is just a… 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Ma’dam Chair, before we stop the public comment 

section, I just kind of wanted to bring up something, regarding, not necessarily the staff 

of, maybe the direction in Trust wants to move forward on leases because recently 

stated that will lift the moratorium or self-moratorium of processing of leases.  But as an 

employee, you know, it’s kind of hard for us to put things in perspective, if we don’t 

know what the mere commitment and direction of those questionable things the 

switching, right, because if this Land Trust remain in a voided state, right, there was no 

vote by the board to say they’re actual voided, we have to go back and reverse 

whatever lease issued to a switch person or transferred person.  Then, a lot of things 

will arise out of that, because if a person switched, let’s say if I switched with my sister, 

and I got a lease, now it’s considered a voided lease, right, does that mean that the 

Trust is going to reverse the transfer, and give my sister the lot that I got a lease for.  

So, those are the things that come up, because you cannot put people back into line, 

right, and start off with number one, two, three, four, five, six, seven.  If you’re not going 

to address that issue, so, you can’t really move forward because number three, right, 

is, they didn’t get a less, I mean, a lease.  And they’re going to continue to say that 

we’re by passing them.  So, that’s what I kind of wanted, I mean I bring this up in our 

Monday staff meetings you know, but, so, kind of like hear us, I kind of like maybe I’ll 

just take it to, you know. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I appreciate you bringing it up and it sounds like what you’re 

asking for a resolution to the switches, null and voids.   

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Pretty much, only because we can’t, I mean, we can’t 

really, we are going to lift this moratorium when, here we can’t go and process, start 

processing or people back into line to start processing these applications, there’s still 

that issue of the leases that we did transfer, that are considered void, and the leases 

that are kind of like pending or, I mean I like to work but you know, trying to explain to 

our clients that yes, the moratorium is lifted but we still need to get a clear direction on 

how to approach this.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, okay.  I want to get a resolution and figure out what to 

do with the, I don’t know, two hundred people?  Right?  The switchers and… 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Yeah and mostly that and even that we are creating a, I 

don’t know what they call it but, you know when you do something, you have to do it for 



 

 
Page 79 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

everybody else on the same issue, right.  And you know, we’re coming across that 

now.  This recent one with the Aguon’s?  You know it’s, for me it’s kind of like, it’s 

crazy.  The Trust is really seriously get existing leases and terminate.  Perez for one, 

you know. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  They’re off island. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  No, Perez, she has a lease, lives on Guam, but yet she’s 

letting a family who probably won’t qualify because of the nationality or what, there’s no 

way they can claim native inhabitant, but they live there. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  There’s probably a lot of… 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  And you know there’s a lot of people in Yigo, you know, if 

we are thinking about bringing infrastructure in there, we’re going to see that it’s going 

to populated with people because most of the lots are issued.  Majority of those people 

that got leases are not living on Guam.  Or majority of those people that got leases own 

property.  It’s kind of, there’s so many, I mean I’d rather not say that should we 

prioritize, re prioritize the way we issue leases but we need to start somewhere.  And 

it’s either, you deal with the voided and all those questionable leases or you deal with 

the inventory and compliance part so that it can increase our inventory.  So, we will be 

able to process leases quick.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I’m just an Indian. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  You know what I’ve been thinking and I know that 

compliance enforcement is really, has to be addressed, because it’s such a fine line of 

property we have.  I mean, what I was kind of thinking was we can move both 

processes along at the same time.  So, when we review, but right now the new leasing 

is only for the Land for the Landless properties, right.  That is where the moratorium is 

lifted for at this point.  But at some point, we are going to have to look at existing sub 

divisions where there are already lessees there, might be a few vacant lots.  But going 

out and making decisions on the sub division level, doing a compliance on it, taking a 

clear understanding of whose there, are they compliant, if not, terminate their lease, 

and once that’s done, a leasing can happen to place people on those properties.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  So, you’re saying that we’re able to lease on Land for Landless?  

Given by time and date, you know, with new applicants coming in we can say, okay, 

this is an available lot.  Your number one, you know, if it like that? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, what do you mean? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Because if we are just going Land for the Landless, its, we’ve 

talked about it across board where possibly, we’re looking at Land for the Landless, but 

we also have another set of inventory, right, which is, you know, so, we have thought of 

like cleaning up the inventory, looking at what’s available, to include also the Land for 

the Landless.  Because if we are just going to say, only Land for Landless lots are what 

we’re going to issue, what about the other lots that we have avail?  So, that’s and if we 

have some of these lessees that their time and date is up, but we want other Land for 



 

 
Page 80 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Landless.  Are we open to, you know, go that route?  We want to be able to say well 

this what’s out there and move forward.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, I am hearing you want to inventory… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  I mean it’s better to assess all that available, and then distribute.  

It’s then we will be like, okay, we can look back and say, okay let me check if this is 

available and verify, versus, we just clean out and put in a time slot. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I’m open to hearing how that can be done.  You know, you, I 

am open to it.  I still like the Land for the Landless to start getting new leases on 

because those are easy.  Already identified properties and already have infrastructure.  

For the most part we don’t have to do any compliance on it, right.  I mean they’re 

supposed to be vacant.   

Commissioner A. Santos:  There is in Inarajan. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I agree I think the inventory; we have to know what we have 

to give out.   

Land Agent J. Bragg:  It’s just how we get clients coming in. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Maybe I can clarify, so, there’s this customer that comes 

in and he’s number twelve hundred, being that he’s or, who’s the one that was here, he 

was number two hundred and something, I think two ninety-two something like that.  

He asked what the status is, and I said okay, well you know, we can process your 

lease, as long as we get a clear direction that, number one to number two hundred and 

ninety-one, was already issued a lease, there’s no problems with that.  But what if they 

had a switch with somebody and let’s say that numbers two hundred and ninety was a 

transfer switch, right?  The board hasn’t decided if it was a clear voided lease and 

whether or not to reverse part of the decision.  Which means that number two ninety, 

would hold up everybody else after him because we now have to go back and make 

number two eighty-nine or two eighty-eight, two eighty-nine, have a lease, then we can 

issue two ninety.  Then if you get to my client, whatever, two ninety-one, but it’s hard to 

do, when, when this whole transfer thing just, I mean we can always bypass it, right?  

But it’s not going to do any justice for the people that had a transfer and whether or not 

we are going to reverse that decision, do we issue a lease, are they going to retain that 

property, or the reverse person, it’s… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, I was talking, I mean we tried to resolve it here.  I think 

one, one thing that some of those transfer and switches is when the beneficiary or 

original beneficiary relinquished it for somebody else.  Those were looked into our 

switches and transfer hundred and two list.  Those can be easily resolved.  We easily 

resolved two of them.  So, can you guys identify what leases those are, bring it before 

the board, and the board can act on it.  Let’s clear those out, those are no questions 

anymore.  But for all the remaining, I mean, I think we tried to resolve it here, I’ve been 

talking with Therese Terlaje, who’s the…, right?  And she, I sent a request to the 

director and he sent me something back, he asked for, or I asked for a list of applicants 

after nineteen ninety-five, who received leases, that were not pre occupiers, or land 

use permit holders, but we ratified their lease anyway.  So, Therese requested that, I 



 

 
Page 81 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

haven’t gotten a cleaned-up version, I have questions for the director, you guys cc’d on 

that?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  There were ninety-three, ninety-three of them that we 

identified and came back with a question, right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Questions. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Because I think that is our starting point.  I am going to be 

talking with Therese about and Legal Counsel to see if that’s an avenue, we ratified 

those, that are after nineteen ninety-five applicants. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  I know when we filtered it, we issued a lease, they were 

nineteen ninety-six and after, we filtered whether or not on the original applicants were 

occupying, a lot of them were blank.  So, we were saying, there got to be a reason why 

we issued them a lease, they have had to either changed their status of occupancy 

status, in, through paper works and they never updated the database to reflect that 

now they are saying they are occupying.  Yes, yes, we need to go back to those ninety-

three files to… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Just for the ones where it looks like they were pre occupiers.  

Because if they did switch with the pre occupier, then take them off the list.  So, the list 

I want to see is… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  The ones that were… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Not a pre occupier, whether they switched… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Not a ninety-five. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Not ninety-five. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Okay.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  If I can get that list, that would be a good start to clean.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  For the future… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, that means we got to go back into those ninety-three 

files and determine why we issued them.  And I know guarantee, it’s because they 

changed the status to no I am not occupying to yes, “I didn’t understand the question”.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  It was, not all ninety-three that, it was ninety-three that… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  We just filtered after ninety-six did not have a pre 

occupier status. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  I am not sure why they were on that list.  Why they were 

on that list. 



 

 
Page 82 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, just check those two to determine if they are pre 

occupiers or they are, get them off my list.  All I have are the lease holders not pre 

occupiers after ninety-five.  Okay.  Let’s start this. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Just to let you know, in January nineteen ninety-six, the 

director back then, started issuing lease to people in that year, January nineteen 

ninety-six.  You may see a bulk of it, that have an application date of January nineteen 

ninety-six.  And that was because after they did that two thousand nine on PDN, they 

went into ninety-six.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I see. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, if you see a bulk of ninety-six, it’s because of that. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, okay.  I mean I’m just going to like speculate, Therese 

is thinking, hey you guys are ratified leases for people that have after ninety-five 

applications, and are not pre occupiers, then why can’t you just issue leases for the 

people that switched who were ninety-five.  Put them back in line, issue them a lease.  

I’m wondering, I don’t know, and then that would be in our power, right. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  We can get it amended. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  We just… 

Land Administrator M. Borja: Just with the rules today? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, just to get it because we ratified it. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  Right. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  We would ratify it, but okay, so, it’s a starting point.  We 

ratified it. 

Legal Counsel Toft:  ***Inaudible*** 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  The lady that yell at me at the last meeting, I just wanted 

to say, Senator Therese Terlaje yielded the last meeting.  Since Senator Therese 

Terlaje is the committee chair, right, for lands, and before I noticed her staff members 

here, but they come to a time where it is really, no juice or fight on the issue that we’re 

discussing today.  And you know, for me, somebody that person, I would think, how 

hard is it for a bill to get introduced, to include in Public Law, the fact, you know this 

transfer, you know, it’s all switched, it’s okay to transfer, how hard is it, you know. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  She, I asked her the same thing, you know, just resolve it, 

she is very wary of amending a law that is currently in with Department of Justice.  She 

thinks it will look very bad if there is a lawsuit against us for this law and the Act, and 

then here we go amending it, changing things.  That was her concern, so, that’s why 

she is very wary to introduce a bill for that.  Yeah.   



 

 
Page 83 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  I mean that’s fine, people have different opinions on 

things especially since we’re employees of this Trust and we kind of hope and 

understand the law and the law needs that all our positions need and want, and for us 

is like this lawsuit has really nothing to do with, with you know, transferring or switching 

or any of that.  But anyway, that’s what I wanted to say.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay. 

Land Agent J. Gumataotao:  Thank you. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Thank you, guys I know the director has been out, I’m sure 

your trying to work as best as you can, thank you for being here today.   

Land Administrator M.Borja:  When’s the next meeting? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I don’t know. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  June ten?   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  June ten? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  June, Jhoana? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Oh, June six. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, I think he was here today, I saw him. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  He kind of comes in and out, we’re still scheduling 

appointments for him, daily. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay.  Oh, so, I’m going to be off island June twentieth.  

Sorry guys. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  No more meeting. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  I will be off island too. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh yeah, we won’t have quorum.  I know I said I’m going take 

the first Thursday off the list.  What do you guys think about let’s do the first Thursday, 

we’ll skip third Thursday of next month, and then we’ll do the third Thursday of July.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, you’re moving first Thursday to July? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yes.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Okay. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  So, no meeting in June? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  June six, June six is the next meeting. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  When does it land on?   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  When did I expire? 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Ninety days. 



 

 
Page 84 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  April.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  In April? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, April.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  April eight, I believe.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, July eight?   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Okay, so, I’m still good.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  July eight?  So, I mean gosh, we have a lot of, I really want to 

take care of these pre moratorium leases.  Get it out of the way, and then we also have 

a bunch of cases that came up today that need looking at.  I really would hate to ask 

our constituents to wait six weeks more.  Two months before having their case heard.  

They were here today.  So, what if we look at pre moratorium and we have to meet 

with Guam Raceway.  Right?  We, that deadline is June.  Yeah and we haven’t even 

issued a lease, yet, so…so, next meeting will be first Thursday of June, of June six.  

And then, we’ll, on the Agenda will be Raceway, pre moratorium, there are of them that 

are still pending.  Okay, and then… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  All the public comments 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah.  Public comments and other, like I said there were 

other cases that were taken off from previous meetings, that have not been brought 

forward.  So, do we… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We already have some of those, that we actually put on the past 

Agenda but… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  You have what? 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  We have some that were already done, for the, you know the 

one that you brought up, five and five.  You recall at the last meeting.  Okay, so, did 

you want all of the pre moratorium?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Are you able, we added on top of the thirty, identified 

twenty more that we found in files that were already, so, there’s about fifty that are all 

the same, nineteen ninety-five applicants.  And, how do you want a package, because 

instead of going line by line, to, I don’t know if that’s what you want to do it.  But it all, if 

their original applicant, their qualified, their nineteen ninety-five… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Priority one. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Priority one.  Can we get those ones to you?  Because if 

when we went in and filtered it, Jhoana only found five that fell under the list that had a 

switch or transfer and that was how they got a lease, yeah. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, okay.  So, for the people that has no issues… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Bring those before this meeting?  And then the other 

ones, we can, okay.  Because, I think majority of them are original applicants, right.   



 

 
Page 85 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Nineteen ninety-five, we have staff reports on the table but you 

will see how we present it to you before.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, what we’ll, what was really hard in that meeting to go 

through, I know you guys have staff reports for each of them, but I think the 

commission has to have the staff review it prior to coming to the meeting, because then 

like, because then I’d be able… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  I think we were just handed a stack that day, right.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Going through it, right.  If we have the staff reports… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  It was just a whole, because anyone that looks at 

documents wants the whole picture, right.  That’s when she asked for the file, it’s time 

consuming to come and look at all of that.  But when we do it on the fly or when we’re 

here at the table, but it’s nice to have it mapped out, and I can try and get it together.  

But the staff report only helps me when I’m really, we shouldn’t, I have to have it as 

round table discussion or understand a little bit. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well, if they get us the staff reports for the ones that are 

original applicants, their priority one, that kind of thing.  It will also be helpful if you tell 

us in the staff report if it is red marked.  Or if it’s just sitting in their file.  Something like 

that so, we’ll know why this constituent pre moratorium, right.  And the dates for when 

these leases were drafted, if we get the staff reports and we review it prior to the 

meeting, then we can identify cases that have questions and really just look at those 

easily, quickly, the files here. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  You guys have a little, is it too in cumbersome or tedious.  

How do we make it more efficient?  I could kind of said something, but you know. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah, I think that they just want to make sure what they give 

us we can work with.   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Got it. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  For me, last time it was like I hadn’t had a chance to really sit 

down and look at it and highlight the question I had.  That was when we had a full 

house and it was like… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  It look like it, I think it was interactive. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  But you know what I liked about today, thank you guys for 

being on top of it.  You guys got their files ready, so that by the time they were sitting 

you guys got it here for us, so I appreciate that.  That works well because moving our 

public comment later helps us, helps you guys identify who’s here. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Get the bill.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, I like that.  I mean really the sooner you guys can send 

the staff report, even if you want to do, I know that Tina sends the packet, like the 

Monday before, but whenever it’s early, send it to the commission, even if it’s part of 

the packet.  Whenever it’s ready so the commission can review it and then we can ask 



 

 
Page 86 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

you our question before hand.  Give it to us in the format it’s going to be presented at 

the meeting, so, that if we need more info, or whatever, it can be ready. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, attach it to the staff report, do you still, do you still 

want to see supporting documents?  That if you do want to see supporting documents, 

what are they?  The application to ensure that we are putting in the correct application 

date and time.  What, I know you want the maps, you want to see maps, right. 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Whatever has to deal with those things. 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Yeah.  Do you want to see a copy of the lease…? 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  It is not necessary, it really isn’t.  I mean, what’s occurring 

now works for when we are at the table, but for me to kind of figure out without being 

around you guys, it’s just kind of, like you said we have problems, so.   

Land Agent J.Bragg:  I think we can possibly send you, previous times we have sent 

you in that format right, if that format is something that you guys are able to 

understand, then we can work with that versus you guys looking at and saying I don’t 

know what’s going on.  The format is… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Acceptable, then… 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Acceptable where you guys can all, then we can move forward.  

We can send that by tomorrow because we have, we do have some that are, can be 

done.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  I think it is important that we go line by line though.  I don’t 

feel comfortable just looking at a list, we have to look at it like, just to… 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  How it is already? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Lease or proposed lease.  Proposed lease versus putting 

them all together and having us to approve a lease.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  So, there will be a separate list.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Were they pre occupiers.  Okay, so, June six is our next 

meeting.  Guam Raceway, Pre-Moratorium, and then tabled issues and then the ones 

that came up during public comment.  And the following meeting, July eighteenth, and 

that will be when we’ll be looking at the SOP’s, Land for Landless inventory, and I’m 

hoping that some resol…or at least a direction to move on the null and voids.  The 

switches.  For the null and void switches that were identify because beneficiary 

relinquished their rights to somebody else.  Well can we visit those on June 6?  Will 

you guys have enough time to identify those and bring it to the board? 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  I think we had the bulk of the 102’s, was in that category, 

there was sixty-nine of them.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Where it was just relinquished?   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Transfer of application rights, but we still need to go in 

and verify if it’s because of beneficiary.   



 

 
Page 87 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Well if, if it’s, if we can handle it the way we did today, we 

designated a successor to the lease, then if you can identify those, the sooner the 

better.  That way all we’re left with is really ones that, at least for now we can’t resolve 

them.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Okay. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Also, on July eighteenth, I’d like to also talk about setting the 

policies, right, for those very avenues, what’s our policies on switching application from 

Residential to Agricultural.  If we’re gonna make a policy lets document it, that they 

have it and they know how to handle it.  That kind of stuff.  Any other commissioner 

comments?   

Commissioner S. Techaira:  No.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Did you check this yet?  Because this lady was given the 

run around. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, Teresita Castro Janz.  I think she was one that we tabled 

and need to revisit.   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  We already… 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  We took care of her. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  Yeah so, she… 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  She just needs to get a building permit.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  No, I have that we tabled her. 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  She was listed but prior to us inputting her name during the 

meeting, you had already given the director… 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Authority? 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  Yeah, authority.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, for clearing and grading. 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  Yeah, for clearing and grading.   

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Clearing and UT.   

Land Agent T. Jocson:  Utilities authorizations.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, okay. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, did the director sign? 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  So, the director’s gonna be able to approve that. 

Commissioner A. Santos:  So, because she was telling me that… 

Land Administrator M. Borja:  Can you check? 



 

 
Page 88 of 88 

CLTC Board Meeting Minutes 
05.16.2019 

 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  Actually, it was done already. 

Land Agent T. Jocson:  And she picked it up already. 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  All she needs is the building permit.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Building plan? 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  She just needs to come back for a building permit 

authorization.  And request for a building authorization. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Permit.   

Land Agent J. Dayday:  There’s two others, the same day, same meeting. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Yeah 

Commissioner A. Santos:  Only the building plans she needs. 

Land Agent J. Dayday:  She needs to come back and request for an authorization. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Okay, oh I have another name, Donnie Tainatongo.  He 

switched his application with his wife because he was residential, applied for 

residential, but then he owns property, so he’s switched to his wife. 

Land Agent J. Bragg:  He’s on the 102.   

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  Oh, he’s on the 102?  Okay, okay.  Okay, so, next meeting is 

June six, and the following will be July eighteenth.  Thank you.  Motion to adjourn? 

Commissioner S. Techaira:  Motion to adjourn. 

Chairwoman P. Fejeran:  We are adjourned.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 



C H A M O R U  L A N D  T R U S T  C O M M I S S I O N

OLD 
BUSINESS

COMMERCIAL LEASING

GLOBAL RECYCLING

UOG HATCHERY

GUAM RUGBY CLUB

1.

a.

b.

c.



CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION | FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

GLOBAL RECYCLING



































































































































































































CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION | FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

UOG HATCHERY



Draft 11, TMT Edits (see Draft 10) 

1 

I MINA’TRENTAI SINGKO NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN 

2019 (FIRST) Regular Session 

Bill No. 76-35 (COR) 

As amended by the Committee on Health, 

Tourism, Historic Preservation, Land and 

Justice 

Introduced by: Joe S. San Agustin 

AN ACT TO CORRECT THE PROPERTY BOUNDARY OF 

UNIVERSITY OF GUAM LOT NO. 2517-17 TO ENSURE 

THAT ALL UNIVERSITY OWNED STRUCTURES ARE 

LOCATED WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF UNIVERSITY 

OF GUAM LOT NO. 2517-17 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM: 1 

Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent.  I Liheslaturan Guåhan finds 2 

that in 1985, Lot No. 2517-17 in the Municipality of Barrigada, was granted to the 3 

government of Guam and was subsequently used to create the Guam Aquaculture 4 

Development and Training Center (“GADTC”) for the purpose of developing an 5 

aquaculture industry on Guam. 6 

I Liheslaturan Guåhan further finds that the GADTC built various structures 7 

including larvae room, a spawning quonset, a fish tank and a fresh water cistern – 8 

all of which are either full or partial concrete structures.  These were built on 9 

government of Guam property. 10 

In 2002, with Public Law 26-36, I Liheslaturan Guåhan transferred this 11 

property and the administrative and operational control from the Guam Department 12 

of Commerce to the University of Guam (“UOG”).  The effect of this transfer caused 13 



Draft 11, TMT Edits (see Draft 10) 

2 

the boundary lines to indicate some of the structures to now be located on Chamorro 1 

Land Trust Lands. 2 

The University of Guam has since been attempting to correct the 3 

jurisdictional land issue since the property boundary for the University of Guam 4 

(UOG) Lot No. 2517-17 does not include critical structures to the operation of the 5 

UOG Fish Hatchery. 6 

Whereas, Chamorro Land Trust (“CLTC”) has agreed, pursuant to CLTC 7 

Resolution No. 2019-06 to transfer a portion of Lot No. 5412-R11 to UOG, subject 8 

to conditions. 9 

Therefore,  it is the intent of   I Liheslaturan Guåhan to make whole, the 10 

parcel to which these critical UOG Fish Hatchery structures stand, and that the 11 

easternmost lot boundary be extended to include all UOG physical structures as 12 

identified in Exhibit A, attached. 13 

Section 2. Lot Correction Survey and Mapping.  Notwithstanding any 14 

law, CLTC is authorized to transfer a portion not to exceed 1.5 acres, of Lot No. 15 

5412-R11 to the University of Guam.  CLTC may impose conditions on the transfer, 16 

including execution of an MOA with UOG, monetary or in-kind compensation. 17 

Upon transfer, the Department of Land Management (“DLM”) shall consolidate Lot 18 

2517-17 and the portion of Lot 5412-R11, not to exceed 1.5 acres.  The University 19 

of Guam shall be responsible for the surveying and mapping to include a 20 

consolidation survey.  Both lots are located in the Municipality of Mangilao.  The 21 

Department of Land Management shall issue a certificate of title for the new 22 

consolidated Lot No. 2517-17 upon transfer from CLTC and approval of 23 

consolidation survey. The easternmost boundary of UOG Lot No. 2517-17 is 24 

extended from coordinates 193,728.991 meters North, 107,760.297 meters East, and 25 

193,624.277 meters  North, 107,741.770  meters East, to coordinates 193,727.892 26 



Draft 11, TMT Edits (see Draft 10) 

3 

meters North, 107,826.293 meters East, and 193,622.200 meters North.  1 

107,844.993 meters East. 2 

Section 3. Issuance of Certificate of Title. The Department of Land 3 

Management shall issue a certificate of title for the new Lot No. 2517-17 within 90 4 

days of this Act. 5 



CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION | FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

GUAM RUGBY





























































































































C H A M O R U  L A N D  T R U S T  C O M M I S S I O N

NEW
BUSINESS

CONSTITUENT MATTERS

COMMERCIAL LEASING

GEDA -  DETERMINATION OF NEED

REMAX REQUEST FOR EASEMENT

KWIKSPACE GUAM 

FINANCIAL REPORT -  REPORT ON CURRENT

COMMERCIAL LEASING

1.

2.

a.

b.

c.

3.



 

 

 
 
 

  
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION  
COMPILED BY JMB ∙ 09/06/2019 
JOILEEN R.S. BENAVENTE   

 

 

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

 
 

JOILEEN R.S. BENAVENTE 
 

1. FACTS 

a. Location: N/A 

b. Lot Size/Lease Type: N/A 

c. Lease Instrument Number and Signing Date: N/A 

d. Surveyed:  N/A 

e. Complaint/Issue: CLTC Application Submission  

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 

a. Pre-occupier: N/A 

b. LUP: N/A 

c. Priority: 1 

d. Original Applicant: Joileen R.S.Benavente  

e. Original Applicant’s Date and Time: to be determined by board’s decision  

 

3. FINDINGS  

 December 5, 1995 - Ms. Benavente presented a payment towards her CLTC Application 

  

 November 4, 1997 – A complaint from Janice Benavente regarding her daughter’s application; 

Based on CLTC Staff’s research, there is no application in the CLTC Database and in file 

regarding a submission of Ms. Benavente’s CLTC Application 

 

 February 5, 2013 – CLTC Staff Lorraine Nededog and Deputy Director David Camacho did the 

intake of Ms. Benavente’s application and indicated the following – 

o Application No. 007708 

o December 29, 1995 

o Time: 11:50AM 

 

 With the intake of Ms. Benavente’s application, it has shuffled the places of applicants within the 

CLTC Applicants as she was placed within other CLTC Applicants  

 

4. FOLLOW-ON ACTION   

 Pending CLTC Board Action  

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

  
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION  
COMPILED BY JJG ∙ 08/05/2019 
GABRIEL SANTOS GUERRERO 

 

 

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

GABRIEL SANTOS GUERRERO 
 

1. FACTS 

a. Location: TRACT 15213 BLOCK 9 LOT 5-R2, M07 MANGILAO 

b. Lot Size/Lease Type: 1,838.00+-SQ. MTRS. / NONE 

c. Lease Instrument Number and Signing Date: N/A 

d. Surveyed: PROPOSED LOT SCHEME NO: M07-S017 DATED September 1, 

2017 

e. Complaint/Issue: Request for Lease Issuance as preoccupier  

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 

a. Pre-occupier:  YES (AS PER APPLICATION AND MAYOR VERIFICAITON) 

b. LUP: *Original permittee is Great Grandparent - Feja 

c. Priority: 1   

d. Original Applicant’s Date and Time: August 23, 2017 at 9:44AM 

e. Application Number: 008231  

f. Application Type: Agriculture 

 

3. FINDINGS 

Applicant indicated on his application dated August 21, 2017 that he was living on 

Government land, more specifically Pagat, Tract 15213 Block 3 Lot 5, Mangilao. 

 

*POR: Recent board actions to approve issuance of leases within the surrounding area 

were made to children and grandchildren of the original land use permittee.  

 

A site inspection conducted on or about March 28, 2019 establishing GPS coordinates 

for the adjoining lot 5-2. Said site inspection was made for August Guerrero. There are 

two (2) detached residential structures located on Lot 5-R2.  A singled story wood and 

galvanized aluminum metal frame occupied by the son of August Guerrero and an 

elevated (steel beamed) composite metal structure. 

  

Applicant requests the board to approve and process CLTC application number 008231 

dated August 21, 2017. Applicant further requests the board to approve and issue an 

agricultre lease, subject to survey of Tract 15213 Block 9 Lot 5-R2, containing an area of 

1,838.00± square meters, Mangilao. 

 

4. FOLLOW-ON ACTION 

For review and disposition by CLTC Board. 

 



 

 

 
 
 

  
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION  
COMPILED BY JJG ∙ 08/05/2019 
GABRIEL SANTOS GUERRERO 

 

 

Attachments 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 

  
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION  
COMPILED BY JMB ∙ 09/10/2019 
GENEVIEVE ERICSSON MANGLONA    

 

 

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

 
 

GENEVIEVE ERICSSON MANGLONA 
 

 

1. FACTS 

a. Location: Lot 10122-64 Dededo 

b. Lot Size/Lease Type: 2,926± square meters 

c. Lease Instrument Number and Signing Date: N/A 

d. Surveyed:  N/A 

e. Complaint/Issue: Request for Lease Issuance   

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 

a. Pre-occupier: Yes, 386 Batulo St. Dededo 

b. LUP: N/A 

c. Priority: 1 

d. Original Applicant: Genevieve Ericsson Manglona   

e. Original Applicant’s Date and Time: February 1, 2005  

 

3. FINDINGS  

 August 7, 2018 – Submitted Mayor’s Verification indicating occupancy on subject lot since 1995 

 1997 – Utilities were installed on subject lot 

 Supporting Documents 

o Power Bill under Fred and Genevieve Manglona received by CLTC Office on August 29, 

2019 

 

4. FOLLOW-ON ACTION   

 Pending CLTC Board Action  

 
 
 



  
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY MVB ∙ 9/12/2019 
CHRISTIANNA JEAN SARMIENTO NEDEDOG 
 

1 

 

 

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

 

 

CHRISTIANNA JEAN SARMIENTO NEDEDOG 

 

1. PURPOSE: 

 

a. Request for Issuance of a Residential Lease as a Pre-Occupier 

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS: 

 
a. Original Applicant: Christianna Jean Sarmiento Nededog 
b. Application Date and Time: October 10, 2005, at 11:55am 
c. Application Number: 006350 
d. Application Type: Residential 
e. Priority: 1 

 
3. STAFF ANALYSIS: 

 
Mrs. Nededog is a pre-occupier of Government land more particularly described as Lot 14, Block 
8, Tract 178, Machananao since her birth in 1979.  Her grandparents namely, Richard P. and 
Veronica C. Ramez, were awarded this lot in 1975 under a Land Use Permit Agreement No. 
112, with Department of Land Management.  She provided a Mayors Certification which 
indicated that she was a caretaker for her grandparents until their death. 
 
On March 8, 2019, a site inspection of the property was conducted and onsite was a dilapidated 
mobile home that was purchased by her grandparents in 1977, as evidenced in the Sales 
Contract recorded under Instrument No. 285056. 
 
Paid Property Taxes for the building were also provided for tax years beginning in 1997, 1999, 
2000, 2005, 2006 and 2007. 
 
Past billings for power were provided, which has been disconnected since June 2017. 

 
 

4. RECOMENDATIONS:  
 
Motion to approve the issuance of a Residential Lease as a pre-occupier to Lot 14, Block 8, 

Tract 178, Machananao. 

 

 



CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION | FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

GEDA: DETERMINATION OF NEED



 

DETERMINATION OF NEED FOR EXCEPTIONAL TERM CONTRACT 
Tract 111, Lot 12, Municipality of Tamuning, Guam 

 
1.0 OVERVIEW  
 

This Determination of Need for Exceptional Term Contract is issued pursuant to Public 
Law 32-40 as amended by Public Law 34-99 wherein the Chamorro Land Trust Commission 
hereby makes this “written Determination of Need justifying by a quantifiable sum an Exceptional 
Term Contract, and specifying the full term, inclusive of extensions, options and renewals, for 
such contract, and provide a copy of such Determination of Need to the Speaker of I Liheslaturan 
Guahan.” 

 
CLTC Resolution No. 2017-05 which designated this property for commercial lease was 

adopted on March 20, 2017 and transmitted to the Legislature as required by Public Law 33-95 on 
March 21, 2017 (Legislative Doc. No. 34GL-17-0313). 

 
The Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereinafter referred to as “CLTC”) via its property 

manager, the Guam Economic Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as “GEDA”), 
intends to issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for the lease availability of Tract 111, Lot 12, 
Municipality of Tamuning, consisting of approximately 2,564 square meters, as shown on survey 
map L.M. No. 332FY95, Instrument No. 530747, currently Resort-Hotel Zone (The Property). The 
Property is located off Route 14, along San Vitores Road across from the Ypao Beach Park and 
the Proa Restaurant. The CLTC intends to negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that allows 
a prospective developer to implement its proposed and approved development plans. The Property 
has potential for commercial use as it is located within Guam’s tourist district. CLTC intends to 
negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that allows a prospective lessee to utilize the Property 
for land uses consistent with the Resort-Hotel Zone (H) designation. If required, the offeror will 
be allowed to pledge the leasehold interest in the property to secure development financing.  The 
property is located in Census Tract 66010951902 which is a Qualified Opportunity Zone (QOZ) 
pursuant to Section 13823 of U. S. Public Law 115-97 which provides tax incentives for 
investments in QOZs. 

 
To allow prospective developers to invest in the Property and recover investments, CLTC 

proposes to allow a lessee to lease the property for a term of up to fifty (50) years with one or more 
options to extend the term for an additional Forty-Nine (49) years.  Such term will be subject to 
negotiations based primarily upon the amount of time required by the lessee to recover its 
investment, satisfy financing requirements and profit from investments. 
 

Smaller scale developments (in the tens to hundreds of thousands of dollars), have 
traditionally been pursued by smaller organizations and are met with a distinctly unique set of 
challenges. Smaller local corporations, partnerships and sole proprietorships that are common on 
Guam are very much dependent on local financing institutions to engage in almost any form of 
commerce. A commercial loan is dependent on various terms such as, the principle loan amount, 
interest, and primarily, the borrower’s ability to repay. While there may be some organizations or 
businesses that might be able to afford a loan from hundreds of thousands to the millions of dollars, 
and still able to repay it back in less than five years, there are also a large number of small local 



 

businesses that are unable to do so. For example, even a $250K business loan at only 4% interest 
over a mere 5 year term would require monthly payments of almost $5K a month for the loan itself, 
not to mention other standard overhead, operational, or costs of goods sold. Limiting a lease term 
to 5 years would only add an additional hardship, or even exclusion, for most small local businesses 
to participate, employ local workers, or have a hope at success.  
 

Even if a business were to be successful at negotiating a real property lease, a basic 
guideline for any local lending institutions is that a commercial loan would generally not be 
granted to any organization with only a leasehold interest that would be shorter than the life of the 
loan itself. Thus, in order to provide a fair commercial lease opportunity to a wider range of the 
small local business community and still provide a decent chance at success, it is concluded that 
an Exceptional Term Lease for longer than 5 years be allowed. 
 

The tax assessed value is $336 per square meter. Fair market rental value will be based 
upon two recent property appraisals as required for CLTC properties by Public Law 31-44. A 
description of the property and the potential major components of a Request for Proposals follows, 
to provide preliminary but more detailed information on this development opportunity. 
 
1.1 LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  
 

1.1.1 Property Location.  The Property is located off Route 14, along San Vitores Road 
across from the Ypao Beach Park and the Proa Restaurant in Tumon, Guam (See attached Map). 
 

1.1.2 Previous Land Use.  The Property was formerly utilized by GVB as a park. 
 

1.1.3 Current Zoning.  The property is zoned Resort Hotel (H). If a change to this zoning 
designation is needed to implement the developer’s plans, an explanation of the need for change 
must be included in the proposal submitted in response to an RFP.   
 

1.1.4 Mining of Property.  Should aggregate mining be intended by the prospective 
developer as part of its development plan, CLTC requires that proposal in response to an RFP 
discuss how the property will become usable after the developer ceases to use the property for this 
purpose and discuss royalties that will be paid from the use of the property for this purpose. 
 
1.2 CLTC COMMITMENTS  
 

• To support designation of the appropriate zone for the property to accommodate the 
development plan, to the extent allowable by law. 

• To support the developer in satisfying all regulatory, land use, environmental, business, 
building and other local and federal permitting requirements, to the extent allowable by 
law. 

• To support the developer in presenting and securing approval of the lease agreement to the 
extent allowable by law. 

 
1.3  OFFER RESPONSIBILITIES   
 



 

A lease agreement(s) will be prepared once negotiations with the successful offeror(s) have 
concluded.  Since the lease will require offeror(s) to carry out various responsibilities, including, 
but not limited to those listed below, proposals must indicate concurrence with paying the costs 
for and carrying out the major responsibilities listed below:  
 

1.3.1 Conceptual Plan.  Prepare a conceptual plan for the proposed development, 
commit to a specific development schedule and secure all necessary development permits. In 
submitting a proposal in response to an RFP, offerors are required to submit this conceptual plan 
for the development of the property or portion(s) thereof which shall identify the type of use, the 
market demand for the goods and/or services to be offered, a rough order of magnitude cost for 
developing the site and the offeror’s ability to finance development and operations including 
evidence of such financial ability. 
 

1.3.2. Business Plan.  Create for itself and for CLTC, a Business Plan that contains a 
project pro forma consistent with the conceptual plan covering the period of time required by the 
offeror(s) for project development and operation. 
 

1.3.3 Infrastructure.  Plan, implement and fund all infrastructure improvements needed 
for development plans. 
 

1.3.4. Management.  Accept management and maintenance responsibility for the 
Property that preserves the value and revenue generating capacity of the Property.  
 

1.3.5. Environmental Remediation (If Needed).  Accept responsibility for performance 
and costs of any environmental remediation required to develop the Property as proposed.  
Prospective lessees shall prepare a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment before the issuance of 
a lease agreement and shall provide a performance bond to ensure that the property is returned in 
an acceptable end-state. 
 

1.3.6. Insurance.  Obtain all required property, liability and workmen’s compensation 
insurance, and indemnify CLTC from any liability arising from the development and use of the 
Property. 
 

1.3.7 Survey/Retracement.  Prepare a property boundary survey map of the Property 
and obtain all required approvals.  Survey monuments must be maintained and visible at all times 
for inspection by CLTC. 
 

1.3.8. Fees.  Pay all fees associated with the recording the Lease at the Department of 
Land Management. 
 

 
1.4 OFFEROR REQUIREMENTS  
 
A primary consideration of the CLTC and the Government of Guam is the benefits to be derived 
through the lease and development of this valuable asset.  Traditional methods of generating 
revenue are addressed in subsections 1.4.1 and 1.4.2 below.  However, CLTC, GEDA and the 



 

Government of Guam recognize that significant public benefits can also be derived through 
public/private partnerships and other mechanisms that, considered as a whole, exceed the benefits 
derived from a traditional real estate lease transaction.  Should other non-traditional methods be 
proposed by the offeror, these methods will be given serious consideration but offerors must still 
identify the benefits that would have been derived from a strict real estate lease transaction for 
comparative purposes.  Offerors are required to review the CLTC Rules and Regulations codified 
at 21 GCA Section 75122 (attached) and to address the following requirements in their proposals: 
 

1.4.1. Rent.   Rent shall be no less than ten percent (10%) of the appraised fair market 
value. Per Public Law 31-44, two appraisals must be prepared at the expense of the prospective 
developer with CLTC selection of one appraiser.  Prospective developers are required to identify 
the amount of ground rent to be paid annually/monthly over the term of the lease, taking into 
account CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue.  Rent shall escalate at a 
minimum of five (5) year intervals based at a minimum upon current appraisal of fair market value 
but in no event shall rent be lower than the rent charged during the previous five (5) year period.   
 

1.4.2. Participation Rent.  Participation rent, which is a mutually agreed upon percentage 
of the revenues generated from the use of the property above a mutually agreed upon revenue 
threshold shall be paid by the lessee to the landlord beginning on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the 
lease and shall be paid in four (4) equal quarterly installments.  To arrive at this threshold, 
prospective offerors must submit a pro-forma financial statement and propose a reasonable 
threshold in their proposals to meet this requirement. 
 

1.4.3. Alternative Payment Mechanisms.  Alternatives to property rent, subtenant and 
other rents may be proposed by offerors in their proposals, however, any proposal suggesting such 
alternatives must demonstrate how CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue 
is achieved by comparing the suggested alternative to the property rent, subtenant and other 
payments described above.  Alternative payment schedules including rent deferrals may also be 
proposed but in no event will the total amount of rent be reduced.  Interest may also be charged on 
any deferred rents. 

 
1.4.4. Security Deposit.  The proposal shall indicate that the developer(s) agrees to pay 

a non-refundable security deposit upon execution of a lease and the amount of such security 
deposit.  

 
1.4.5. Sub-lessee Use of Property.  Offerors must specify in their proposals whether or 

not subletting (or any form of third party use) is intended for any or all portions of the property 
being leased.  Should subletting be intended, offerors shall identify the proportion of sub-lessee 
rents paid to the lessee to be paid to CLTC, if any.  In addition, participation rent as described 
above may be required to be paid by sub-lessees. 
 

1.4.6. Other Requirements.  To ensure acceptability of the intended lease agreement by 
the public and the government of Guam, compliance with 21 GCA Section 75122 is required 
however, additional requirements may be imposed and/or negotiated that are not specifically 
identified in this RFP, at the discretion of the Government of Guam. In addition, Public Law 32-
40 requires Legislative approval of all leases whose term exceeds five (5) years.  Additional 



 

requirement(s) may be imposed by the Guam Legislature.  By submitting a proposal in response 
to this RFP, prospective offerors understand and agree that additional requirements may be 
negotiated by the Executive and/or Legislative Branches of the Government of Guam. 

 
 

  



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A:  MAP    
 
 
See CLTC submission for aerial and survey maps. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B:  CLTC Rules and Regulations   
 
Consider attaching rules/regs or indicate where they can be viewed. 



 

DETERMINATION OF NEED FOR EXCEPTIONAL TERM CONTRACT 
Lot 5075-REM-A NEW-Rl, Tamuning, Guam 

 
1.0 OVERVIEW  
 

This Determination of Need for Exceptional Term Contract is issued pursuant to Public 
Law 32-40 as amended by Public Law 34-99 wherein the Chamorro Land Trust Commission 
hereby makes this “written Determination of Need justifying by a quantifiable sum an Exceptional 
Term Contract, and specifying the full term, inclusive of extensions, options and renewals, for 
such contract, and provide a copy of such Determination of Need to the Speaker of I Liheslaturan 
Guahan.” 

 
CLTC Resolution No. 2016-10 which designated this property for commercial lease was 

adopted on June 16, 2016 and transmitted to the Legislature as required by Public Law 33-95 on 
June 24, 2016 (Legislative Doc. No. 33GL-16-1728). 

 
The Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereinafter referred to as “CLTC”) via its property 

manager, the Guam Economic Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as “GEDA”), 
intends to issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for the lease availability of Lot 5075-REM-A 
NEW-Rl, Tamuning, containing 1.9 acres and zoned Multi-Family-R2 (the Property). The 
Property is located off Route 1, behind East West Rental in Upper Tumon. The CLTC intends to 
negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that allows a prospective developer to implement its 
proposed and approved development plans. The Property has potential for commercial use. CLTC 
intends to negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that allows a prospective lessee to utilize 
the Property for land uses consistent with the R2 zoning designation. If required, the offeror will 
be allowed to pledge the leasehold interest in the property to secure development financing.  The 
property is located in Census Tract 66010951901 which is a Qualified Opportunity Zone (QOZ) 
pursuant to Section 13823 of U. S. Public Law 115-97 which provides tax incentives for 
investments in QOZs. 

 
To allow prospective developers to invest in the Property and recover investments, CLTC 

proposes to allow a lessee to lease the property for a term of up to fifty (50) years with one or more 
options to extend the term for an additional Forty-Nine (49) years.  Such term will be subject to 
negotiations based primarily upon the amount of time required by the lessee to recover its 
investment, satisfy financing requirements and profit from investments.  
 

Smaller scale developments (in the tens to hundreds of thousands of dollars), have 
traditionally been pursued by smaller organizations and are met with a distinctly unique set of 
challenges. Smaller local corporations, partnerships and sole proprietorships that are common on 
Guam are very much dependent on local financing institutions to engage in almost any form of 
commerce. A commercial loan is dependent on various terms such as, the principle loan amount, 
interest, and primarily, the borrower’s ability to repay. While there may be some organizations or 
businesses that might be able to afford a loan from hundreds of thousands to the millions of dollars, 
and still able to repay it back in less than five years, there are also a large number of small local 
businesses that are unable to do so. For example, even a $250K business loan at only 4% interest 
over a mere 5 year term would require monthly payments of almost $5K a month for the loan itself, 



 

not to mention other standard overhead, operational, or costs of goods sold. Limiting a lease term 
to 5 years would only add an additional hardship, or even exclusion, for most small local businesses 
to participate, employ local workers, or have a hope at success.  
 

Even if a business were to be successful at negotiating a real property lease, a basic 
guideline for any local lending institutions is that a commercial loan would generally not be 
granted to any organization with only a leasehold interest that would be shorter than the life of the 
loan itself. Thus, in order to provide a fair commercial lease opportunity to a wider range of the 
small local business community and still provide a decent chance at success, it is concluded that 
an Exceptional Term Lease for longer than 5 years be allowed. 
 

The tax assessed value is over $61 per square meter. Fair market rental value will be based 
upon two recent property appraisals as required for CLTC properties by Public Law 31-44. A 
description of the property and the potential major components of a Request for Proposals follows, 
to provide preliminary but more detailed information on this development opportunity. 
 
1.1 LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  
 

1.1.1 Property Location.  The Property is located off Route 1, behind East West Rental 
in Upper Tumon, Guam (See attached Map). 
 

1.1.2 Previous Land Use.  The Property was not previously used by the government of 
Guam. 
 

1.1.3 Current Zoning.  The property is zoned R2. If a change to this zoning designation 
is needed to implement the developer’s plans, an explanation of the need for change must be 
included in the proposal submitted in response to an RFP.   
 

1.1.4 Mining of Property.  Should aggregate mining be intended by the prospective 
developer as part of its development plan, CLTC requires that proposal in response to an RFP 
discuss how the property will become usable after the developer ceases to use the property for this 
purpose and discuss royalties that will be paid from the use of the property for this purpose. 
 
1.2 CLTC COMMITMENTS  
 

• To support designation of the appropriate zone for the property to accommodate the 
development plan, to the extent allowable by law. 

• To support the developer in satisfying all regulatory, land use, environmental, business, 
building and other local and federal permitting requirements, to the extent allowable by 
law. 

• To support the developer in presenting and securing approval of the lease agreement to the 
extent allowable by law. 

 
1.3  OFFER RESPONSIBILITIES   
 



 

A lease agreement(s) will be prepared once negotiations with the successful offeror(s) have 
concluded.  Since the lease will require offeror(s) to carry out various responsibilities, including, 
but not limited to those listed below, proposals must indicate concurrence with paying the costs 
for and carrying out the major responsibilities listed below:  
 

1.3.1 Conceptual Plan.  Prepare a conceptual plan for the proposed development, 
commit to a specific development schedule and secure all necessary development permits. In 
submitting a proposal in response to an RFP, offerors are required to submit this conceptual plan 
for the development of the property or portion(s) thereof which shall identify the type of use, the 
market demand for the goods and/or services to be offered, a rough order of magnitude cost for 
developing the site and the offeror’s ability to finance development and operations including 
evidence of such financial ability. 
 

1.3.2. Business Plan.  Create for itself and for CLTC, a Business Plan that contains a 
project pro forma consistent with the conceptual plan covering the period of time required by the 
offeror(s) for project development and operation. 
 

1.3.3 Infrastructure.  Plan, implement and fund all infrastructure improvements needed 
for development plans. 
 

1.3.4. Management.  Accept management and maintenance responsibility for the 
Property that preserves the value and revenue generating capacity of the Property.  
 

1.3.5. Environmental Remediation (If Needed).  Accept responsibility for performance 
and costs of any environmental remediation required to develop the Property as proposed.  
Prospective lessees shall prepare a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment before the issuance of 
a lease agreement and shall provide a performance bond to ensure that the property is returned in 
an acceptable end-state. 
 

1.3.6. Insurance.  Obtain all required property, liability and workmen’s compensation 
insurance, and indemnify CLTC from any liability arising from the development and use of the 
Property. 
 

1.3.7 Survey/Retracement.  Prepare a property boundary survey map of the Property 
and obtain all required approvals.  Survey monuments must be maintained and visible at all times 
for inspection by CLTC. 
 

1.3.8. Fees.  Pay all fees associated with the recording the Lease at the Department of 
Land Management. 
 

 
1.4 OFFEROR REQUIREMENTS  
 
A primary consideration of the CLTC and the Government of Guam is the benefits to be derived 
through the lease and development of this valuable asset.  Traditional methods of generating 
revenue are addressed in subsections 1.4.1 and 1.4.2 below.  However, CLTC, GEDA and the 



 

Government of Guam recognize that significant public benefits can also be derived through 
public/private partnerships and other mechanisms that, considered as a whole, exceed the benefits 
derived from a traditional real estate lease transaction.  Should other non-traditional methods be 
proposed by the offeror, these methods will be given serious consideration but offerors must still 
identify the benefits that would have been derived from a strict real estate lease transaction for 
comparative purposes.  Offerors are required to review the CLTC Rules and Regulations codified 
at 21 GCA Section 75122 (attached) and to address the following requirements in their proposals: 
 

1.4.1. Rent.   Rent shall be no less than ten percent (10%) of the appraised fair market 
value. Per Public Law 31-44, two appraisals must be prepared at the expense of the prospective 
developer with CLTC selection of one appraiser.  Prospective developers are required to identify 
the amount of ground rent to be paid annually/monthly over the term of the lease, taking into 
account CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue.  Rent shall escalate at a 
minimum of five (5) year intervals based at a minimum upon current appraisal of fair market value 
but in no event shall rent be lower than the rent charged during the previous five (5) year period.   
 

1.4.2. Participation Rent.  Participation rent, which is a mutually agreed upon percentage 
of the revenues generated from the use of the property above a mutually agreed upon revenue 
threshold shall be paid by the lessee to the landlord beginning on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the 
lease and shall be paid in four (4) equal quarterly installments. To arrive at this threshold, 
prospective offerors must submit a pro-forma financial statement and propose a reasonable 
threshold in their proposals to meet this requirement. 
 

1.4.3. Alternative Payment Mechanisms.  Alternatives to property rent, subtenant and 
other rents may be proposed by offerors in their proposals, however, any proposal suggesting such 
alternatives must demonstrate how CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue 
is achieved by comparing the suggested alternative to the property rent, subtenant and other 
payments described above.  Alternative payment schedules including rent deferrals may also be 
proposed but in no event will the total amount of rent be reduced.  Interest may also be charged on 
any deferred rents. 

 
1.4.4. Security Deposit.  The proposal shall indicate that the developer(s) agrees to pay 

a non-refundable security deposit upon execution of a lease and the amount of such security 
deposit.  

 
1.4.5. Sub-lessee Use of Property.  Offerors must specify in their proposals whether or 

not subletting (or any form of third party use) is intended for any or all portions of the property 
being leased.  Should subletting be intended, offerors shall identify the proportion of sub-lessee 
rents paid to the lessee to be paid to CLTC, if any.  In addition, participation rent as described 
above may be required to be paid by sub-lessees. 
 

1.4.6. Other Requirements.  To ensure acceptability of the intended lease agreement by 
the public and the government of Guam, compliance with 21 GCA Section 75122 is required 
however, additional requirements may be imposed and/or negotiated that are not specifically 
identified in this RFP, at the discretion of the Government of Guam. In addition, Public Law 32-
40 requires Legislative approval of all leases whose term exceeds five (5) years.  Additional 



 

requirement(s) may be imposed by the Guam Legislature.  By submitting a proposal in response 
to this RFP, prospective offerors understand and agree that additional requirements may be 
negotiated by the Executive and/or Legislative Branches of the Government of Guam. 

 
 

  



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A:  MAP    
 
 
See CLTC submission for aerial and survey maps. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B:  CLTC Rules and Regulations   
 
Consider attaching rules/regs or indicate where they can be viewed. 
 



 

DETERMINATION OF NEED FOR EXCEPTIONAL TERM CONTRACT 
Lot 7054-R5, Yigo, Guam 

 
1.0 OVERVIEW  
 

This Determination of Need for Exceptional Term Contract is issued pursuant to Public 
Law 32-40 as amended by Public Law 34-99 wherein the Chamorro Land Trust Commission 
hereby makes this “written Determination of Need justifying by a quantifiable sum an Exceptional 
Term Contract, and specifying the full term, inclusive of extensions, options and renewals, for 
such contract, and provide a copy of such Determination of Need to the Speaker of I Liheslaturan 
Guahan.” 

 
CLTC Resolution No. 2016-11 which designated this property for commercial lease was 

adopted on June 16, 2016 and transmitted to the Legislature as required by Public Law 33-95 on 
June 24, 2016 (Legislative Doc. No. 33GL-16-1728). 

 
The Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereinafter referred to as “CLTC”) via its property 

manager, the Guam Economic Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as “GEDA”), 
intends to issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for the lease availability of Lot 7054-R5, Yigo, 
containing 12 acres and zoned Agriculture (The Property). The Property is located off Route 1, 
behind the Yigo Gym. The CLTC intends to negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that 
allows a prospective developer to implement its proposed and approved development plans. The 
Property has potential for commercial use as it is located within Guam’s tourist district. CLTC 
intends to negotiate a lease agreement for the Property that allows a prospective lessee to utilize 
the Property for land uses consistent with the Resort-Hotel Zone (H) designation. If required, the 
offeror will be allowed to pledge the leasehold interest in the property to secure development 
financing.   

 
To allow prospective developers to invest in the Property and recover investments, CLTC 

proposes to allow a lessee to lease the property for a term of up to fifty (50) years with one or more 
options to extend the term for an additional Forty-Nine (49) years.  Such term will be subject to 
negotiations based primarily upon the amount of time required by the lessee to recover its 
investment, satisfy financing requirements and profit from investments. 
 

Smaller scale developments (in the tens to hundreds of thousands of dollars), have 
traditionally been pursued by smaller organizations and are met with a distinctly unique set of 
challenges. Smaller local corporations, partnerships and sole proprietorships that are common on 
Guam are very much dependent on local financing institutions to engage in almost any form of 
commerce. A commercial loan is dependent on various terms such as, the principle loan amount, 
interest, and primarily, the borrower’s ability to repay. While there may be some organizations or 
businesses that might be able to afford a loan from hundreds of thousands to the millions of dollars, 
and still able to repay it back in less than five years, there are also a large number of small local 
businesses that are unable to do so. For example, even a $250K business loan at only 4% interest 
over a mere 5 year term would require monthly payments of almost $5K a month for the loan itself, 
not to mention other standard overhead, operational, or costs of goods sold. Limiting a lease term 



 

to 5 years would only add an additional hardship, or even exclusion, for most small local businesses 
to participate, employ local workers, or have a hope at success.  
 

Even if a business were to be successful at negotiating a real property lease, a basic 
guideline for any local lending institutions is that a commercial loan would generally not be 
granted to any organization with only a leasehold interest that would be shorter than the life of the 
loan itself. Thus, in order to provide a fair commercial lease opportunity to a wider range of the 
small local business community and still provide a decent chance at success, it is concluded that 
an Exceptional Term Lease for longer than 5 years be allowed. 
 

Fair market rental value will be based upon two recent property appraisals as required for 
CLTC properties by Public Law 31-44. A description of the property and the potential major 
components of a Request for Proposals follows, to provide preliminary but more detailed 
information on this development opportunity. 
 
1.1 LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  
 

1.1.1 Property Location.  The Property is located off Route 1, behind the Yigo 
Gymnasium, Guam (See attached Map). 
 

1.1.2 Previous Land Use.  The Property was not previously used by the government of 
Guam. 
 

1.1.3 Current Zoning.  The property is zoned Agriculture (A). If a change to this zoning 
designation is needed to implement the developer’s plans, an explanation of the need for change 
must be included in the proposal submitted in response to an RFP.   
 

1.1.4 Mining of Property.  Should aggregate mining be intended by the prospective 
developer as part of its development plan, CLTC requires that proposal in response to an RFP 
discuss how the property will become usable after the developer ceases to use the property for this 
purpose and discuss royalties that will be paid from the use of the property for this purpose. 
 
1.2 CLTC COMMITMENTS  
 

• To support designation of the appropriate zone for the property to accommodate the 
development plan, to the extent allowable by law. 

• To support the developer in satisfying all regulatory, land use, environmental, business, 
building and other local and federal permitting requirements, to the extent allowable by 
law. 

• To support the developer in presenting and securing approval of the lease agreement to the 
extent allowable by law. 

 
1.3  OFFER RESPONSIBILITIES   
 
A lease agreement(s) will be prepared once negotiations with the successful offeror(s) have 
concluded.  Since the lease will require offeror(s) to carry out various responsibilities, including, 



 

but not limited to those listed below, proposals must indicate concurrence with paying the costs 
for and carrying out the major responsibilities listed below:  
 

1.3.1 Conceptual Plan.  Prepare a conceptual plan for the proposed development, 
commit to a specific development schedule and secure all necessary development permits. In 
submitting a proposal in response to an RFP, offerors are required to submit this conceptual plan 
for the development of the property or portion(s) thereof which shall identify the type of use, the 
market demand for the goods and/or services to be offered, a rough order of magnitude cost for 
developing the site and the offeror’s ability to finance development and operations including 
evidence of such financial ability. 
 

1.3.2. Business Plan.  Create for itself and for CLTC, a Business Plan that contains a 
project pro forma consistent with the conceptual plan covering the period of time required by the 
offeror(s) for project development and operation. 
 

1.3.3 Infrastructure.  Plan, implement and fund all infrastructure improvements needed 
for development plans. 
 

1.3.4. Management.  Accept management and maintenance responsibility for the 
Property that preserves the value and revenue generating capacity of the Property.  
 

1.3.5. Environmental Remediation (If Needed).  Accept responsibility for performance 
and costs of any environmental remediation required to develop the Property as proposed.  
Prospective lessees shall prepare a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment before the issuance of 
a lease agreement and shall provide a performance bond to ensure that the property is returned in 
an acceptable end-state. 
 

1.3.6. Insurance.  Obtain all required property, liability and workmen’s compensation 
insurance, and indemnify CLTC from any liability arising from the development and use of the 
Property. 
 

1.3.7 Survey/Retracement.  Prepare a property boundary survey map of the Property 
and obtain all required approvals.  Survey monuments must be maintained and visible at all times 
for inspection by CLTC. 
 

1.3.8. Fees.  Pay all fees associated with the recording the Lease at the Department of 
Land Management. 
 

 
1.4 OFFEROR REQUIREMENTS  
 
A primary consideration of the CLTC and the Government of Guam is the benefits to be derived 
through the lease and development of this valuable asset.  Traditional methods of generating 
revenue are addressed in subsections 1.4.1 and 1.4.2 below.  However, CLTC, GEDA and the 
Government of Guam recognize that significant public benefits can also be derived through 
public/private partnerships and other mechanisms that, considered as a whole, exceed the benefits 



 

derived from a traditional real estate lease transaction.  Should other non-traditional methods be 
proposed by the offeror, these methods will be given serious consideration but offerors must still 
identify the benefits that would have been derived from a strict real estate lease transaction for 
comparative purposes.  Offerors are required to review the CLTC Rules and Regulations codified 
at 21 GCA Section 75122 (attached) and to address the following requirements in their proposals: 
 

1.4.1. Rent.   Rent shall be no less than ten percent (10%) of the appraised fair market 
value. Per Public Law 31-44, two appraisals must be prepared at the expense of the prospective 
developer with CLTC selection of one appraiser.  Prospective developers are required to identify 
the amount of ground rent to be paid annually/monthly over the term of the lease, taking into 
account CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue.  Rent shall escalate at a 
minimum of five (5) year intervals based at a minimum upon current appraisal of fair market value 
but in no event shall rent be lower than the rent charged during the previous five (5) year period.   
 

1.4.2. Participation Rent.  Participation rent, which is a mutually agreed upon percentage 
of the revenues generated from the use of the property above a mutually agreed upon revenue 
threshold shall be paid by the lessee to the landlord beginning on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the 
lease and shall be paid in four (4) equal quarterly installments. To arrive at this threshold, 
prospective offerors must submit a pro-forma financial statement and propose a reasonable 
threshold in their proposals to meet this requirement. 

 
 

1.4.3. Alternative Payment Mechanisms.  Alternatives to property rent, subtenant and 
other rents may be proposed by offerors in their proposals, however, any proposal suggesting such 
alternatives must demonstrate how CLTC’s objective of generating the highest amount of revenue 
is achieved by comparing the suggested alternative to the property rent, subtenant and other 
payments described above.  Alternative payment schedules including rent deferrals may also be 
proposed but in no event will the total amount of rent be reduced.  Interest may also be charged on 
any deferred rents. 

 
1.4.4. Security Deposit.  The proposal shall indicate that the developer(s) agrees to pay 

a non-refundable security deposit upon execution of a lease and the amount of such security 
deposit.  

 
1.4.5. Sub-lessee Use of Property.  Offerors must specify in their proposals whether or 

not subletting (or any form of third party use) is intended for any or all portions of the property 
being leased.  Should subletting be intended, offerors shall identify the proportion of sub-lessee 
rents paid to the lessee to be paid to CLTC, if any.  In addition, participation rent as described 
above may be required to be paid by sub-lessees. 
 

1.4.6. Other Requirements.  To ensure acceptability of the intended lease agreement by 
the public and the government of Guam, compliance with 21 GCA Section 75122 is required 
however, additional requirements may be imposed and/or negotiated that are not specifically 
identified in this RFP, at the discretion of the Government of Guam. In addition, Public Law 32-
40 requires Legislative approval of all leases whose term exceeds five (5) years.  Additional 
requirement(s) may be imposed by the Guam Legislature.  By submitting a proposal in response 



to this RFP, prospective offerors understand and agree that additional requirements may be 
negotiated by the Executive and/or Legislative Branches of the Government of Guam. 



ATTACHMENT A:  MAP   

See CLTC submission for aerial and survey maps. 

ATTACHMENT B:  CLTC Rules and Regulations  

Consider attaching rules/regs or indicate where they can be viewed. 


	DONS.pdf
	DON Across GVB Jan 2019
	DON Behind East West Rental
	DON for Yigo Gym Area

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	D11_Bill No. 76-35 (COR) jssa, CLTC Version.pdf
	I MINA’TRENTAI SINGKO NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN
	2019 (FIRST) Regular Session
	Bill No. 76-35 (COR)
	Introduced by:  Joe S. San Agustin
	BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:


